MISSION STATEMENT

"The mission of the Board of Supervisors of
the County of Prince Edward is to represent
all citizens, provide leadership, create vision
and set policy to accomplish positive change

and planned growth and to provide essential
services, enhancing the quality of life and

maintaining fiscal responsibility.”




[This pageintentionally left blank]



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
MEETING AGENDA

July 8, 2025

The Prince Edward County Board of Supervisors encourages citizens participation in public meetings through in-

person participation, written comments and/or remote patticipation by calling: 1-844-890-7777, Access Code: 390313
(If busy, please call again.) Additionally, citizens may view the Board meeting live in its entirety at the County’s YouTube

Channel, the link to which is provided on the County’s website.

T:00P.M. 1,

SANCANIE S S

10.
11.
12.
13.

14.
15.
16.
17.

18.

AGENDA

The Chair will call to order the July meeting of the Board of Supervisors.
Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance

Conflict of Interest Disclosures

Recognitions

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:
Citizens wishing to address the Board are asked to please sign the Public Participation
Register prior to the beginning of the meeting.

Board of Supervisors Comments

Consent Agenda:
a. Approval of Minutes: June 10, 2025
June 24, 2025 — Comp Plan Joint Public Hearing

Community Partner Update:
a.  Chip Jones, Ed.D., Superintendent, Prince Edward County Public Schools

Highway Matters: Scott Frederick, PE, VDOT

Industrial Access Funding — Enterprise Lane

Solid Waste/Landfill Engineering Services Contract

Finance & Human Resources Report
a. Appropriation: Prince Edward County Public Schools-State Funds

b. Appropriation: Prince Edward County Public Schools-CARES Act
c. Appropriation: Opioid Settlement Funds
d. Appropriation: ATL Funds to Fire Departments

Properties Committee Report
County Administrator’s Report
November Board Meeting Date

Monthly Financial Reports:
a. Treasurer’s Report

b. Review of Accounts & Claims/Board Mileage/County Attorney Invoices

c. The County Administrator reported that checks have been issued pursuant
to the order of the Board of Supervisors as to salaries, etc., the amount of
which salaries have been heretofore approved.

Monthly Reports:

a. Building Office

b. Cannery

c. Tourism & Visitor Center

STAFF CONTACT

PAGE #

Crystal Baker

Doug Stanley

Doug Stanley
Sarah Puckett
Cheryl Stimpson

Doug Stanley
Doug Stanley
Doug Stanley

Doug Stanley

(NOTE: Additional agenda items may be added to the Table Pack is available for review after 4:30 p.m. on July 8, 2025.)

N=TEEN 3 |

13

15
16
22

75

77
79
87

105
109
113
115

117
119
121

123
127
159

161
162
163
164



[This pageintentionally left blank]



Board of Supervisors

Agenda Summary
Meeting Date: July 8, 2025
Item #: 1,2,3
Department: Board of Supervisors
Staff Contact: Douglas P. Stanley / Sarah Elam Puckett
Agenda Item: Call to Order, Invocation, Pledge of Allegiance, Remote Participation
SUMMARY:

1. Call To Order: Board Chair Jenkins will call to order the July meeting of the Prince Edward
Board of Supervisots.

2. Invocation

3. Pledge of Allegiance

COST:
ATTACHMENTS:
RECOMMENDATION:

SAMPLE MOTION:

Motion Cooper-Jones Gilliam Dride

Second Emert Jenkins Townsend
Jones Watson




[This pageintentionally left blank]



Board of Supervisors
Agenda Summary

Meeting Date: July 8, 2025

Item #: 4

Department: Board of Supervisors

Staff Contact: Douglas P. Stanley / Sarah Elam Puckett

Agenda Item: Conlflict of Interest Act Disclosures
SUMMARY:

The Chair will ask if any member of the Board of Supervisors has a conflict or disclosure regarding
any item pending before the Board of Supetvisors, per the requirements of the VVirginia State and Local
Government Conflict of Interests Act. A disclosure form is attached, if needed.

COST:
ATTACHMENTS:
RECOMMENDATION:

SAMPLE MOTION:

Motion Cooper-Jones Gilliam Pride

Second Emert Jenkins Townsend
Jones Watson




STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE

DECLARATION OF INTEREST

1. Transaction Under Discussion/Consideration:

2. Nature of Public Official’s Personal Interest Affected by the Transaction:

3. Identify Membership in Business, Profession, Occupation or Group of Members that are
Affected by the Transaction:

4. 1do hereby certify and declare that I am able to participate in the above identified
transaction fairly, objectively and in the public interest: Yes No

Signature: Date:

DECLARATION OF ACCURACY

I, the undersigned, certify that all statements in this statement of disclosure are true and
correct to the best of my knowledge, are accurate and complete, and include all information
required by the Virginia Conflict of Interest Act, Title 2.2, Chapter 31, of the Code of Virginia.

Signature: Date:

Print Name:

Address:




Board of Supervisors
Agenda Summary

Meeting Date: July 8, 2025

Item #: 5

Department: Human Resources
Staff Contact: Crystal Baker
Agenda Item: Recognitions

Summary: “Recognitions” is an opportunity for the Board of Supervisots to recognize
achievements in our community, focusing on the accomplishments of students, employees, and our
citizen volunteers who setve the County of Prince Edward.

Employee of the Month:

Prince Edward County is proud to recognize Sergeant Kim Green as our Employee of the
Month for July!

Sergeant Green has dedicated seven years of exceptional service to Prince Edward County,
and her hard work, loyalty, and dedication have not gone unnoticed. She is 2 phenomenal co-worker
who consistently goes above and beyond, often covering her shift and picking up others, especially
aftet-hours, to support her team.

Kim is deeply respected and appreciated by the Sheriff’s Office staff, the courtroom
personnel, and many others throughout the county. She plays a vital role in ensuring courtroom
operations run smoothly and efficiently. From scheduling court appearances for in-state and out-of-
state inmates to tackling unexpected issues head-on, Kim handles every challenge with grace,
professionalism, and a can-do attitude.

Her proactive approach, team spirit, and unwaveting dedication make her an invaluable asset
to the Sheriff’s Office.

Please join us in congratulating Sergeant Kim Green on this well-desetved recognition.
Thank you, Kim, for all you do!

Motion Cooper-Jones Gilliam Pride
Second Emert Jenkins Townsend
Jones Watson




[This pageintentionally left blank]

10



Board of Supervisors
Agenda Summary

Meeting Date: July 8, 2025

Item #: 6

Department: Board of Supervisors

Staff Contact: Douglas P. Stanley / Sarah Elam Puckett
Agenda Item: Public Participation

SUMMARY: Public Participation is a time set aside for citizens to share their thoughts, ideas and concerns. An
official record is made of each person’s contribution tonight and will be directed to the County Administrator for follow-
up; any necessary follow-up will be noted and tracked. Follow-up may consist of an immediate response, or planned
action by the County Administrator or Board, or by placement on a future Board agenda. Tonight’s agenda cannot be
changed, because the public needs advance knowledge of and the opportunity to review related materials regarding items
addressed by the Board. To further assist public information, the Board requests our Administrator, Attorney or county
staff to immediately correct any factual error that might occur.

OPPORTUNITIES FOR PUBLIC PARTICIPATING & PUBLIC INPUT

Public Participation and Public Hearing comments for County meetings will be received by Katin
Everhart, Deputy Cletk to the Board of Supetvisors, using one the following methods:

1. Written Comments: Please limit word count to no more than 500 words. Comments must be
received by 2:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.

a. Mailed: Board of Supervisors
P.O. Box 382, Farmville, VA 23901.

b. E-Mailed: Board of Supervisors: board@co.prince-edward.va.us
Planning Commission: info@co.prince-edward.va.us

2. Verbal Comments: Citizens may also participate remotely during the meeting. Using the
meeting call-in information provided, citizens may phone-in to the meeting and provide
comments during the Public Participation/Public Hearing portion of the agenda;
however, citizens must pre-register with the County Administratot’s Office at 434-392-8837 by
2:00 p.m. the day of the meeting. Callers must be on the line and teady to speak when called
upon by the Chair. Please state your name and district of residence. Based upon the # of pre-
registered speakers, the Chair will determine the time allotted to each speaker.

Attachments: Public Participation Tracking Form

Recommendation: None.

Motion Cooper-Jones Gilliam Pride

Second Emert Jenkins Townsend
Jones Watson

11



SNLVLS

N A

MUVINGY  31vd
1viday NUVINTY

5019

PDIDVYL LNd 12119nd

HNEVYINGY
N EARED)

Vi

el

4}

11

ot

T
YIGINNN
N3LI

12



e eeagunanyss®® i ¥ .
AN

YA

Board of Supetvisors
Agenda Summary

Meeting Date: July 8, 2025
Item #: 7
Department: Board of Supervisors
Staff Contact: Douglas P. Stanley / Sarah Elam Puckett
Agenda Item: Board of Supervisors Comments
SUMMARY:
The Board has set aside ten minutes for Board members to respond to citizen input from Public
Participation.
Cost:
Attachments:
Recommendation: None.

Sample Motion:

Pride

Townsend

Motion Cooper-Jones Gilliam
Second Emert Jenkins
Jones

Watson

13



[This pageintentionally left blank]

14



Board of Supervisors

Agenda Summary
Meeting Date: July 8, 2025
Item #: 8-a
Department: Board of Supervisors
Staff Contact: Karin Everhart
Agenda Item: Approval of Minutes
SUMMARY:
Attached are draft minutes for the Board’s review and approval.
June 10, 2025 @ 6:00 p.m.
June 10, 2025 @ 7:00 p.m.
Cost:
Attachments: Board minutes.
Recommendation: Approval.
Sample Motion:
Motion Cooper-Jones Gilliam Pride
Second Emert Jenkins Townsend
Jones Watson

15



June 10, 2025

At the special meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Prince Edward County, held at the Court House, thereof, on
Tuesday, the 13% day of May, 2025, at 6:00 p.m., there were present:

Pattie Cooper-Jones
J. David Emert
Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.
Victor “Bill” Jenkins
Odessa H. Pride
Jerry R. Townsend
Cannon Watson
Absent: E. Harrison Jones

Also present: Douglas P. Stanley, County Administrator; Cheryl Stimpson, Director of Finance; Crystal Baker,
Finance Manager; Sharon Harrup, President/CEOQ, STEPS, Inc.; Shawn Rozier, Vice-President of Housing, STEPS,
Inc.; and Katie Hamlett, Vice-President of Administration, STEPS, Inc.

Chairman Jenkins called the special meeting to order.

In Re: STEPS. Inc.

Sharon Harrup, President and CEO, STEPS, Inc., presented an overview of the programs and services
provided by STEPS, Inc.to the constituents of Prince Edward County. She stated that Supervisor J erry Townsend
and Crystal Baker currently serve on their board, and that Supervisor Pride previously served. She then presented a
brief history of the organization from 1982 to 2013, how it began and where it is currently.

Ms. Harrup stated that in 2014, STEPS took over the homeless services programs to provide shelter, rapid
rehousing, and prevention; she said this is an extremely intense program because it runs 24/7/365 and staff has
frequent interaction with law enforcement at all hours. She said that in 2014, they became the newest Community
Action Program in Virginia; in addition, they absorbed all other governor-designated mandates such a Tri-annual
community needs assessment, the Tripartite Board, and there are 58 independent community service block grant
standards that have to be met. In 2015, STEPS took on the HeadStart program and expanded the operation, from
programs and fiscal, but also facilities. Since 2022 to the current period, STEPS provides Workforce housing and
housing for those that cannot afford the market-rate rents, and partnered with Longwood University; they were not
successful in that venture but learned that they need to own the property to have complete control of the site. In

2023, they offered Violence Prevention services to provide advocates to go to court with victims, and STEPS also

16



provides emergency shelter as part of that service. In 2024, STEPS purchased 51 acres of property at Israel Hill to
expand their services; she reviewed the process taken to date and what still needs to be completed. She added that
they have asked Moton [Museum] to help, to make sure that whatever is done pays homage to the descendants that
are still living and the previously enslaved individuals that were set free. She said that currently, the homeless
population is in emergency status and has nowhere to go; STEPS, Inc. would like to purchase another small piece of
property upon which they will build ten “micro homes™ for individuals and families to use as they progress through
the programs. Ms. Harrup then expressed appreciation for sharing some of the ARPA funds with STEPS for this
purpose.

Ms. Harrup said STEPS responded to community and regional needs over the past years, absorbing two
complete agencies. She said those two organizations had their own infrastructure; the region is getting very good
return on their investment by not having to double the heads and back-office functions of agencies. In addition,
STEPS absorbed six programs, and now have three centers in Prince Edward County to handle Head Start.

Supervisor Pride asked if Longwood would be contacted [regarding the Israel Hill project]. Ms. Harrup
said Longwood University would “buy-in” through the Moton Museum.

Supervisor Pride said the process for accessing the micro homes. Mr. Rozier said STEPS would handle the
coordination of care assessment; when the calls come in, an assessment is done to determine the length of time
someone has been homeless and resources available. He said from that assessment, a determination would be made
if the applicant would qualify for the micro home transitional housing program; this would be a six-to-twelve-month
program. He said case management would assist them in getting permanent housing.

Ms. Harrup said STEPS has a list of support services they can provide, such as workforce development and
job training, Head Start or private child care, housing and how to work a budget. She said due to those programs
they are able to help the individual or family to meet those needs. She said there are great partnerships in the region
which is what will make it successful. She added the homes are transitional and are not meant to be permanent.

Ms. Hamlett expressed her appreciation for the time with the Board. She said she understands the Board
members face fiscal criticism every day. She reviewed program revenue and service delivery. She said they make
every effort to utilize the regional contribution and leverage it to its fullest potential. She said the Board’s
commitment to STEPS affords the organization the ability for additional federal, state and private funds. They were
eligible to leverage the 2024-2025 regional allocation of over $7 million. She said she is confident in saying there

aren’t many of the other requesters that can demonstrate the return on investment like this. She reviewed the flow

2
17



of funding for each area of service that STEPS provides. She said STEPS has a proven track record of adapting to
its current environment and in making do with what it has. She then reviewed a chart of unduplicated numbers of
service delivery in the various programs offered. She thanked the Board for their commitment to STEPS.

Ms. Harrup said while the corporate offices, the Workforce Development and job coaching services, the
homeless services are in Prince Edward County, STEPS staff goes into every county and is on the road a lot. She
said Prince Edward County is the single largest utilizer of services, this more than documents Prince Edward County
investment. She said that if the Board would like additional information, STEPS will provide that. She said the
unduplicated numbers are the truest and most fair measure [of services], but that does not mean that an individual is
there for just one service, and they are run for every eligibility for programs in case they are interested.

Supervisor Pride asked by Charlotte County is not a part [of this region]. Ms. Harrup said they were before
“HOPE” went out of business; she said the executive director of CPAC (HOPE) was previously an employee of
Charlotte County, and there had been some legal suits filed against Charlotte County. Charlotte County has asked
on two occasions if they could come back; the state department of Social Services that makes that determination
isn’t sure they are willing to let Charlotte County return. She said Tri-County and STEPS staff collaborate and
coordinate very well.

Shawn Rozier stated the main part of the housing unit to serve Charlotte County is the Domestic Violence
program. Tri-County gets homeless services.

Supervisor Emert said [the numbers for] Charlotte County are as high or higher in Head Start and bus trips;
Ms. Harrup said they run a community-based program in Head Start with infant, toddler and preschool services. She
said the bus trips are for picking up the employees with disabilities and bringing them to work. Further discussion
followed.

Supervisor Emert then asked what is “Skookum.” Ms. Harrup said it is a private contract with a non-profit
in Washington state, which is an Ability 1 provider to provide services on military bases and installations. She said
they were looking for a contractor that had Ability 1 knowledge and case management skills, so STEPS provided
two full time case managers, and they provide the support services to keep them working and also were able to help
with financial hardships.

Supervisor Gilliam asked about Campbell County. Ms. Harrup said Campbell used to be part of the service

area for some of the Workforce, but this past year, no one from Campbell County was served.

18



Supervisor Cooper-Jones thanked Ms. Harrup for providing housing; she said the last two [people helped]
are doing very well and are glad to be at Parkview [Gardens Apartments]. She added that one of the ladies had been
sleeping in a car in the hospital parking lot. Discussion followed.

Supervisor Emert asked if the Workforce Development includes the recycling program. Ms. Harrup said
yes, she said the Workforce Development numbers include that and is listed under “DARS.” She said there is one
young man in recycling that is being displaced; she said Amelia County stopped funding the FABS bus route through
that county so he had no way to get to work. She said that based on volumes with the Town of Farmville and
Hampden-Sydney, STEPS will try to retain the other employers and reduce their hours across the board. She said
their goal is to keep the recycling center open even though it is scaled back drastically; she said they are collecting
data on six months [of use] and may have to shut it down.

Supervisor Pride thanked Ms. Harrup for the detailed report.

Mr. Stanley said the utilization by Prince Edward County citizens is higher than neighbors. He said a similar
situation was that after ten years, Crossroads asked for double the budget, which is difficult; he said it is easier to
gradually increase the amount of support. He said that without STEPS, there would not be a domestic violence facility
in the region which would put the officers having to take citizens out of the region, the children would be away from
their support system at school and all the family connections. He said they are much better off staying in the
community.

Ms. Harrup said it is better to shelter the homeless in their home environment; she said one of the first things
that is assessed is why are they not working. She said there may be extenuating circumstances such as a mental
health disorder or a developmental disability, that they are not able to make good and informed choices. She said the
micro village will meet that niche need and provide the case managers and housing staff time to work with them,
refer them to the job coaches to help them find employment, and they will then be expected to pay part of the rent
for their micro home. She said the old tag line was “A hand up, not a handout,” and it still applies.

Mr. Rozier said there have been over 2,000 callers reaching out to staff for follow-up. He said a lot of time
is spent talking about reality; he said you can get on a subsidized waiting list, but if you want to get in the private
market, you have to boost your income.

Mr. Stanley said the resources are here [in Farmville], but he doesn’t see building in Burkeville, Keysville
or Dillwyn; it needs to be somewhere there is shopping, public transportation and access to the resources needed to

be able to survive.



Ms. Harrup said that when they were searching for property for the community, they originally partnered
with Virginia Supportive Housing that wanted to build two apartment complexes but that would require that every
person that would be placed there would have had to have been previously homeless. She said the community spoke
out against that; she said they stepped back to look at the needs of the community, to meet those needs but do it in a
respectful way to the current homeowners and adjoining landowners. She said over the next 12 months, a master site
plan will be produced that will be The Residence at Israel Hill, and there will be market-rate apartment buildings,
some of those units may have supportive housing units included. She said they are targeting five in each 24-unit
apartment building so they can be integrated. She said they are also looking at age-in-place homes, senior housing,
and to combine those with the Head Start and other childcare options to have them all in one. She said Habitat for
Humanity is already involved; she said they will either give, or sell at a low price, a couple of building lots for Habitat
homes. She said these neighborhoods and communities will all look alike, so there will be no way to distinguish
between the types of homes.

Supervisor Gilliam asked about checking on those around the property. Ms. Harrup stated she is working
with attorneys to do the clearing of the heirs; the property would be ideal and there would need very little excavating.
She said it is on Industrial Park Road between the jail and STEPS. She said they do not feel the micro homes are a
good fit for the Israel Hill property; that needs to be visually very different. Discussion of properties followed.

Mr. Rozier said they are about to initiate an archeological study for the history and the cemetery delineation;
the process will begin and that information will be shared with Cainan Townsend [at the Moton Museum]. Discussion
followed.

Supervisor Townsend said since he has been on the [STEPS] board, Ms. Harrup and the staff have done an
excellent job helping people in need; he said he supports STEPS, Crossroads, and Social Services.

Supervisor Emert asked if they see homelessness as a result of drug addiction or something else. Mr. Rozier
said there are a variety of causes; he said it includes drug addiction, mental health issues, unemployment and loss of
job, people losing their housing because the property is sold and they can’t pay the rent, and there are a small number
of veterans affected as well.

Ms. Harrup added that a significant percentage, almost 50% in the homeless services program are families.
Mr. Rozier added that in the last fiscal year, over 210 individuals were sheltered and 95 households, and 82 of them

were children. The year before, 60 were children.

20



Ms. Harrup said for the children, this is out of their control. She said sometimes it’s poor management, but
sometimes it is out of their control, such as the house they’re renting is sold. She said there is no affordable rental
around here for someone that is making minimum wage. She said there are households that just barely make ends

meet, and if they have one issue, it throws them into the categories for the services that are provided.

On motion of Supervisor Emert, seconded by Supervisor Watson, and adopted by the following vote:

Aye: Pattie Cooper-Jones Nay: None
J. David Emert
Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.
Victor “Bill” Jenkins
Odessa H. Pride
Jerry R. Townsend
Cannon Watson
Absent: E. Harrison Jones

the meeting was adjourned at 6:56 p.m.



June 10, 2025

At the regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Prince Edward County, held at the Court House, thereof, on
Tuesday, the 13" day of June, 2025, at 7:00 p.m., there were present:

Pattie Cooper-Jones
J. David Emert
Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.
Victor “Bill” Jenkins
Odessa H. Pride
Jerry R. Townsend
Cannon Watson
Absent: E. Harrison Jones

Also present: Douglas P. Stanley, County Administrator; Sarah Elam Puckett, Assistant County Administrator; and
Cheryl Stimpson, Director of Finance.

Chairman Jenkins called the June meeting to order.

Supervisor Pride offered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Supervisor Townsend made the following statement:

As a member of the Prince Edward County Board of Supervisors, 1, Jerry Townsend, am disclosing that I
have a personal interest in the transactions under Agenda Item 15-a, Appropriations for the FY 26 County Budget,
on the June 10, 2025 Board Agenda.

My wife is an employee of the Prince Edward County Public Schools, and I am an employee of the
Piedmont Regional Jail, both of which are funded in the FY 26 County Budget.

In accordance with Section 2.2-3112(B)(1) of the Code of Virginia, I am able to participate in the
discussion and vote on this agenda item, both objectively and in the public interest, as the County Budget affects a
group of more than three employees of the schools and the Piedmont Regional Jail.

I have filed a declaration of disclosure with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, a copy of which is

available for public review.

In Re: Recognitions

"Recognitions" is an opportunity for the Board of Supervisors to recognize achievements in our community,
with a focus on the accomplishments of students, employees and our citizen volunteers who serve the County of Prince

Edward.

22



Courtroom Deputy Robert Womack has been selected as the County's Employee of the Month for June!
Womack joined Prince Edward County in November 2012. He has been praised for his punctuality, reliability, and
"can-do" mentality. He consistently arrives early, performs his duties without disruptions to the Courts, and remains
dedicated to serving the citizens of Prince Edward County. We appreciate his hard work and dedication over the years

and look forward to many more!

In Re: Public Participation

Public Participation is a time set aside for citizens to share their thoughts, ideas and concerns. An official
record is made of each person’s contribution tonight and will be directed to the County Administrator for follow-up;
any necessary follow-up will be noted and tracked. Follow-up may consist of an immediate response, or planned
action by the County Administrator or Board, or by placement on a future Board agenda. Tonight’s agenda cannot
be changed, because the public needs advance knowledge of and the opportunity to review related materials regarding
items addressed by the Board. To further assist public information, the Board requests the Administrator, Attorney
or county staff to immediately correct any factual error that might occur.

Howard Armistead, Farmville, presented information on the current Director of the U.S. Department of
Health & Human Services actions and the dangers of COVID. He then reviewed a synopsis of his “Therapeutic
Strategy to Survive H5N1 Avian Influenza, Reduce Extreme HPAI Mortality Rates, and Improve Pandemic
Preparedness — Part 1: Early Therapy,” which had been requested by Senator Tim Kaine. He said this illness could be
as bad or worse than COVID-19 was, and recommended “SAN therapy.”

James Redford, Assistant Chief of the Prospect Fire Department, provided support for the Joint 911
Emergency Communications Center. He said this will help all emergency services to respond and fully support the

residents of Prince Edward County, and is long overdue.

In Re: Board of Supervisors Comments

The Board members welcomed all in attendance and thanked them for sharing their concerns and for their

participation.

In Re: Consent Agenda

On motion of Supervisor Emert, seconded by Supervisor Townsend, and carried:

23



Aye: Pattie Cooper-Jones Nay: None
J. David Emert
Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.
Victor “Bill” Jenkins
Odessa H. Pride
Jerry R. Townsend
Cannon Watson
Absent: E. Harrison Jones

the Board accepted the minutes of the meeting held May 13, 2025.

In Re: Business Partner Update

The "Business Partner Update" is an opportunity for the Board to hear from the community's major employers
and business leaders.

Chelsey White, Director of Economic Development and Tourism, stated Dave Martin is an accomplished
executive with over 25 years of experience leading high-growth businesses in outdoor sporting goods and consumer
product industries. He currently serves as CEO of YakAttack, a Farmville based innovator and U.S. manufacturer of
premium kayak, fishing accessories and marine products. YakAttack has accelerated product innovation, expanded
into new markets including electric propulsion and surf fishing. She introduced Dave Martin.

Dave Martin, CEO, YakAttack, presented a brief history of YakAttack, commending Luther Cifers for
opening the business and showing passion about the community and providing people with skills and more than just
a job. He said has had the business now for about two years, and he has a value for family business and running a
business as a family, so his employees are more than employees. He said the community is hardworking and resilient,
care about each other. He said he has a great core of team members but as they grow, it’s difficult to find technical
leadership, such as designers and engineers. He said some of the challenges moving forward are finding people to fill
technically oriented jobs ; he said they want a business that is long-term, sustainable, and to bring partnerships to

educate and grow both inside and outside their building.

In Re: Economic Development & Tourism Department Report

Chelsey White, Director, reviewed the Economic Development & Tourism update.

24



Economic Development

SEID Grant application submitted - $500,000 for Transportation Infrastructure, including right-of-way
acquisition and utility relocation costs; $100,000 match required.

BIPOC support letter provided for Mary E. Branch Heritage Center (MEB) grant application - MEB is
applying for $1,000,000 in grant funds to support the stabilization of the existing structure; provide a roof
replacement; and provide other needed renovations (i.e., HVAC system, plumbing), while keeping true to
the building's architectural and historic integrity.

The Strategic Economic Development Plan (SEDP) is almost complete; the final revisions are being made,
and the full report will be presented at the June IDA meeting.

Harbor Freight Ribbon Cutting- coordinated event, represented the county, and carried out PR activities
leading up to and after the event.

Participated and represented the county in the Broadband Affordability working group led by CRC.
Provided administrative support for the proposed PE Business Park MBC node expansion project request
from Mid-Atlantic Broadband Communities Corporation (MBC).

TRRC 5 Pillar Meats Grant - $62,084.79 reimbursement #1 request submitted.

TRRC HIT Park Grant 2022 - $53,000 reimbursement #4 request submitted.

VEDP HIT Park Grant TY22 - $101,700 reimbursement #3 request submitted.

HIT Park Access Road Engineering Project - provided coordination and administrative assistance for the
ongoing project; phase 1 of the project funded by a TRRC Grant.

Tax Reinvestment Incentive Grants awarded: $7,787.03 awarded to Sandy River Distillery for TY 2024.
Coordinated finalization and execution of AFID 5 Pillar Meats performance agreement.

Participated in and coordinated Timmons + AVAIO HIT Park site development sync meetings, which are
ongoing every other week.

MEB brownfield redevelopment meeting - facilitated a meeting with engineering consultants to learn about
state and federal brownfield redevelopment funding opportunities.

SVCC Workforce Development meeting - represented the county to discuss a potential SVCC Workforce
Development site at MEB.

Provided support letter for the ARCH Foundation's application for the TRRC FY25 Southern Virginia
Program for the MILL Collective project.

Submitted VEDP BRSP FY25 grant application requesting $12,360,000 in funding for (1) the construction
of a 12" Waterline from HIT Park to Town of Farmville System - $3,130,000 and (2) a IMG Composite
Elevated Tank and Booster Pump for the HIT Park site - $923,000. Participated in a virtual site tour since
Longwood Place Matters Master Plan meeting - represented the county in discussions that focused on key
areas, including regional housing and economic development, downtown revitalization, and opportunities for
collaboration between Longwood University, the town, and the county.

Regular IDA Meeting- Scheduled for June 27; continued administrative support work, carrying out Treasurer
and Secretary duties (minutes, Treasurer's Reports, processing incoming and outgoing payments, grant
reporting responsibilities, record-keeping, etc.).

Continued participation in economic development programs, collaborations, and educational opportunities
through regional and state organizations, including VEDP, SOVA, Longwood SBDC, RISE, VDACS and
VEDA.

Tourism

Employment Update: We welcomed a new part-time travel counselor. Her name is Shirley Jackson Brown,
and she is a great addition to the team. We are now fully staffed at the Visitor Center.

PECTC: The PECTC regular meeting was held on April 16th. The next regular meeting will be held on June
18th. We discussed current projects and new tourism promotion initiatives.

Civil War Trails: On behalf of Virginia's Crossroads, Farmville/Prince Edward County hosted the bi-annual
Civil War Trails Board meeting in early April. This is the first time Farmville/PEC was selected to the board
during their bi-annual meeting as a member of the regional tourism marketing group, Virginia's Crossroads.
We represented the county, helped coordinate their accommodations, itineraries, and transportation, and

4

25



dined with the board, which ranged in representatives from Maryland, North Carolina, Tennessee, West
Virginia, and Pennsylvania for three days as they convened.

e VA250: We are excited that Moton was selected as the site to host the VA250 Mobile exhibit during the
weekend of September 13™. The date coincides with the weekend of the HOVA and also Longwood’s Parent
Weekend. Planning and promotion for the exhibit's arrival have commenced, including preparation to apply
for additional program grant funding.

e Phase IT Wayfinding Signage Project: The survey work has been completed to address all sign encroachment
issues. The cost estimate has been received for the new gateway signs that will be located at the entrance of
the county on Highways 15 (northbound and southbound) and 460 (eastbound and westbound), as well as on
Highway 307. There are five signs total. We hope to have funding for Phase I by next fiscal year. We could
still put out to bid this summer if we can finalize easements.

¢ The www.ExplorePrinceEdward.com website has been updated to include short-term rental lodging
providers.

e Check out the latest issue of Farmville the Magazine (Spring 2025, Vol. 10, No. 1), the grand opening for
the VA250 permanent exhibit was highlighted.

»  Staff has continued participation in local, regional, and state organizations, including THOYA, Virginia's
Crossroads, the Virginia Tourism Corporation, Farmville, Downtown Partnership, and VA250 state and
regional organizations in marketing the County's tourism opportunities.

Additionally, the Industrial Development Authority is requesting that the Board of Supervisors approve the
name of Enterprise Lane for the new access road in the County Business Park.

Supervisor Cooper-Jones made a motion, seconded by Supervisor Townsend, to accept the recommendation
of the Industrial Development Authority and approve the name “Enterprise Lane” for the new access road in the
County Business Park; the motion carried:

Aye: Pattie Cooper-Jones Nay: None
J. David Emert
Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.
Victor “Bill” Jenkins
Odessa H. Pride
Jerry R. Townsend
Cannon Watson
Absent: E. Harrison Jones

In Re: Recycling Services Contract

At its April 8, 2025 meeting, the Board authorized the issuance of an RFP for recycling services to manage
the removal, transportation and disposition of paper, cardboard, plastic and electronics recyclable materials. This was
a result of the County being notified by STEPS, Inc. that the charges for processing the County's recyclables would
be increasing substantially on July 1. The Recycling RFP was issued, advertised and distributed directly to multiple

companies. The County received one proposal from Elite Recycling LLC, located in Brookneal, Virginia.

26



Provided below is a cost analysis for recycling services using the County's tonnage data for Calendar Year

2024:
Actual 2024 Costs - | Estimated 25/26 Costs — STEPS | Estimated 25/26 Costs — Elite
STEPS
Paper / $ 3,547.88 $ 7,602.60 $49,200.00 !
Cardboard ($28 /ton) ($60 / ton) Commingled
Plastics $24,039.60 $52,260.00 ($40/ton+$175/pull transport fee)
($920/ton) ($2,000/ton)
Electronics $1,184.00 $1,184.00 0
Processing ($16/hour processing fee) ($16/hour processing fee) (Move in-house)
Synergy $13,793.35 $12,793.35 County will stop using Synergy,
($0.30/pound + $330 ($0.30/pound + 330 Transport Fee) | and transport sorted containers to
Transport Fee) Elite at $175/pull.
Elite — N/A N/A $3,500.00 2
Electronics (Anticipated revenue to help
Revue offset transport costs.)
Total $41,564.83 $73,839.95 $49,200.00

Footnote 1: Elite’s annual estimated cost is based on a transportation cost of $175.00/pull and $40.00 per ton
processing fee. Based on the County’s current tonnage, staff estimates 20 loads per month @ $175/pull + 15 tons per
month @ $40/ton = $4,100/month or $49,200/year.

Footnote 2: Elite will pay the County "Market Price/Hundred" (currently $8.00) for the electronics recycling. They
will pay a higher price for sorted computers. The Solid Waste Department proposes to move the sorting of electronics
in-house and have Elite transport it to Brookneal on an as-needed basis at $175.00/pull Staff estimates that the revenue
paid by Elite should cover the transportation costs for 20 loads.

Supervisor Emert questioned the contract with Elite Recycling would provide three years with no increase in
price. Mrs. Sarah Elam Puckett, Assistant County Administrator, stated lock-in pricing would be included in the
negotiations for the contract.

Supervisor Townsend made a motion, seconded by Chairman Jenkins, to approve entering into a contract
agreement with Elite Recycling for three years with the option of two additional two-year extensions and authorize
the County Administrator to execute the contract upon review by the County Attorney; the motion carried:

Pattie Cooper-Jones Nay: None
J. David Emert

Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.

Victor “Bill” Jenkins

Odessa H. Pride

Jerry R. Townsend

Cannon Watson

E. Harrison Jones

Aye:

Absent:

27



In Re: Public Hearing — Dogwood Properties Green Bay, VA, LL.C — Special Use Permit

The County has received an application request by Dogwood Properties Green Bay, VA, LLC for a Special
Use Permit to operate a restaurant on land totaling 1.5 +/-acres denoted as Tax Map Parcel 107-A-44 with an address
of 8306 Patrick Henry Highway Green Bay, VA on US Route 360, which is zoned Agricultural Conservation (A1)
District.

The public hearing notice was published in the May 28, 2025 and May 30, 2025 editions of the Farmville
Herald. The list of adjoining property owners and the sample letter sent to each were included in the Board packet.

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on May 20, 2025, where citizens spoke in favor the
application. The Planning Commission unanimously recommended approval of the Special Use Permit, forwarding
the request to the Board of Supervisors for Public Hearing. The Board was presented with a list of Potential Conditions
as recommended by the Planning Commission.

The purpose of the Special Use Permit is to allow for the establishment of a restaurant in an existing vacant
building. The building was formerly used as a gasoline station but has been closed for many years. County staff is of
the opinion the use is generally compatible with the zoning district but will have minimal impacts on surrounding
properties as far as traffic and noise.

Paul Ward, applicant, stated he has been in the restaurant business for 23 years. He said this would be a good
location, would seat 45 people inside, have a few outside tables and to-go orders, would open at 6:00 a.m. and would
have a full menu and serve breakfast all day. He said they have already made modifications to the building.

Chairman Jenkins opened the public hearing.

There being no one wishing to speak, Chairman Jenkins closed the public hearing.

Supervisor Emert made a motion, seconded by Supervisor Townsend, to approve the request by Dogwood
Properties Green Bay, VA, LLC for the purpose of establishment of a restaurant with the following conditions; the
motion carried:

Aye: Pattie Cooper-Jones Nay: None
J. David Emert
Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.
Victor “Bill” Jenkins
Odessa H. Pride
Jerry R. Townsend

Cannon Watson
Absent: E. Harrison Jones

28



Special Use Permit — Dogwood Properties Green Bay, VA, LLC
Tax Parcel Map #: 107-A-44

CONDITIONS
SITE PLAN
1. Development activities on the site shall be limited to those as specified in the Special Use Permit Application

and Site Plan. The final locations of incidental facilities may be adjusted provided no such adjustment violates
any buffers, setbacks, or other statutory requirement. The concepts reflected in the filed special use permit
dated 03/30/2025 are hereby made part of these development conditions.

Final site plan approval for the Restaurant shall be submitted to the Prince Edward County Community
Development Department for final review and approval pursuant to Appendix B of the Prince Edward County
Code (Zoning Ordinance).

Any proposed expansion of the operation, change of activities or additional facilities or activities shall be
submitted to the Prince Edward County Planning and Community Development office for review prior to
implementation. Any changes may be subject to Permit amendment procedures, including Public Hearings.

All buildings within the property shall be developed as a cohesive entity ensuring that building placement,
architectural treatment, parking lot lighting, landscaping, trash disposal, vehicular and pedestrian circulation
and other development elements work together functionally and aesthetically.

All landscaping shall be mulched and maintained to the reasonable satisfaction of the Prince Edward County
Planning and Community Development Director. Any vegetation found to be of poor condition shall be
replaced and/or improved at the reasonable direction of the Planning and Community Development Director
or his designee.

ENVIRONMENTAL

6.

All pollution control measures, erosion and sediment control measures, storm water control facilities, and all
construction activities shall comply with the requirements of the appropriate federal, state, and local
regulations and ordinances.

All facilities for the provision of potable water and sanitation and wastewater disposal systems and food
preparation shall be approved by the appropriate local, state, or federal agency including but not limited to
Virginia Department of Health, Virginia Departments of Environmental Quality, Environmental Protection
Agency, etc.

Any development activities of a structural or land disturbing nature not specifically addressed by these
Conditions shall be in conformance with applicable provisions of federal, state, and local statues and
regulations.

TRANSPORTATION

9.

10.

All entrances to the sire shall be installed in accordance with and permitted by the Virginia Department of
Transportation.

All internal roads used for public access shall be of compacted earth or have a minimum of a four (4) inch
stone base and shall be paved with concrete, asphalt, or durable pervious paving material.

29



11.

Adequate area shall be provided on site to accommodate parking of all employees and patrons. It shall be the
responsibility of the Permittee to assure that employees and patrons park only on site and not on any highway
right-of-way, or on adjoining or adjacent parcels unless written consent is provided by the owner or owners
thereof.

GENERAL

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Restaurant hours of operation shall be limited to 6 a.m. until 8 p.m. daily.

Occupancy shall be limited to the determination by the Prince Edward County Building Official in
accordance with the 2021 Virginia Building Code.

Site signage shall be limited to a monument and storefront sign, as specified in Appendix B — Zoning, Section
3-104.5 (2) and Section 3-104.5 (3).

All exterior lighting shall be designed and installed so as to minimize glare onto adjoining properties or any
public access road. All lighting shall be full cut-off type fixtures.

Outdoor storage of trash containers shall be appropriately screened per Prince Edward Zoning Ordinance,
Section 4-200.15.

The Permittee is responsible for the appearance of the site including litter pick-up and other orderly site
appearance.

This Permit is non-transferable, except and unless written notice from the Permittee regarding the transfer,
and a signed document from the proposed new Permittee is received by the Planning and Community
Development Office which states that the new Permittee agrees to comply with all terms and Conditions
imposed with the original Permit Issuance. If the proposed new Permittee desires to amend the original Permit
Conditions, amendments must be addressed by the Prince Edward County Planning Commission and Board
of Supervisors through the Special Use Permit process.

Failure of Permittee to full conform to all terms and conditions may result in revocation of this Special Use
Permit if said failure or failures are not corrected or addressed to the satisfaction, not to be unreasonably
withheld, of the County within thirty (30) days of written notice from the County.

In Re: Public Hearing — Special Use Permit. Michael and Helen Rovea

Mr. Stanley announced that this was the date and time scheduled for a public hearing to receive citizen input

prior to considering a request filed by Michael and Helen Royea for a proposal to operate a rural events center on land

totaling 136.49 +/- acres denoted as Tax Map Parcel 055-A-32 with an address of 25943 Prince Edward Highway,

Rice, VA on US Route 460, which is zoned Agricultural Conservation (A 1) District. Notice of this hearing was

advertised according to law in the Wednesday, May 28, 2025 and Friday, May 30, 2025 editions of THE FARMVILLE

HERALD, a newspaper published in the County of Prince Edward.

30



The County has received an application request by Michael and Helen Royea for a Special Use Permit to
operate a rural events center on land totaling 136.49 + /- acres denoted as Tax Map Parcel 055-A-32 with an address
of 25943 Prince Edward Highway, Rice, VA on US Route 460, which is zoned Agricultural Conservation (A1)
District.

The public hearing notice was published in the May 28, 2025 and May 30, 2025 editions of the Farmville
Herald. The list of adjoining property owners and the sample letter sent to each were included in the Board packet.

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on May 20, 2025, where citizens spoke in favor and some
in opposition to the application. The Planning Commission unanimously recommended approval of the Special Use
Permit, forwarding the request to the Board of Supervisors for Public Hearing. The Board was presented with a list of
Potential Conditions as recommended by the Planning Commission.

The purpose of the Special Use is to allow for the establishment of a rural events center. County staff is of
the opinion the use is generally compatible with the zoning district but will have minimal impacts on surrounding
properties as far as traffic and noise.

Mr. Royea stated there is an existing 100” x 200’ arena and some of the concerns and conditions are related
to the lighting and PA system that were in place prior to their purchase of the property regarding the lighting and
sound; this has been removed and replaced with soft solar lighting. Mr. Royea said this site will be used as a wedding
and reception site, or for business meetings, fund raisers and family reunions. He said they have no intentions on
motor-cross or anything similar to be held. He said VDOT has approved the entrance, and there are 3.5 acres available
for parking. He added that lighting will be mostly solar but inside the building there will be electric lighting. He said
the 40° x 80’ building with 8” x 12’ lean-tos are a brand-new facility; he said they intend to enclose the site. He said
it is a picturesque environment. Mr. Royea stated the occupancy would be determined by water usage and septic
service, and said the Fire Marshall sets the occupancy. He said initially they requested occupancy of 125 plus staff,
but asked for an increase to approximately 200-250 (people) because of the square footage of 3,200.

Chairman Jenkins opened the public hearing.

There being no one wishing to speak, Chairman Jenkins closed the public hearing.

Supervisor Cooper-Jones made a motion, seconded by Supervisor Townsend, to approve the request by
Michael and Helen Royea for the purpose of establishment of a rural events center with the following conditions as

amended; the motion carried:

10

31



Aye: Pattie Cooper-Jones Nay: None
J. David Emert
Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.
Victor “Bill” Jenkins
Odessa H. Pride
Jerry R. Townsend
Cannon Watson
Absent: E. Harrison Jones

Special Use Permit - Michael and Helen Royea dba Red Hill Ranch LLC
Tax Map #: 055-A-32
CONDITIONS

SITE PLAN

1.

Development activities on the site shall be limited to those as specified in the Special Use Permit
Application and Site Plan. The final locations of incidental facilities may be adjusted

provided no such adjustment violates any buffers, setbacks, or other statutory requirement. The concepts
reflected in the filed special use permit dated 04/02/2025 are hereby made part of these development
conditions.

Final site plan approval for the Rural Events Center shall be submitted to the Prince Edward County
Community Development Department for final review and approval pursuant to Article IV Development
Standards of the Prince Edward County Code (Zoning Ordinance).

Any proposed expansion of the operation, change of activities or additional facilities or activities shall be
submitted to the Prince Edward County Planning and Community Development office for review prior to
implementation. Any changes may be subject to Permit amendment procedures, including Public Hearings.

All buildings within the property shall be developed as a cohesive entity, ensuring that building placement,
architectural treatment, parking lot lighting, landscaping, trash disposal, vehicular and pedestrian
circulation and other development elements work together functionally and aesthetically.

All landscaping shall be mulched and maintained to the reasonable satisfaction of the Prince Edward
County Planning and Community Development Director. Any vegetation found to be of poor condition
shall be replaced and/or improved at the reasonable direction of the Planning and Community Development
Director or his designee.

ENVIRONMENTAL

6.

All erosion and sediment control measures, storm water control facilities, and all construction activities
shall comply with the requirements of the appropriate federal, state, and local regulations and ordinances.

All facilities for the provision of potable water and sanitation and wastewater disposal systems shall be
approved by the Virginia Department of Health.

Any development activities of structural of land disturbing nature not specifically addressed by these
Conditions shall be in conformance with applicable provisions of federal, state, and local statues and
regulations.

11

32



TRANSPORTATION

9.

10.

1.

All entrance permits must be authorized by the Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT).
Development activities shall comply with all requirements of VDOT.

All internal roads used for public access shall be of compacted earth, or have a minimum of a four (4) inch
stone base, or shall be paved.

Adequate area shall be provided on site to accommodate parking of all employees and patrons. It shall be
the responsibility of the Permittee to assure that employees and patrons park only on site and not on any
highway right-of-way, or on adjoining or adjacent parcels unless written consent is provided by the owner
or owners thereof.

GENERAL

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Building occupancy shall be limited to the determination by the Prince Edward County Building Official in
accordance with the 2021 Virginia Building Code. Event attendance shall be determined by the Virginia
Health Department but shall not exceed a total 250 persons including staff.

All activities shall comply with Article II — Noise of the Prince Edward County Code. Events hours shall be
limited to 8 a.m. to 10 p.m. with quiet time from 10 p.m. to 8 a.m.

All exterior lighting shall be designed and installed so as to minimize glare onto adjoining properties or any
public access road. All lighting shall be full cut-off type fixtures.

Outdoor storage of trash containers shall be situated at the rear of buildings and shall be appropriately
screened.

The Permittee is responsible for the appearance of the site including litter pick-up and other orderly site
appearance.

This Permit is non-transferable, except and unless written notice from the Permittee regarding the transfer,
and a signed document from the proposed new Permittee is received by the Planning and Community
Development Office which states that the new Permittee agrees to comply with all terms and Conditions
imposed with the original Permit Issuance. If the proposed new Permittee desires to amend the original
Permit Conditions, amendments must be addressed by the Prince Edward County Planning Commission
and Board of Supervisors through the Special Use Permit process.

Failure of Permittee to full conform to all terms and conditions may result in revocation of this Special Use
Permit if said failure or failures are not corrected or addressed to the satisfaction, not to be unreasonably
withheld, of the County within thirty (30) days of written notice from the County.

In Re: Public Hearing — Green Bay Solar Farm. LLC. Special Use Permit

Mr. Stanley announced that this was the date and time scheduled for a public hearing to receive citizen input

prior to considering a Special Use Permit request by CEP Solar, LLC on behalf of Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC and a

petition to appeal pursuant to § 15.2-2232 of the Code of Virginia in order to make a determination that the project is

substantially in accord with the Prince Edward County Comprehensive Plan, and for the proposal to construct and

12

33



operate a SMWac solar energy facility on land totaling 67.8 +/- acres denoted as Tax Map Parcels 107-A-63 and 107-
A-64 located on Patrick Henry Highway (US Route 360), near its intersection with Cheatham Road (State Route 694),
which is zoned Agricultural Conservation (Al) District. Notice of this hearing was advertised according to law in the
Wednesday, May 28, 2025 and Friday, May 30, 2025 editions of THE FARMVILLE HERALD, a newspaper
published in the County of Prince Edward.

The County has received an application request by Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC for a Special Use Permit to
construct and operate a SMWac solar facility on land totaling 67.8 +/-acres denoted as Tax Map Parcels 107-A-63 and
107-A-64 located on Patrick Henry Highway (US Route 360), near its intersection with Cheatham Road (State Route
694), which is zoned Agricultural Conservation (A1) District.

The public hearing notice was published in the May 28, 2025 and May 30, 2025 editions of the Farmville
Herald. The list of adjoining property owners and the sample letter sent to each were provided in the Board packet.

The purpose of the Special Use is to allow for the location of a solar energy facility. The applicant has stated
that the proposed facility will not be seen nor heard and will not impact adjacent properties. Water quality will be
addressed according to Virginia Stormwater Management Permit requirements and the site will not generate any
significant amount of traffic, with the main traffic occurring temporarily during the construction phase, estimated to
be nine months from start until completion.

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on March 18, 2024, where there were letters submitted and
citizens that spoke who both in support or in opposition to the project. The Commission deemed the proposal to not
be substantially in accord with the Prince Edward County Comprehensive Plan and recommended denial of the SUP
due to the fact that it fosters and/or promotes land development in agricultural areas would have a visual impact to the
adjacent roadway, and the potential for runoff into an adjacent pond. Since the meeting, the applicant has reconfigured
the site plan to locate panels away from the road and has a letter of support from the landowner where the adjacent
pond is located. The applicant filed a petition to appeal pursuant to §15.2-2232 of the Code of Virginia in order to
make a determination that the project is substantially in accord with the Prince Edward County Comprehensive Plan.
A list of Draft Potential Conditions as recommended by staff was included in the Board packet.

Don Giecek, CEP Solar, said CEP is a Virginia based small business whose purpose is to partner with
landowners, communities and customers to deliver solar projects that will generate both environmental and economic

benefits to our Commonwealth. He said that Virginians take seriously the responsibility to deliver high quality solar

13

34



projects and are grateful with the working relationship with Prince Edward County and look forward to delivering a
project to be proud of. He introduced Rick Thomas, Timmons Group, and Karen Cohen, legal counsel with Gentry
Lock. He stated they have listened carefully to comments and deliberations from the community and neighbors. He
then introduced Henry Kingery, with CEP Solar.

Mr. Kingery stated this project has a capacity of up to 5MW, with estimated construction in 2027 and with
an estimated span of 40 years. He said this land is primarily clear-cut timber land and the project will span two private
parcels with approximately 68 acres, with 45 acres of those that are developable, but less than 30 acres will be used
for solar panels. He said there are a lot of factors that go into selecting a site for this type of facility; he said they must
agree with the Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Ordinance. He said aesthetics, proximity to Route 360 and neighbors,
and downstream impacts caused the project to previously not be found in substantial accord. He said these issues
have been resolved and have new information regarding evolving neighbor sentiment. Mr. Kingery then reviewed the
original site plan and compared the revisited site plan. He said in the place where the panels were moved from, it will
be a timber reserve area to grow commercial timber.

Mr. Kingery stated the project is 400° from adjacent residences and the roads, and the panels cannot be seen.
He stated that the risk of downstream sediment and erosion control has been reduced. He said only 50% of a site can
be disturbed at a time which would be 15 acres and will maintain top soil. Mr. Kingery said they met with Mr. Bailey
regarding the concern for his pond, and read a letter of support for the project from neighbor Mack Bailey. He said
they have received verbal support from the northern neighbor.

Mr. Kingery said there are two construction entrances on Cheatham Road and designed in accordance with
VDOT requirements. There is a point of interconnection planned along Route 360 and this project will connect
directly to the distribution lines. He added there will be buffer planted along Cheatham Road to minimize visibility
along that right of way.

Mr. Kingery then reviewed the environmental risk assessment as it pertains to the Sandy River Reservoir.
He said these are performed locally and there is no risk of leaching. He then discussed the risk of natural hazards,
stating the risks are low according to FEMA and NOAA. He said that to be responsive on site, they will add a Natural
Disaster Preparation Requirement to the Emergency Response Plan and have added supplemental insurance coverage,

and the Emergency Response coverage will include goals and responsibilities, emergency contacts, procedures that

14

35



are to take place in succession after the inclement weather events, and there will be a team ready to respond quickly
to any situations that may occur.

Mr. Kingery distributed and discussed a Solar Panel Recycling Facilities map and chart. He indicated there
is a very significant factor, based on the Solar Energy Industry Association’s Natural Recycling Program, that they
take their panels back; this includes Solaris, which is the first solar panel manufacturer in Bedford County. He said
this indicates that panel recycling is increasingly viable, private businesses are making investments, and lawmakers
are passing legislation. He then stated the first community outreach was held in December 2024. He reviewed
stakeholder concerns and the response in the form of conditions, along with site design changes. He said this project
provides economic benefits beyond tax revenue; there is a one-time pulse of activity during construction, sustained
activity during operations. He then reviewed an analysis and revenue comparison, which indicated $700,000 of solar
tax revenue with the solar project and $25,000 without the project.

Supervisor Gilliam asked if the project can still generate SMW with the reduction in the size of panel space.
Mr. Kingery said the type of panel and spacing can still generate SMW [of power].

Supervisor Emert questioned the pond on Mr. Bailey’s property due to potential runoff going to the Sandy
River Reservoir. Mr. Kingery stated they recognize there is concern about the sediment in the runoff; he said the
parcels in question is already clear-cut. He said removing the vegetation changed the erosion and sediment control;
he said they still have to maintain water quality pre- and post-development and have added conditions to that end.

Supervisor Emert clarified that he is concerned with anything else leaching into the Sandy River Reservoir.
Mr. Kingery said the panels do not leach hazardous materials [into the soil or water]; he added that the panels would
have to be shredded into centimeter-sized debris and soaked in acidic water to extract any materials out of them.

Supervisor Emert said this is a new technology and it is hard to say from something new that it cannot be
dangerous. Mr. Kingery said the scale of this use of solar is new, but the technology has been around for quite some
time. He said he understands the concern and hope the conditions address those concerns.

Chairman Jenkins opened the public hearing.

Brian Steffen, Leigh District, asked the risks to and what can be done to reduce the risks to the Sandy River

Reservoir.

15

36



Bryan Zaun, Leigh District, said the property cannot be walked as it is on a hill, and currently at the pond, it
is muddy. He asked how they plan to put [solar panels] on it. He said it is not far to the Sandy River Reservoir and
there would be major erosion.

Alan Fowlkes, Leigh District, asked the Board for its support for this project. He said they have modified
setbacks and addressed the water issues that were brought up at the Planning Commission [meeting]. He said this
project is a small-scale solar project and will help the diversify the tax base of this county and take some of the tax
burden off the citizens. He said Nottoway County has gone up 20% over two years on their real estate taxes, not
including a $20 million Courthouse they are mandated by the Judge to build. He said all counties require the same
from their operations and facilities and requirements of the government. He said this helps to attract businesses such
as data centers. He said at the last meeting, it was questioned why electric customers are being charged [for solar
power], and they should ask about the charge for the clean-up of the coal ash leaking out of the ponds into the James
River.

JoAnne Webb, Chesterfield, VA, said Mr. Fowlkes’ family goes back to the 1700s; she said the project is
well designed and is being executed properly. She said she firmly believes in property rights, but some landowners
are being denied opportunities for solar development.

Edwin Fowlkes thanked the Board for its time and service. He said this project has been thoroughly
reworked; he added they do not want pollution or problems either. He said this is an industrial-type thing and will
provide income for many years, and the energy that goes to the distribution lines can be used by the neighbors.

Dee Hobgood, Leigh District, said they are now beef farmers and is not involved in this project at all, but
there have been things that were said about noise from solar panels when they adjust. He said they are close to Route
360 with the traffic and large trucks and there are train tracks with hundreds of cars hauling coal towards the coast
and back. He said timber grows and is cut, then it grows back; like timber, solar is a crop. Crops use the sun to get
the nutrition, and solar uses the sun. It is clean and Prince Edward County needs to use it. He then discussed a report
regarding solar research from Virginia Tech and there have been no toxic issues from the panels, having experimented
with new panel heights where cattle can graze underneath the panels, and crops can grow under the panels, and is

called solar farming.

16

37



Anne Bowman, Leigh District, said the solar community has redone [the project] and is trying to be
considerate of everyone’s concerns and a good neighbor to produce clean energy. She said the tax revenue generated
would be greatly appreciated by all of the taxpayers.

David Jennings, Leigh District, expressed his opposition to the project on behalf of his mother, Judy Jennings.
He said the Planning Commission voted on this being not in accord with the Comprehensive Plan; he said the Board
needs to be proactive on these projects. He said they made a revision to the 75’ buffer so they can make more
conditions. He said if the Planning Commission found them not in accord, the project should be abandoned and a new
location should be the option. Concessions by the solar entity should not be deemed as a show of good will. He said
that on some of the properties, the site can be seen.

Supervisor Cooper-Jones asked if Mr. Jennings is on the same side as the proposed solar farm. Mr. Jennings
indicated on the map where he is in relation to the solar farm, stating he can see it when he comes out of the driveway.

Jody Hobgood, Leigh District, stated there were lots of storms with trees down, water in the roads, and power
outages. She said that in Texas, where the hailstorms demolished the solar panels and “dripped things out into the
soil.” She said there are no places in Virginia [to recycle], and stated her opposition.

There being no one further wishing to speak, Chairman Jenkins closed the public hearing.

Supervisor Cooper-Jones made a motion, seconded by Supervisor Townsend, to find that Green Bay Solar
Farm, LLC, proposed SMWac solar energy facility as described in the Special Use Permit application, as said proposal
has been revised by the applicant, is substantially in accord with the Prince Edward County Comprehensive Plan, and
approve the request for a Special Use Permit with the following conditions; the motion carried:

Aye: Pattie Cooper-Jones Nay: J. David Emert
Victor “Bill” Jenkins Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.
Odessa H. Pride
Jerry R. Townsend

Cannon Watson
Absent: E. Harrison Jones

Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC
PRINCE EDWARD COUNTY, VIRGINIA
Special Use Permit Conditions

SECTIONL  GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. This Special Use Permit applies to the following properties for which a special use permit application
was submitted: Tax Map Parcel Identification Numbers:

107-A-63, 107-A-64. The Special Use Permit application was submitted on 02/21/2025 by Green Bay
Solar Farm, LLC on behalf of the owners of the said properties, and compliance with these conditions

17

38



is the express duty of, and these conditions shall bind, the Applicant and any assignee of the Applicant
who operates the Solar Facility.

The Site shall be developed, constructed, operated, and decommissioned in compliance with all of the
following:

All applicable federal, state, and local laws, statutes, ordinances, and regulations.

All written agreements entered into between the Applicant and the County, expressly
including, but not limited to, a Solar Facility Siting Agreement.

The Site Plan approved by Prince Edward County.

The Decommissioning Plan approved by Prince Edward County.

The Emergency Response Plan approved by Prince Edward County.

The Construction Traffic Management Plan approved by Prince Edward County.

The Erosion and Sediment Control Plan approved by Prince Edward County.

The Stormwater Management Plan approved by Prince Edward County and/or DEQ.

op

F@ e o

Violation by the Applicant or by any one or more of Applicant’s agents, employees or contractors of any
terms, conditions, or provisions of any of the foregoing shall constitute a violation of this Special Use Permit
if Applicant has failed to begin and diligently pursue (or has failed to cause its agents, employees or
contractors, as applicable, to begin and diligently pursue) correction of the violation within thirty (30) days
after written notice by the County to Applicant.

The following terms shall have the following meanings if or when used in these Conditions:

a. ""Abandoned" means the discontinuation of power generation by the Solar Facility for a
period of at least 180 consecutive days, except in the event of a force majeure event requiring
reconstruction.

b. ""Applicant” " means Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC.

c. “Approved Site Plan" means the detailed drawing showing all equipment, excavation,

landscaping, and other changes or improvements to be made to the real property or properties
for the development of the Project following approval of the Special Use Permit Application
by the Prince Edward County Planning Commission, and the Prince Edward County Board of
Supervisors and administrative review and approval by Prince Edward County staff.

d. "Board” means the Board of Supervisors of Prince Edward County, Virginia.

e. “Commercial Operation” means the period beginning on the date that the sale of electricity
generated from the Solar Facilities to a third party through the Grid commences pursuant to a
Power Purchase Agreement and terminating contemporaneously with the commencement of

Decommissioning.
f. “County” means Prince Edward County, Virginia.
g. "County Administrator" means the county administrator of Prince Edward County, Virginia.
h. “Decommission” or "Decommissioning" or "Decommissioning Activities'" means the

work on the Solar Facility to remove improvements on the real property and to otherwise
comply with the Decommissioning Plan.

i “Decommissioning Commencement Date” means the earliest date on which
Decommissioning is required to begin under the terms set forth in these Special Use Permit
Conditions.

J ""Decommissioning Plan" means the plan for Decommissioning Activities submitted by
Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC and approved by the County.

k. "Grid" means the interconnected network for delivering electricity from producers to

consumers (consisting of generating stations, electrical substations, high voltage transmission
lines, and distribution lines that connect individual customers) to which the Project is
connected and provides power.

L "Investor Owned Utility Company'' means an electric utility as defined in Section 56-576
of the Code of Virginia.

18

39



"Operator" means any party which undertakes the management, maintenance, and operation
of the Solar Facility, including, but not limited to, as assignee of the Applicant.

“Power Purchase Agreement” means the written agreement pursuant to which electricity
generated from the Solar Facilities is sold to a third party.

“Project” means the Solar Facility on the parcel, including the following: (i) the development,
design, procurement, construction, installation, commissioning, testing, interconnection, and
start-up of the Solar Facility on the Site; (ii) the operation, repair, replacement, and
maintenance of the Solar Facility on the Site; and (iii) the decommissioning and removal of
the Solar Facility from the Site.

"Related Entity'" or "Related Entities" means any two or more entities described in L.R.C.
§ 267(b).

“Site" or ""Solar Facility Site' means all properties to be leased or purchased by the Applicant
or any Related Entity for development in connection with the Project, identified as follows:
Prince Edward County Tax Map Identification Numbers 107-A-63, 107-A-64.

“Site Plan" means the detailed drawing showing all equipment, landscaping, roads, retention
facilities, fencing, buffers, and other changes or improvements to be made to the real property
or properties for the development of the Project.

“Solar Facility” or “Solar Facilities” means the Site together with all equipment, apparatus,
or other items of personal property used for the construction, operation, or decommissioning
of the Project.

“Surety Review Date” means the date by which the Applicant will update the cost estimate
in the Decommissioning Plan every five (5) years and reimburse the County for the actual and
reasonable, out-of-pocket costs of each such independent review and analysis by a licensed
engineer of each decommissioning cost estimate revision.

The Site shall be developed in general conformance with the information and exhibits submitted with
the Special Use Permit application (the “SUP” Application), except as modified by associated
conditions, the Approved Site Plan, and as required by the land development ordinances of Prince
Edward County.

This Special Use Permit (SUP) is issued to the owners of the properties for which the special use permit
application was submitted (the Properties) and shall run with the land unless and until this SUP is

revoked,

expires, or is voided.

An Approved Site Plan shall be required for this use.

Prior to the issuance of construction permits, the Applicant shall record in the Circuit Court Clerk’s
Office of Prince Edward County, Virginia a plat of survey delineating the property boundary and total

acreage.

The Applicant shall submit an Emergency Response Plan (the “ER Plan”) with the submission of the Site
Plan. The ER Plan shall address disaster preparedness, response and clean-up, including fire suppression
methods and a severe weather plan that can be deployed during both the construction and operation of the
The ER Plan shall also include a program of education and training to be provided for County
emergency response staff covering onsite emergency response. Upon commencement of installation or
construction of the Project and through commercial operation until decommissioning is completed, the
Applicant will obtain and maintain in effect insurance coverage in commercially reasonable types and

project.

amounts, to include property and casualty insurance and sudden and accidental pollution coverage.

Unless approved in writing by the County, no signage shall be permitted on the Site; except that signage
containing notices, warnings, or other information, if required by law or by applicable codes and
standards, or deemed by the County to be in the interest of the safety and welfare of the community,
shall be required.

19

40



10.

11.

12.

Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC, or owner, will reimburse, or cause to be reimbursed, to the County all out-
of-pocket costs and fees incurred for professional services engaged for purposes of assisting the County
during the application and permitting process and during and through construction, including, but not
limited to, legal fees and consulting fees; however legal fees shall not be assessed to Green Bay Solar
Farm, LLC after construction is completed. The purpose of the reimbursement payments is to defray
the costs and expenses incurred by the County in connection with (i) the zoning and permitting
processes related to the approval of the Solar Facility, to include litigation against Prince Edward
County for said approval (“Zoning Actions™); provided, however, the reimbursement for Zoning Actions
is subject to a maximum reimbursement of $25,000, (ii) the permitting process with federal and state
agencies, as applicable, and (iii) the construction of the Solar Facility. Should the special use permit
application submitted by Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC for the Project not be approved by the County,
no reimbursement under this paragraph will be owed by Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC to the County.

The Project owner or operator will, in coordination with Prince Edward County Emergency
Management, provide education and training on how to respond in the event of a fire or other emergency
on the premises. “Knox Boxes” or coded padlocks will be added at access gate locations, so that
emergency services resources can gain access inside the security fence during the construction phase of
the project.

Terms and conditions pertaining to revenue share payments and voluntary payments shall be set forth
in a siting agreement between Applicant and the County.

SECTIONII. = BUFFERS, HEIGHTS, AND SETBACKS

13.

Buffers throughout the Site shall include the following:

a. All setbacks shall be no less than those shown on the site plan approved by Prince Edward
County.
b. The Site Plan will identify a maximum extent of Project area, outside of which solar panels,

or other equipment will not be located. The solar panels, or other equipment of the Solar
Facility will not be located within the standard setbacks established by Section 7-110 (D) of
the County Ordinance.

c. Solar panels will only be located on the north side of Flippen Creek and associated wetlands
as shown on the Site Plan.

d. Solar panels will be set back a distance of four hundred (400) feet from existing residential
structures on parcels 107-A-64A and 107-A-64C.

e. Inverters will be set back a distance of three hundred (300) feet from all exterior property lines.

f. The Site Plan will include a vegetative buffering plan (the “Vegetative Buffer Plan”) that will
limit the visibility of the Solar Facility and from the public rights-of-way adjacent to the Site.
For purposes of this Condition, “Solar Facility” does not include the perimeter security
fencing, gravel access road, or interconnection equipment. Also, the “Solar Facility” is not an
objectionable feature, within the meaning of the County Zoning Ordinance Section 7-110 (F).
All vegetative buffering areas, as shown on the Vegetative Buffer Plan, shall enable insolation
of the Solar Facility and may be both natural and planted, shall be a part of the approved
Project, and should be protected from harvest so long as the Site is operated as a solar facility.

20

41



g. Vegetative buffering areas shall be installed (pursuant to the screening suggestions attached as
Exhibit A) within 3 months of substantial completion of the fencing installation. Vegetative
buffer punch list and repairs may continue during Project construction and, as necessary, will
be managed throughout the life of the Project to ensure health and preservation of the
vegetation. Any vegetative buffering that is dead during the operating period shall be removed
and replaced in conformance with the approved site plan, within a six (6) month time period
during a typical growing period. The type and height of replacement vegetation shall be similar
to that of which was originally planted during construction. In the event that the vegetative
buffering is severely damaged due to an unusual weather occurrence or natural catastrophe,
the Project shall have one year or one growing season, whichever is sooner, to replace or
replant.

h. Prior to commercial operation, the Project will plant commertcial timber in the Timber Reserve
Area as detailed in the Site Plan. The project owner will maintain the timber in accordance
with silvicultural best practices for the life of the Project.

i Electrical lines leaving the solar facility shall be underground until the point of reaching the
first pole outside of the facility as to not impact the screening plan unless: (a) otherwise
approved by the County in the final site plan; (b) otherwise approved by the County in
connection with building permit approvals, including electrical permits; (¢) underground lines
conflict with other applicable permitting standards, including environmental permits; or (d)
underground lines are not reasonably practical given site constraints.

J- Any historical resources noted in the Virginia Department of Historic Resources Map that are

listed or eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places must be identified,
marked, and preserved at a setback approved by the Virginia Department of Historic
Resources, as reflected on the Site Plan.

k. The maximum height of ground mounted systems, equipment, and structures, as measured
from the grade or base of the improvements to the highest point, shall not exceed eighteen (18)
feet in height. Excluded from this height requirement are overhead electric distribution and
transmission lines and poles, project substation, and utility switchyard.

SECTIONIII. CONSTRUCTION, TRAFFIC, and ROAD REPAIRS

14.

15.

16.

Subject to compliance with applicable site safety requirements and upon reasonable prior notice, the
County Administrator, building official, zoning administrator, or environmental codes and compliance
officer, or any party or parties designated by any one or more of those county officials, including other
federal, state, or local government officials, shall be allowed to enter the Site at any time during
construction. Once the facility has commenced Commercial Operation, subject to compliance with
applicable Site safety requirements, County officials may enter the Site upon at least one week’s
advance notice to the Solar Facility liaison.

All construction entrances for the Site shall be in general conformance with the information and exhibits
submitted with this Special Use Permit application and must be authorized and approved by the Virginia
Department of Transportation (VDOT).

All construction activity shall be conducted during daylight hours Monday-Saturday. Activities
allowed on Sundays include only the following: onsite planning, walking and riding the Site by
passenger vehicle (not heavy construction trucks or equipment), office work, and other activities that
do not produce large quantities of traffic on the surrounding roads or loud construction noises within
the Site. The Applicant shall comply with the Prince Edward County Noise Ordinance Chapter 46,
Article IT during operation but shall not be required to do so during construction.

21

42



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

All heavy construction traffic, including, but not limited to, dump trucks, tractors and trailers, supplier
vehicles, and trucks hauling equipment shall enter the site at the designated private driveway entrances.

The Applicant shall submit a Construction Traffic Management Plan (“CTMP”) as part of the Site Plan.
The CTMP shall address traffic control measures, an evaluation of the condition of the public roads
along the Delivery Routes prior to construction, and a description and an estimate of any anticipated
repairs to public roads that may arise due to damages attributable to construction of the Solar Facilities,
which CTMP must be reviewed by a third-party selected by the County and paid by, and at the sole cost
of, the Applicant.

Dust containment measures shall be utilized at all times, as necessary, to contain dust from constituting
a nuisance to nearby residents.

No burning of stumps and/or debris will be allowed onsite at the subject solar facility.

During construction, the Project will minimize grading and cut/fill for roads and structures when
leveling or reducing slope grade changes for panel arrays, wherever possible. The Project will retain
topsoil onsite, minimize topsoil removal wherever possible, and maintain temporary topsoil stockpiles
in an aerated condition, covered with deep-rooted vegetation and kept away from wet areas. The Project
will return topsoil to disturbed areas from stockpiles as quickly as site closure conditions allow, or
utilize direct haul strategies to immediately move actively collected topsoil to adjacent soil
reconstruction areas.

The Solar Facilities shall be enclosed within chain link security fencing not less than six (6) feet in
height.

The Project will not utilize permanent lighting. If installed at a later date, lighting will be downward
facing, motion activated security lighting located at the Project entrance gate or at the control panels
near the equipment pad. Lighting shall be limited to that minimally required for safety and operational
purposes and shall be full cut-off type fixtures.

Prior to commencement of construction, the Applicant shall provide the County a bond equal to 100%
of the cost of the anticipated repairs to be made to the public road along the Delivery Routes, as defined
in paragraph 25 below, including the entire public right of way along the Delivery Route. The bond
may be in the form of a letter of credit, a surety bond, or a cash bond given to the County, to be held by
the County without interest, but the form of any surety bond must be approved by the County
Administrator. The County will release, return, and terminate the roadway surety upon completion of
construction and Commercial Operation of the Project.

Subject to the CTMP, Delivery Routes to the site shall include U.S. Route 360 (Patrick Henry
Highway), to State Route 694 (Cheatham Road), to the proposed site entrance(s) as shown in Appendix
A — Site Plan with Entrances of the SUP application. The Delivery Routes are subject to modification
pursuant to direction or recommendation from VDOT and approval by the Zoning Administrator.

The Solar Facilities shall have commenced construction within three (3) years of approval. The Board
of Supervisors may approve one extension of up to one (1) year each upon written request from the
Applicant detailing the need for an extension.

Solar panels will be constructed, maintained, and operated in accordance with national industry
standards and regulations including the National Electrical Code, International Fire Code of the
International Code Council and the National Fire Protection Association Fire Code, as provided in Va.
Code 15.2-2286. In the event of a conflict between the national industry standards and these Conditions,
the national industry standards shall control so that as technology advances, updated technology may
be used by the Applicant. Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, the use of any of the following
materials at any time, whether in construction, maintenance, or operation of the facility, is expressly

22

43



28.

29.

prohibited: cadmium, tellurium, GEN X, field-applied Teflon® coating, or any other materials
prohibited by federal or state agencies. All solar panels shall be “BloombergNEF Tier 1 rated and have
passed the Toxicity Characteristic Leaching Procedure (TCLP) test, as administered by the United
States Environmental Protection Agency.

No panels, inverters, pyranometers, substations, or any other component of the Solar Facility, except
fencing, shall be located in a floodplain.

Upon completion of the construction of the Solar Facilities, the Applicant shall submit a post-
construction evaluation of the condition of the roads along the Delivery Routes to the County
Administrator for approval. The post-construction evaluation shall include a plan for repairing any
damage caused to the public roads along the Delivery Route directly attributable to the Applicant. The
Applicant shall be responsible for causing such repairs to be completed to the satisfaction of the VDOT
and shall be responsible for coordination of repairs with VDOT. All roadway repairs along the Delivery
Routes shall be made at the sole expense of the Applicant.

SECTION IV. ENVIRONMENTAL

30.

31.

32.

33.

The Applicant shall submit a Stormwater Management Plan and an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan
as part of the Site Plan. The Applicant shall reimburse, or cause to be reimbursed to, the County all
reasonable, out-of-pocket costs incurred by the County related to retaining such third-party inspectors,
plan reviewers, and advisors as reasonably necessary for project review and inspections. All such
payments shall be remitted to the County within thirty (30) days of invoicing. The County shall retain
the right to inspect the Site to verify the findings of the third-party inspectors upon reasonable, prior
notice and subject to compliance with Site safety requirements. The phasing of land disturbance shall
be detailed in the Erosion and Sediment Control plan and accompanying project narrative.

Solar panels are to be considered unconnected impervious areas when performing post-development
water quantity and quality calculations in accordance with the Department of Environmental Quality’s
March 29, 2022 Memorandum regarding Post-Development Stormwater Management for Solar
Projects.

Stabilization of the Site shall be maintained at all times in compliance with Virginia Department of
Environmental Quality (DEQ) standards, rules, requirements, and regulations. The Applicant and the
Operator, or either one of them, shall notify the County within twenty-four (24) hours of receiving any
DEQ notice of less than full compliance by the Project and shall, within forty-eight (48) hours of receipt,
provide the County with a copy of the notice. Thereafter, the Applicant and the Operator, or either one
of them, shall provide to the County within forty-eight (48) hours of transmission or receipt copies of
all correspondence with DEQ regarding Project noncompliance issue until such time as the matter is
fully resolved to the satisfaction of DEQ. In order to ensure orderly development of the Solar Facility
and to protect the stabilization and environmental integrity and quality of the Site, no more than fifty
percent (50%) of the total site development area shown on the Approved Site Plan may be disturbed at
any point in time. For purposes of this condition, an area for which any one or more of the following
is true is not considered to be disturbed: the area has established ground cover, the County has
determined that the area is not disturbed, an area where temporary stabilization measures have been
implemented, gravel driveways, or laydown areas.

Soil testing shall be conducted on the Site as follows:
a. Testing shall be conducted in no less than three (3) locations on the Site, at least one location

being within proximity to panels of each different type or manufacturer. Samples will be
collected from a depth of six inches below ground surface.

23

44



34,

35.

b. Testing shall be conducted prior to the issuance of a land disturbance permit and annually
thereafter. Testing also shall be conducted immediately prior to Decommissioning and
immediately following the termination of Decommissioning.

c. Samples shall be analyzed for Priority Pollutant 13 Metals (arsenic, antimony, beryllium,
cadmium, chromium, copper, lead, mercury, nickel, selenium, silver, thallium, and zinc) in
accordance with EPA methods SW 6020, SW 6020A, SW1312, and 200.8.

d. Testing shall be performed by a service provider retained by the Operator but approved by the
County.

e. A test report for each testing event, including an executive summary, shall be provided to the
Prince Edward County zoning administrator within ten (10) days of the completion of such
report.

f. No costs shall be incurred by Prince Edward County for soil testing or reports of soil testing

provided to Prince Edward County.

After completion of construction of the project, noise levels measured at the property line during
standard operations shall not exceed 50 dbA. Applicant shall submit equipment and component
manufacturers’ noise ratings to demonstrate compliance. The applicant shall be required to provide
Operating Sound Pressure Level measurements from a reasonable number of sampled locations at the
perimeter of the site to demonstrate compliance with this standard.

Any damaged solar components or portions thereof shall be collected by the facility operator and
removed from the site or stored on site in a location protected from weather and wildlife and from any
contact with ground or water until removal from the site can be arranged; storage shall not exceed sixty
(60) days. If not returned to the manufacturer, damaged components shall be transferred directly to an
approved recycling facility or disposal site in accordance with local, state, and federal laws.

SECTION V. DECOMMISSIONING

36.

37.

38.

39.

Decommissioning shall be conducted in accordance with the Decommissioning Plan approved by
Prince Edward County.

The Applicant or the Operator shall provide a Notice of Decommission to the County Administrator of
Prince Edward County within thirty days of a determination to cease Operation of the Solar Facility.

Prior to the commencement of construction, the Applicant shall submit to the County and receive
County approval of a Decommissioning Plan. The Applicant shall comply with all terms and conditions
of the Decommissioning Plan as approved by the County. The Decommissioning Plan at a minimum
shall include provisions regarding the following:

a. Specifications for the removal of all solar equipment, buildings, cabling, electrical
components, pads or foundations, pilings, and fencing.

b. A requirement that all Site real property must be restored to the condition of the property
as of the date Construction commences (reasonable wear and tear excepted).

c. A requirement that the property must be stabilized so as to adequately control, prevent,
and minimize any and all erosion or sediment runoff, consistent with the approved Erosion
and Sediment Control Plan.

Decommissioning shall begin immediately after the Facility has, for a period of six (6) consecutive
months, ceased operating as a solar energy facility distributing energy to the electrical grid and shall be
diligently pursued, as determined by the County in its sole discretion, and completed within eighteen
(18) months from the Decommissioning Commencement Date. Prior to its expiration, the County may

24

45



40.

41.

42.

43,

44,

45.

extend this Decommissioning period by six (6) months if the County finds that the Operator commenced
Decommissioning the Solar Facility diligently and continuously worked to Decommission the Facility
throughout the Decommissioning period, and is reasonably expected to complete the Decommissioning
within the additional six-month period.

Periods during which the Facility is not operational for maintenance, repair, or due to a catastrophic
event beyond the control of Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC during which time Green Bay Solar Farm,
LLC works diligently to return the Facility to full Commercial Operation, shall not constitute the
cessation of operations requiring the initiation of Decommissioning requirements herein. Green Bay
Solar Farm, LLC must provide written notice and evidence of the Solar Facility status and repair efforts
to the County Administrator during the period in which the Solar Facility is not fully operational. Such
notice shall identify the last day on which the Facility was fully operational. Regardless of the efforts
of Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC to return the Solar Facility to full Commercial Operation, if the Solar
Facility does not operate as a solar energy facility distributing energy to the electrical grid after the
catastrophic event for a period of eighteen (18) months, the Project shall be deemed Abandoned and
Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC shall commence Decommissioning no later than the 548th day after the
catastrophic event.

Any change of party responsible for Decommissioning of the facility, or change in any part of the
contact information, shall be reported to the County Administrator within thirty (30) days of the
change(s).

If Decommissioning Activities are not completed within the allotted time, or if the Project is
Abandoned, the County may complete or have completed at its expense the Decommissioning Activities
required under the terms of the Decommissioning Plan and may recover all costs of completing those
Decommissioning Activities from the surety provided as set forth herein.

To secure the costs of Decommissioning, Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC or its successor shall at all times,
beginning at commencement of construction and until the termination of Decommissioning, provide
financial surety in a form and in an amount approved by the County. If the Solar Facility is transferred
to a public utility or an Investor or Member Owned Utility Company (e.g.: Dominion Energy, Old
Dominion Electric Cooperative or its successor entity), the surety required of the Applicant may be
cancelled at the time of the transfer and no further surety will be required.

The amount of the surety required shall be 100% of the estimated Decommissioning costs estimated at
each Surety Review Date, less the scrap or repurposing value of the Solar Facility. The estimated costs
and surety to meet the above requirements shall be reviewed by the County Administrator on each
Surety Review Date, at which time the County Administrator shall determine if the estimates adequately
reflect the Decommissioning costs and any scrap or repurposing value and that the surety will guarantee
performance. Should the County Administrator determine that estimated costs and surety are
insufficient, the County Administrator and Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC shall mutually agree to
determine the correct surety amount; and Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC shall then provide the agreed,
adequate surety within one hundred eighty (180) days following the Surety Review Date or, if later,
within thirty (30) days after the County Administrator and Green Bay Solar Farm, LL.C agree on the
adequate surety amount.

Surety must be provided in the form of a cash bond deposited with the County; by an irrevocable letter
of credit provided for the County’s benefit; or by a surety bond listing the County as the obligee, a
hypothecated account, an escrow account, or a guaranty issued by a credit-worthy entity, or as otherwise
provided in Section 15.2-2241.2 of the Code of Virginia.

a. A cash bond shall be in the form of a cashier’s check or certified check deposited with the
County which has cleared all issuing institutions. Any interest accruing on such funds
shall be added to the total amount and retained by the County for Decommissioning. The
deposit shall be accompanied by a letter agreement, acceptable to, and issued by, the

25

46



County Administrator, confirming that the cash deposit is to be held by the County to
guarantee the performance of the Decommissioning work required herein, and should the
Solar Facility be Abandoned or should the Decommissioning work not be diligently
undertaken or performed according to the requirements herein, or should the Special Use
Permit be revoked, lapse, expire, or be voided due to violation thereof, the County may
expend the deposited funds to undertake the Decommissioning work required herein,
without more, after providing written notice to the person identified as owner of the
property in the land records of Prince Edward County as of the date of the notice. Within
six (6) months of the completion of the Decommissioning work required herein by a
person or entity other than the County or a contractor engaged by the County, as confirmed
by the County Administrator, the cash bond and accrued interest, less any amounts
expended by the County as allowed herein, shall be released and paid to Green Bay Solar
Farm, LLC or, if the Project has been Abandoned, to the person identified as owner of the
property in land records of Prince Edward County as of the date of the completed
Decommissioning or as otherwise directed by that owner of the property.

An irrevocable letter of credit shall mean an instrument provided by a lending institution
guaranteeing payment to the County within seventy-two (72) hours of the County’s
written notice to the institution that the Solar Facility has been Abandoned or the
Decommissioning Activities have not been diligently undertaken or performed according
to the requirements herein and demand to the institution for the funds, without more. The
letter of credit shall have no expiration date or required renewal and shall remain in effect
for the benefit of the County and shall under no circumstances be withdrawn before the
Decommissioning Activities required herein are completed or the amount guaranteed has
been fully drawn by the County. The letter of credit shall require that the County be
notified thirty (30) days prior to any cancellation or alteration by the issuer of the letter of
credit. Should the County receive notice that the letter of credit will be cancelled or
otherwise become unavailable or decrease, or should this Special Use Permit be revoked,
lapse, expire or be voided due to violation thereof by Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC, the
County may, immediately draw down the entirety of the letter of credit and convert the
surety to a cash bond to be deposited with the County and subject to the terms herein; this
shall be specifically reflected in the language of the irrevocable letter of credit. The
County may expend the guaranteed funds, without more, to undertake the
Decommissioning Activities required herein and required pursuant to the terms of the
Decommissioning Plan after providing written notice to Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC or,
if the Project is Abandoned, to the person identified as the owner of the Property in the
land records of Prince Edward County as of the date of the notice. Within six (6) months
following the completion of the Decommissioning Activities required herein and required
pursuant to the terms of the Decommissioning Plan by a person or entity other than the
County or a contractor engaged by the County, as confirmed by the County Administrator,
the letter of credit shall be released by the County and any amounts drawn on the letter of
credit, less any amounts expended by the County as allowed herein, shall be released and
paid to Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC or, if the Project has been Abandoned, to the person
identified as owner of the property in land records of Prince Edward County as of the date
of the completed Decommissioning or as otherwise directed by that owner of the property.

A surety bond shall mean a bond issued by a company with an AM Best rating of A++,
that is treasury listed, and that is licensed to do business in the Commonwealth of Virginia.
The surety bond shall list the County as an obligee and shall remain in effect for the benefit
of the County and shall under no circumstances be withdrawn or cancelled before the
Decommissioning Activities required herein and required by the terms of the
Decommissioning Plan are completed or the amount guaranteed has been fully paid to the
County. The surety bond shall require that the County be notified thirty (30) days prior
to any cancellation or alteration of the bond. Should the County receive notice that the
surety bond will be cancelled or otherwise become unavailable or decrease below the
limits required herein, or should the Special Use Permit be revoked, lapse, expire or be

26

47



46.

47.

48.

voided due to violation thereof by Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC, the County may,
immediately file a claim, for the entirety of the amount of the bond, the guarantor shall
pay the amounts guaranteed and the County shall convert the surety to a cash bond to be
deposited with the County and subject to the terms herein; this shall be specifically
reflected in the language of the surety bond. The County may expend the guaranteed
funds, without more, to undertake the Decommissioning Activities required herein and
required pursuant to the terms of the Decommissioning Plan, after providing written notice
to Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC, or, if the Project is Abandoned, to the person identified
as the owner of the Property in the land records of Prince Edward County as of the date
of the notice. Within six (6) months following the completion of the Decommissioning
Activities required herein by a person or entity other than the County or a contractor
engaged by the County, as confirmed by the County Administrator, the surety bond shall
be released by the County, and the bond funds paid to the County less any amounts
expended by the County as allowed herein, shall be released and paid to Green Bay Solar
Farm, LLC or, if the Project has been Abandoned, to the person identified as owner of the
property in land records of Prince Edward County as of the date of the completed
Decommissioning or as otherwise directed by that owner of the property.

Should this Special Use Permit be revoked, lapse, expire, or be voided due to violation thereof, the
County may immediately draw down all of the surety funds and convert them into a cash bond for
purposes of Decommissioning as set forth hereunder and as set forth in the Decommissioning Plan. In
such case, no contractual agreement shall be required for the cash bond. This shall be reflected in the
surety provided.

Should the funds guaranteed for the Decommissioning Activities for any reason not be sufficient for
the County to complete the Decommissioning Activities as allowed for herein and as set forth in the
Decommissioning Plan, Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC or its successor, shall be and shall remain liable
to the County for the difference between the guaranteed funds and the amounts required to
Decommission the Solar Facility and shall pay the difference to the County upon demand. The County
shall not be liable to any party in any way for the funds drawn pursuant to the conditions set out herein
and expended in relation to Decommissioning.

Should the Facility be Abandoned, or should the Special Use Permit be revoked, lapse, expire, or be
voided due to violation thereof, or should the Decommissioning Activities not be diligently undertaken
or performed, and should the County draw down the funds for the purpose of performing the
Decommissioning Activities and mobilize its contractors to perform the Decommissioning Activities
or otherwise incur liability to its contractors for the performance of the Decommissioning Activities,
Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC, its successor or agent, shall have no right to perform the Decommissioning
Activities unless specifically authorized by the County in a writing that confirms that the County has
incurred no liability to any contractors to perform the Activities or that any such liability is transferrable
as deemed acceptable to the County. The Applicant or the Operator shall immediately, upon written
demand by the County or any person or entity authorized to act on behalf of the County, without more,
grant or release to the County, or any person or entity authorized to act on behalf of the County, under
terms deemed acceptable by the County, all necessary real property rights, personal property rights,
either or both, as determined solely by the County, other than fee simple ownership or a leasehold
interest of the real property, so that the County or any person or entity authorized to act on behalf of the
County may undertake any required Decommissioning Activities that have not otherwise been
performed as required. This shall include, but may not be limited to, releasing any interest in the
personal property, facilities, fixtures, and structures which are to be removed and recycled, disposed of,
or otherwise demolished.

27

48



In Re: Public Hearing — Siting Agreement, Oak Lane Solar Farm, LL.C

Mr. Stanley announced that this was the date and time scheduled for a public hearing to receive citizen input
prior to considering a siting agreement by Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC, related to a SMWac solar energy facility on
land totaling 67 .8 +/- acres denoted as Tax Map Parcels 107-A-63 and 107-A-64 located on Patrick Henry Highway
(US Route 360), near its intersection with Cheatham Road (State Route 694), which is zoned Agricultural
Conservation (Al) District. Notice of this hearing was advertised according to law in the Wednesday, May 28, 2025
and Friday, May 30, 2025 editions of THE FARMVILLE HERALD, a newspaper published in the County of Prince
Edward.

The County has been in negotiations with Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC for a siting agreement related to
construction and operation of a SMWac solar facility on land totaling 67.8 + /- acres denoted as Tax Map Parcels 107-
A-63 and 107-A-64 located on Patrick Henry Highway (US Route 360), near its intersection with Cheatham Road
(State Route 694), which is zoned Agricultural Conservation (A1) District.

Pursuant to §15.2-2316.8(B) of the Code of Virginia, the host locality shall schedule a public hearing,
pursuant to Subsection A of § 15.2-2204, for the purpose of consideration of such siting agreement. If a majority of a
quorum of the members of the governing body present at such public hearing approve of such siting agreement, the
siting agreement shall be executed by the signatures of (i) the chief executive officer of the host locality and (ii) the
applicant or the applicant's authorized agent. The siting agreement shall continue in effect until it is amended, revoked,
or suspended.

The public hearing notice was published in the May 28, 2025 and May 30, 2025 editions of the Farmville
Herald. The list of adjoining property owners and the sample letter sent to each were provided in the Board packet.

The agreement for the SMWac solar site includes a one-time upfront voluntary payment of $112,500 ($22,500
per MWac) plus an annual payment of $1,540 per MWac (proffered by applicant) for a total estimated taxable revenue
of $561,587.

Chairman Jenkins opened the public hearing.

There being no one wishing to speak, Chairman Jenkins closed the public hearing.

Supervisor Townsend made a motion, seconded by Supervisor Cooper-Jones, to approve the Siting

Agreement with Green Bay Solar Farm, LL.C for the proposed SMWac solar energy facility; the motion carried:

28

49



Aye: Pattie Cooper-Jones Nay: None
J. David Emert
Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.
Victor “Bill” Jenkins
Odessa H. Pride
Jerry R. Townsend
Cannon Watson
Absent:  E. Harrison Jones

SOLAR FACILITY SITING AGREEMENT
This Solar Facility Siting Agreement (the “Agreement”), dated as of June 10, 2025 (the “Effective Date”), is by
and between Prince Edward County, Virginia, a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia (the
“County”) and Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC a Virginia limited liability company, and its successors and assigns (the
“Applicant’). The County and Applicant are herein each a “Party” and collectively, the “Parties.”

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Applicant intends to site, develop, construct, install, and operate a Utility Scale Energy Facility and
associated electric grid interconnection facilities (the “Project’) on certain parcels of land identified as Prince
Edward County Tax Map Parcel Number(s) 107-A-63 and 107-A-64 (collectively, the “Property”);

WHEREAS, pursuant to Virginia Code § 58.1-2636, the County has adopted an ordinance assessing a revenue share
of up to $1,400.00 per megawatt, as measured in alternating current (“MWac™) generation capacity of the nameplate
capacity of solar generation facilities, increased on July 1, 2026, and every five years thereafter by ten percent (the
“Solar Revenue Share”), codified as Sections 70-241 through 70-243 of the Prince Edward County Code of
Ordinances (the “Solar Revenue Share Ordinance”);

WHEREAS, pursuant to Virginia Code § 58.1-3660, because the County has adopted the Solar Revenue Share
Ordinance, the solar photovoltaic (electric energy) systems associated with the Project will not be subject to
machinery and tools taxation, but instead will be assessed the Solar Revenue Share;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Virginia Code § 58.1-2606.1(B), “solar photovoltaic projects five (5) megawatts or less
shall not be exempt from the assessment of a revenue share by ordinance of that locality”;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 22, Title 15.2, Article 7.3 of the Code of Virginia titled “Siting of Solar Energy
Facilities,” projects five megawatts or less are not deemed “solar facilities” within the meaning of said article, and
therefore, Applicant and the County are not required to enter into a siting agreement;

WHEREAS, the special use permit conditions for the Project (attached hereto as Exhibit B) require the Parties to
enter into this Agreement, and the Parties desire to enter into this Agreement to memorialize their obligations with
respect to the Solar Revenue Share payments, and to provide additional financial compensation to the County to be
used for any lawful purpose, including as may be permitted by Virginia Code §§ 15.2-2288.8 and/or 15.2-2316.7;

WHEREAS, Applicant has agreed to the payments and financial terms contained herein;

WHEREAS, the County held a public hearing in accordance with subdivision A of Virginia Code § 15.2-2204 for
the purpose of considering this Agreement, after which a majority of a quorum of the members of the Prince Edward
County Board of Supervisors approved this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to the foregoing recitals, hereby incorporated into this Agreement, and intending to

be legally bound hereby and in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the receipt and sufficiency
of which are hereby acknowledged, the County and Applicant do hereby agree as follows:

29

50



Article 1
Conditions

1. SUP Conditions. The Applicant acknowledges and agrees that it is subject to all the terms and
conditions contained in any special use permit (“SUP”) approved by the Board of Supervisors for the Project. The
SUP approved by the Board on June » 2025 is attached hereto as Exhibit B and is hereby incorporated herein.
Violation by the Applicant or by any of Applicant’s agents, assigns, or successors in interest of any terms and
conditions of the SUP orof any other applicable zoning requirements shall constitute a violation of this Agreement.

Article I1

Voluntary Payments

1. Purpose. The Parties acknowledge that the County has certain capital needs important to the
economic, physical, and social well-being of the citizens and businesses within the County and that the Project may
generate the possibility of additional responsibilities for certain County services; in recognition thereof, the Applicant
agrees to make the financial contributions set forth on Exhibit A (in accordance with paragraph 2 of this Article), and
permitted under Virginia Code §§ 15.2-2288.8 and 15.2-2316.6, ef seq.

2. Payment Structure. The Applicant shall make payments to the County, as follows:

a. A one-time voluntary payment to Prince Edward County in the amount of $22,500 per
megawatt (MWac) within six (6) months of the Commercial Operation Date, as defined in Section 2(b). The schedule
of payments on Exhibit A assumes an estimated Project nameplate capacity of five megawatts (5 MWac), and all
payments shall be adjusted proportionally if the nameplate capacity of the constructed Project differs from such
estimate.

b. Annual Solar Revenue Share payments in accordance with the Solar Revenue Share
Ordinance adopted by the County, which, in accordance with the Solar Revenue Share Ordinance in effect as of the
date of this Agreement are anticipated to be as set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein. The
schedule of payments on Exhibit A assumes an estimated Project nameplate capacity of 5 MWac, and all payments
shall be adjusted proportionally if the nameplate capacity of the constructed Project differs from such estimate. The
Solar Revenue Share payments shall begin no later than six (6) months following the Commercial Operation Date on
a prorated basis for that year.! As used herein, “Commercial Operation Date” means the date on which the Project
commences “Commercial Operation,” which means the point at which the Project becomes fully operational and can
begin selling power under the terms of a power purchase or offtake agreement. Generation of test energy shall not be
deemed Commercial Operation. The regular Payments shall be due and payable on or before December 1st each year
thereafter until the completion of the decommissioning of all of the Project (the “Termination Date”). The Parties
acknowledge that, except as otherwise provided herein, the Applicant’s obligation to make the Payments shall be
conditioned upon the Project commencing Commercial Operation. The Payments shall be made to the County in any
year in one lump sum payment during the term of this Agreement.

c. Annual Supplement Payments, if any, payable to the County annually together with the
Revenue Share Payments, to be calculated as follows (the “Annual Supplement Payment”).

(The amount due to the County for the year under the County’s Revenue Share
ordinance in existence as of the date of this Agreement, including ten percent

1 1f the Commercial Operation Date is June 1 or later, that first year’s prorated payment shall be due and payable on
or before December 1 of that first year.

30

o1



increases each five years, all as set forth in Va. Code § 58.1-2636) less (the
amount actually assessed and paid to the County under the County’s Solar
Revenue Share Ordinance), except that if the County repeals its revenue share
ordinance and a machinery and tools tax is applicable to the Project, then the
payment under this paragraph 2.c. will be zero.

For example, in the year 2040, the amount due to the County under the County’s
Revenue Share Ordinance in existence as of the date of this Agreement for a
5MWac project is projected to be $9,317 (5 X $1,863.40). If in 2040 the
Revenue Share Ordinance provides for a payment of $500 per megawatt per
year such that the assessment in that year for a 5 MWac project will be $2,500,
then the Annual Supplement Payment will be $6,817 ($9,317 less $2,500).

3. Statutory Structure of Payments; Statement of Benefit. The Applicant agrees that, by
entering into this Agreement, the Payments are authorized by statute (including the voluntary portion of the
Payments, pursuant to Virginia Code § 15.2-2316.6, et seq.), and the Applicant acknowledges that it is bound by law
to make the Payments in accordance with this Agreement. The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement is fair and
mutually beneficial. Applicant acknowledges that this Agreement provides for a clear and predictable stream of
future payments to the County in amounts fair to both Parties.

4. Use of Payments by the County. The Payments may be used for any lawful purpose.
Article III
Miscellaneous Terms

1. Term; Termination; Automatic Renewal. This Agreement shall commence on the Effective
Date and shall continue until the Termination Date. The Applicant shall have no obligation to make Payments
after the Termination Date except for revenue share for the Project that has been assessed under the County’s
Solar Revenue Share Ordinance but not collected. The Payment due for the year in which the Project is
decommissioned shall be prorated as of the Termination Date. Provided Commercial Operation has not terminated,
then upon the conclusion of the fortieth (40™) calendar year of Commercial Operation, this Agreement shall
automatically renew for additional terms of one year, from January 1 to December 31 of each calendar year, until
written notice of termination (a “Notice of Termination™) is given by either Party, and such Notice of Termination
shall provide a termination date that is at least one year from the date the Notice of Termination is given. The
termination of this Agreement shall not limit the Applicant’s legal obligation to pay local taxes in accordance with
applicable law at such time and for such period as the Project remains in operation.

2. Mutual Covenants. The Applicant covenants to the County that it will pay the County the amounts
due hereunder when due in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, and will not seek to invalidate this
Agreement, or otherwise take a position adverse to the purpose or validity of this Agreement. The County covenants
to the Applicant that it will not seek to invalidate this Agreement or otherwise take a position adverse to the purpose
or validity of this Agreement.

3. No Obligation to Develop. The Applicant hasno obligation to develop or construct the Project, and
this Agreement does not require any payments until after the Commercial Operation Date. Any test energy or other
energy produced prior to the Commercial Operation Date shall not trigger any payments under this Agreement. It is
understood that development of the Project by Applicant is contingent upon a number of factors including, but not
limited to, regulatory approvals, availability and cost of equipment and financing, and market demand for the Project’s
energy. No election by the Applicant to terminate, defer, suspend, or modify plans to develop the Project shall be
deemed a default of Applicant under this Agreement.

4, Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon the successors or assigns of the
Applicant, and the obligations created hereunder shall be covenants running with the Property. If Applicant sells,
transfers, leases, or assigns all or substantially all of its interests in the Project or the ownership of the Applicant, this
Agreement will automatically be assumed by and be binding on the purchaser or transferee. Upon such assumption,
the sale, transfer, lease, or assignment shall relieve the Applicant of all obligations and liabilities under this
Agreement accruing from and after the date of sale or transfer, and the purchaser or transferee shall automatically

31

52



become responsible under this Agreement. The Applicant shall execute such documentation as reasonably requested
by the County to memorialize the assignment and assumption by the purchaser or transferee.

5. “Substantial Accord” with County’s Comprehensive Plan. Pursuant to Va. Code 15.2-2232(B),
the Board of Supervisors found that the Project’s general or approximate location, character and extent is
substantially in accord with the County’s Comprehensive Plan or part thereof, and by execution of this Agreement,
the Project is deemed to be substantially in accord with the County’s Comprehensive Plan in satisfaction of the
requirements of Va. Code § 15.2-2232.

6. Memorandum of Agreement. A memorandum of this Agreement, in a form substantially similar
to that attached as Exhibit C hereto, shall be recorded in the land records of the Clerk’s Office of the Circuit Court
of Prince Edward County, Virginia. Such recordationshall be at the Applicant’s sole cost and expense and shall occur
as soon as reasonably practicable after the Effective Date. If the Applicant chooses to not develop the Project, in its
sole discretion, the County shall execute a release of the memorandum filed in the aforementioned Clerk’s Office.

7. Notices. Except as otherwise provided herein, all notices required to be given or authorized to be
given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be delivered or sent by registered or certified mail,
postage prepaid, by recognized overnight courier, or by commercial messenger to:

If to County:

Prince Edward County, Virginia
111 South Street, Third Floor
PO Box 382

Farmville, Virginia 23901

Attn: Douglas P. Stanley
County Administrator

With a copy to:

Terri Atkins Wilson, County Attorney
117 North Main Street
Farmville, Virginia 23901

If to Applicant:

Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC c/o CEP Solar, LLC
2201 W Broad St

Richmond, VA 23220

Attn: Tyson Utt

With a copy to:

Karen L. Cohen, Esq.
Gentry Locke

PO Box 780

Richmond, Virginia 23218

The County and Applicant, by notice given hereunder, may designate any further or different persons or addresses to
which subsequent notices shall be sent.

8. Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Venue. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY
AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA,
WITHOUT REGARD TO ANY OF ITS PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICTS OF LAWS OR OTHER LAWS WHICH
WOULD RESULT IN THE APPLICATION OF THE LAWS OF ANOTHER JURISDICTION. THE PARTIES
HERETO (A) AGREE THAT ANY SUIT, ACTION OR OTHER LEGAL PROCEEDING, AS BETWEEN THE

32

53



PARTIES HERETO, ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE BROUGHT AND
TRIED ONLY IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF PRINCE EDWARD COUNTY, VIRGINIA, (B) CONSENT TO
THE JURISDICTION OF SUCH COURT IN ANY SUCH SUIT, ACTION OR PROCEEDING, AND (C) WAIVE
ANY OBJECTION WHICHANY OF THEM MAY HAVE TO THE LAYING OF VENUE OR ANY SUCH SUIT,
ACTION, OR PROCEEDING IN SUCH COURT AND ANY CLAIM THAT ANY SUCH SUIT, ACTION, OR
PROCEEDING HAS BEEN BROUGHT IN AN INCONVENIENT FORUM. THE PARTIES HERETO AGREE
THAT A FINAL JUDGMENT IN ANY SUCH SUIT, ACTION, OR PROCEEDING SHALL BE CONCLUSIVE
AND MAY BE ENFORCED IN OTHER JURISDICTIONS BY SUIT ON THE JUDGMENT OR IN ANY OTHER
MANNER PROVIDED BY LAW.

9. Confidentiality. This Agreement, once placed on the docket for consideration by the Prince Edward
County Board of Supervisors, is a public document, subject to production under the Virginia Freedom of Information
Act (“FOIA”). The County understands and acknowledges the Applicant, and as applicable, its associates, contractors,
partners and affiliates, utilize confidential and proprietary “state-of-the-art” information and data in their operations
(“Confidential Information”), and that disclosure of any such information, including, but not limited to, disclosures of
technical, financial or other information concerning the Applicant or any affiliated entity could result in substantial
harm to them and could thereby have a significant detrimental impact on their employees and also upon the County.
The County acknowledges that during the development and negotiation of this Agreement, certain Confidential
Information may be, or may have been, shared with the County by the Applicant. Applicant agrees to clearly identify
any information it deems to be Confidential Information and not subject to mandatory disclosure under FOIA or other
applicable law as Confidential Information at the time it provides such information to the County. The County agrees
that, except as required by law and pursuant to the County’s police powers, neither the County nor any employee,
agent, or contractor of the County will (i) knowingly or intentionally disclose or otherwise divulge any such
Confidential Information to any person, firm, governmental body or agency, or any other entity unless a request for
such Confidential Information is made and granted under an applicable provision of local, state or federal law. Upon
receipt of such a request but before transmitting any documents or information which may contain Confidential
Information to the requestor, the County shall contact Applicant to review the request for information and associated
documents to determine if any Confidential Information is at risk of disclosure. If Confidential Information exists,
Applicant may intervene on behalf of the County and defend against disclosure of the Confidential Information. The
County agrees to cooperate in this defense and to the extent allowed by law, work to protect the Confidential
Information of the Applicant.

10. Insurance. Upon commencement of construction of the Project and throughout Commercial
Operation, the Applicant will maintain in effect comprehensive general liability insurance and pollution liability
insurance with minimum coverage limitations of $2 million per occurrence and $5 million annual aggregate;
employer’s liability/workers’ compensation insurance with a minimum coverage limitation of $1 million per accident;
property and casualty insurance on a replacement value basis with minimum coverage limitation of $5 million per
occurrence; and such other insurance for the Project as may be required by law.

11. Modification. This Agreement may be modified only in writing duly executed by the parties hereto.

12, Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by the Applicant to any party without the express
written consent of the County, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. Any assignment shall be made
subject to all terms and conditions of this Agreement.

13. Default.

A. In the event of a default under this Agreement, the non-defaulting Party shall give written notice
to the defaulting Party, describing the alleged default in reasonably sufficient detail. If a Party has not cured, as
described by this Agreement, its default after thirty (30) days of receiving written notice of the default from the non-
defaulting Party, or if the default cannot be cured within thirty (30) days and the defaulting Party has not begun and
pursued with diligence to cure said default, the non-defaulting Party shall have the right, but not the obligation, to
cure such default and to charge the defaulting Party for the cost of curing such default, including the right to offset
said costs of curing the default against any sums due or which become due to the defaulting Party under this
Agreement. Such non-defaulting Party shall, in its reasonable judgment, attempt to use the most economically
reasonable method of curing any such default.

33

o4



B. This Agreement may be terminated by the County in the event of a material breach of this
Agreement that has not been cured within sixty (60) days of written notice thereof. If a cure is initiated within such
period, the Agreement shall not terminate. A material breach shall mean a failure to comply with (1) any of the
provisions of this Agreement, (2) the permits and approvals under which the Project will be operated or built, or (3)
applicable federal or state laws, approvals, or regulations. A material breach shall also include the insolvency of the
Applicant or its assignee, such insolvency to be established by the filing of a voluntary petition in bankruptcy that is
not dismissed within one hundred eighty (180) days of its filing. A material breach shall also include a violation of
the Special Use Permit issued to the Applicant, attached hereto as Exhibit B. Provided, however, the Applicant
complying or taking action consistent with any governmental or regulatory warning letter, notice of violation, or
plan of action shall be deemeda cure if the compliance or the action is initiated within sixty (60) days of the Applicant
receiving the warning letter, notice of violation, or action plan. Failure by the Applicant after receiving written notice
to resolve as soon as practically possible, a material breach that state or federal authorities determine threatens the
safety of the public or threatens to cause material environmental damage, shall entitle the County to terminate this
Agreement effective immediately upon the failure of the Applicant to act as soon as practically possible. Further, the
County may terminate this Agreement effective immediately if the Applicant fails to pay an amount due under this
Agreement within thirty (30) days of receiving from the County written notice of the failure to pay. Provided,
however, if a dispute exists as to whether an amount is owed a breach has occurred, either party may seek a declaratory
judgment or other appropriate action in the Prince Edward County Circuit Court. If the dispute involves an amount
owed to the County, the Applicant shall submit said disputed amount to the Clerk of the Prince Edward County
Circuit Court. The cure period and any termination of this Agreement shall be extended and tolled pending a decision
by the Circuit Court on the declaratory judgment or other action filed.

C. If either the County or the Applicant files a lawsuit, counterclaim, or cross-claim to enforce any
provision of this Agreement or to seek a declaratory judgment, the prevailing Party is entitled to all reasonable
attorneys’ fees, litigation expenses, and court costs.

14. Severability; Invalidity Clause. Any provision of this Agreement that conflicts with applicable
law or is held to be void or unenforceable shall be ineffective to the extent of such conflict, voidness, or
unenforceability without invalidating the remaining provisions hereof, which remaining provisions shall be
enforceable to the fullest extent permitted under applicable law. If, for any reason, including a change in applicable
law, it is ever determined by any court or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction that this Agreement is
invalid, then the Parties shall, subject to any necessary County meeting vote or procedures, undertake reasonable
efforts to amend and or reauthorize this Agreement so as to render the invalid provisions herein lawful, valid, and
enforceable. If the Parties are unable to do so, this Agreement shall terminate as of the date of such determination of
invalidity, and the Property and Project will thereafter be assessed and taxed as though this Agreement did not exist.
The Parties will cooperate with each other and use reasonable efforts to defend against and contest any challenge to
this Agreement by a third party.

15. Entire Agreement. This Agreement and any exhibits or other attachments constitute the entire
agreement and supersedes all other prior agreements and understandings, both written and oral, between the Parties
hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof. No provision of this Agreement can be modified, altered or amended
except in a writing executed by allParties hereto.

16. Construction. This Agreement was drafted with input by the County and the Applicant, and no
presumption shall exist against any Party.

17. Force Majeure.
A. “Force Majeure Event’ means the occurrence of:

@) an act of war (whether declared or not), hostilities, invasion, act of foreign enemies,
terrorism or civil disorder;

(i) a strike or strikes or other industrial action or blockade or embargo or any other form of

civil disturbance (whether lawful or not), in each case affecting on a general basis the industry related to
the construction, operation, or maintenance of the Project, as for example but not in limitation, the
interruption in the supply of replacement solar panels, and which is not attributable to any unreasonable

34

25



action or inaction on the part of Applicant or any of its subcontractors or suppliers and the settlement of
which is beyond the reasonable control of all such persons;

(iii) specific incidents of exceptional adverse weather conditions in excess of those required to
be designed for that are materially worse than those encountered in the County during the twenty (20) years
prior to the Effective Date;

@iv) tempest, earthquake, or any other natural disaster of overwhelming proportions and the
disruption of operations resulting therefrom;

W) discontinuation of electricity supply, or unanticipated termination of a power purchase
agreement;
B. other unforeseeable circumstances beyond the control of the Parties against which it would have

been unreasonable for the affected Party to take precautions and which the affected Party cannot avoid even by using its
best efforts, including quarantines ordered by competent governmental authority in the event of a public health
emergency, which in each case directly causes either party to be unable to comply with all or a material part of its
obligations under this Agreement.

C. Neither Party will be in breach of its obligations under this Agreement or incur any liability to the
other Party for any losses or damages of any nature whatsoever incurred or suffered by that other (otherwise than under
any express indemnity in this Agreement) if and to the extent it is prevented from carrying out those obligations by,
or such losses or damages are caused by, a Force Majeure Event except to the extent that the relevant breach of its
obligations would have occurred, or the relevant losses or damages would have arisen, even if the Force Majeure
Event had not occurred.

D. As soon as reasonably practicable after the start of a Force Majeure Event, and within a reasonable
time after the end of a Force Majeure Event, any Party invoking it will submit to the other Party reasonable proof of
the nature of the Force Majeure Event and of its effect upon the performance of the Party's obligations under this
Agreement.

E. Applicant will, and will ensure that its contractors will, at all times take all reasonable steps within
their respective powers and consistent with good operating practices (but without incurring unreasonable additional
costs) to:

@) prevent Force Majeure Events affecting the performance of Applicant’s obligations
under this Agreement;
(ii) mitigate the effect of any Force Majeure Event; and

(iii) comply with its obligations under this Agreement.

F. The Parties will consult together in relation to the above matters following the occurrence of a Force
Majeure Event.
G. Should a single Force Majeure Event occur for a continuous period of more than 180 days, then the

Parties shall endeavor to agree on any modifications to this Agreement (including without limitation, determination of
new revenue sharing payments) that are equitable, having due regard to the nature of the ability of Applicant to continue
to meet its financial obligations to the County.

H. For the avoidance of doubt, a Force Majeure Event shall not include (a) financial distress or the
inability of either Party to make a profit or avoid a financial loss, (b) changes in market prices or conditions, or (¢) a
Party’s financial inability to perform its obligations hereunder, except such occurrences (a)-(c) that arise from a Force
Majeure Event.

18. Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the Parties hereto and their
respective successors and permitted assigns, and no other person shall have any right, benefit, priority, or interest in,
under, or because of the existence of, this Agreement.

19. Counterparts; Electronic Signatures. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in any
number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, and all of which shall constitute one and the

35

56



same instrument. A signed copy of this Agreement delivered by e-mail/PDF or other means of electronic transmission
shall be deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the
Effective Date by the authorized representatives whose names and titles appear below.

Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC

By:
Name
Title:

PRINCE EDWARD COUNTY, VIRGINIA

By:
Name
Title:
Approved as to form:
By:
County Attorney
EXHIBIT A

ILLUSTRATIVE SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS

The following schedule of payments assumes an estimated project nameplate capacity of SMWac and all payments
shall be adjusted proportionally if the nameplate capacity of the constructed Project differs from such estimates.
The following schedule illustrates an example of a 40-year payment schedule and an operational year of 2027,
however, the payments shall begin in the year that the project becomes operational and end on the Termination Date,
as provided in this Agreement.

NOTE: This table does not include revenue from increased real property assessments.

36

57



Operational Year CalendarYear Additional Voluntary Annual Revenue Share

© 0o N OO WM R

B oWWWWWWWWWWNNRNRNNNNRNRNRNERERERRRER B 2 2 @2
O ©® O N ODRE®NRL,LOOW®NOTDLEODNRPL,O O OADOD®O P O

2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036
2037
2038
2039
2040
2041
2042
2043
2044
2045
2046
2047
2048
2049
2050
2051
2052
2053
2054
2055
2056
2057
2058
2059
2060
2061
2062
2063
2064
2065
2066

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Payment
112,500

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

($/MWac)

37

58

1,540
1,540
1,540
1,540
1,694
1,694
1,694
1,694
1,694
1,863
1,863
1,863
1,863
1,863
2,050
2,050
2,050
2,050
2,050
2,255
2,255
2,255
2,255
2,255
2,480
2,480
2,480
2,480
2,480
2,728
2,728
2,728
2,728
2,728
3,001
3,001
3,001
3,001
3,001
3,301

Annual Revenue Share
Payment

7,700
7,700
7,700
7,700
8,470
8,470
8,470
8,470
8,470
9,317
9,317
9,317
9,317
9,317
10,249
10,249
10,249
10,249
10,249
11,274
11,274
11,274
11,274
11,274
12,401
12,401
12,401
12,401
12,401
13,641
13,641
13,641
13,641
13,641
15,005
15,005
15,005
15,005
15,005
16,506

Rl - S - - - C < - T A R o - - - - I R R R T T TN Y

Rl e e < A R - - - - - - R A - = A A R R AR IR AR IR R R

Total Cumulative
Payments
120,200
127,900
135,600
143,300
151,770
160,240
168,710
177,180
185,650
194,967
204,284
213,601
222,918
232,235
242,484
252,732
262,981
273,230
283,479
294,752
306,026
317,299
328,573
339,846
352,247
364,648
377,049
389,450
401,851
415,492
429,133
442,774
456,415
470,056
485,061
500,066
515,071
530,077
545,082
561,587



EXHIBIT B

SPECIAL USE PERMIT

EXHIBIT C
FORM OF MEMORANDUM

Full exhibit follows

PREPARED BY AND RETURN TO:
Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC

c/o Tyson Utt

2201 W Broad St

Richmond, VA 23220

Prince Edward Tax Map ID No. 107-A-63 and 107-A-64

[NOTE TO CLERK: PRINCE EDWARD COUNTY, VIRGINIA, A POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF THE
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, IS A PARTY TO THIS INSTRUMENT WHICH, ACCORDINGLY,
IS EXEMPT FROM RECORDATION TAX PURSUANT TO VA. CODE SEC. 58.1-811.A.3.]

MEMORANDUM OF SOLAR FACILITY SITING AGREEMENT

This Memorandum of Solar Facility Siting Agreement (this “Memorandum’™), dated and effective as of June 10,
2025, is made by and between PRINCE EDWARD COUNTY, VIRGINIA, a political subdivision of the
Commonwealth of Virginia (the “County”) and Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC, a Virginia limited liability company
(“Green Bay Solar Farm”), with regard to the following:

1. Siting Agreement. The County and Green Bay Solar Farm are parties to that Solar Facility Siting
Agreement, dated June 10, 2025 (the “Siting Agreement’), which describes the intent of Green Bay Solar
Farm to develop, install, build, and operate a solar facility (“Project’) on that certain parcel of land identified
as Prince Edward County Tax Map Parcel(s) 107-A-63 and 107-A-64 (the “Property™).

2. Authorization. The County’s execution of the Siting Agreement was authorized during that certain
regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Prince Edward County on May 13, 2025.

3. Substantially in Accord. The Siting Agreement states, inter alia, thatthe Project is deemed to be substantially
in accord with the Prince Edward County Comprehensive Plan under Virginia Code Ann. § 15.2-2232.

4. Obligations. The Siting Agreement sets forth, inter alia, certain obligations of Green Bay Solar Farm to
comply with the Special Use Permit approved by the County for the Project, and to make certain payments to
the County.

5. Siting Agreement Controls. This Memorandum does not supersede, modify, amend or otherwise change
the terms, conditions, or covenants of the Siting Agreement, and the County and Green Bay Solar Farm
executed and are recording this Memorandum solely for the purpose of providing constructive notice of the
Siting Agreement and the County’s and Green Bay Solar Farm’s rights thereunder. The terms, conditions

38
59



and covenants of the Siting Agreement are incorporated in this Memorandum by reference as though fully
set forth herein.

6. Counterparts. This Memorandum may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an
original and all of which when taken together shall constitute one and the same document.

WITNESS the following signature and seal:
PRINCE EDWARD COUNTY, VIRGINIA:

By:

Name:

Title:

Date:
COMMONWEALTHOFVIRGINIA,
COUNTY OF , to-wit:
Before me, a notary public in and for the jurisdiction aforesaid, this  day of , 2025,
appeared , who acknowledged that
they executed the foregoing instrument in their capacity as of Prince

Edward County, Virginia, on behalf of said political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

Notary Registration No.:

WITNESS the following signature and seal:
Green Bay Solar Farm, LLC:

By:

Name:

Title:

Date:
COMMONWEALTHOFVIRGINIA,
COUNTY OF , to-wit:
Before me, a notary public in and for the jurisdiction aforesaid, this ___ day of , 2025,
appeared , who acknowledged that
they executed the foregoing instrument in their capacity as of Green Bay
Solar Farm, LLC, on behalf of said company.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

Notary Registration No.:

39
60



In Re: Public Hearing — Ordinance for Payment of One-Time Bonuses

Mr. Stanley announced that this was the date and time scheduled for a public hearing to receive citizen input
prior to considering a proposed ordinance to authorize payment of a one-time bonus in FY 26 to eligible county
employees and officers, consistent with the action of the 2025 Virginia General Assembly. Notice of this hearing
was advertised according to law in the Wednesday, May 28, 2025 and Friday, May 30, 2025 editions of THE
FARMVILLE HERALD, a newspaper published in the County of Prince Edward.

At the April 29, 2025, Board meeting, the Board authorized a public hearing for the attached proposed
ordinance, which would enable the Board to authorize the payment of a one-time bonus payment, equal to 1.5 percent
of the employee's base salary, on July 1, 2025.

As the Board is aware, the FY26 County Budget includes a 1.5 percent one-time bonus for all County
employees and officers, to include those not covered by the Comp Board and both full and part-time. In accordance
with Section 15.2-1508 of the Code of Virginia, as amended, the bonus must be approved by ordinance, which
requires a public hearing.

Chairman Jenkins opened the public hearing.

There being no one wishing to speak, Chairman Jenkins closed the public hearing.

Supervisor Townsend made a motion, seconded by Supervisor Cooper-Jones, to approve the Ordinance as
presented, authorizing a one-time bonus to eligible county employees and officers, in accordance with the action of
the Virginia General Assembly; the motion carried:

Aye: Pattie Cooper-Jones Nay: None
J. David Emert
Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.
Victor “Bill” Jenkins
Odessa H. Pride
Jerry R. Townsend

Cannon Watson
Absent: E. Harrison Jones

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY OF PRINCE EDWARD
TO ADD AND ORDAIN A SECTION
FOR PAYMENT OF A ONE-TIME BONUS TO ELIGIBLE
COUNTY EMPLOYEES AND OFFICERS IN FY 2026
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ACTION OF THE VIRGINIA GENERAL ASSEMBLY

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRINCE EDWARD COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS that Prince Edward
County Code be amended and ordained as follows:

40
61



PAYMENT OF A ONE-TIME BONUS TO ELIGIBLE. COUNTY EMPLOYEES AND OFFICERS IN FY 2026.
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ACTION OF THE VIRGINIA GENERAL ASSEMBLY

The 2025 Virginia General Assembly has approved and is funding a one-time bonus payment, equal to 1.5 percent
of their base salary, for the following full-time employees and officers applicable to the County of Prince Edward:
locally-elected constitutional officers; general registrars and members of local electoral boards; and full-time
employees of locally elected constitutional offices, local court service units, local pre-trial services act, and local
social services boards.

The Board of Supervisors supports this acknowledgement of the efforts of our dedicated, county employees
(including those not cited by the General Assembly), who maintain essential services for Prince Edward County
citizens. In recognition, the Board of Supervisors does hereby authorize a one-time payment, to be paid on July 1,
2025 to locally-elected constitutional officers; general registrars and members of local electoral boards; and
employees of locally elected constitutional offices, local court service units, local pre-trial services act, and local
social services boards, and the officers and employees of the Board of Supervisors, consistent with the action taken
by the Virginia General Assembly, with eligibility as outlined below:

A. Must be an employee who was on County or Department of Social Services payroll on February 25, 2025,
and remained employed by the County until July 1, 2025; and

B. For full-time employees: The one-time bonus payment will be equal to 1.5 percent of their base pay on
July 1, 2025; and

C. For part-time employees: The one-time bonus payment will be equal to 1.5 percent of their earnings total
from March 1, 2024 through February 28, 2025; and

D. This one-time payment shall be for FY 26 only.

This Ordinance shall be effective upon adoption and expires on July 30, 2025.

In Re: Public Hearing — Elementary School FY24 Carry-over Funds

Mr. Stanley announced that this was the date and time scheduled for a public hearing to receive citizen input
prior to considering amendments to the FY25 County Budget and the FY25 County School Budget in the amount of
$1,039,101.50 of FY24 School Carry-over funds to pay for adding security fencing at Prince Edward County
Elementary School and renovation of the auditorium at Prince Edward County High School. Notice of this hearing
was advertised according to law in the Wednesday, May 28, 2025 and Friday, May 30, 2025 editions of THE
FARMVILLE HERALD, a newspaper published in the County of Prince Edward.

The Board of Supervisors has received a request from the Prince Edward County School Board requesting
$1,039,101.50 of local carry-over funds to pay for adding security fencing at the Prince Edward County Elementary

School and renovation of the auditorium at the Prince Edward County High School. The Board of Supervisors will

41
62



wish to approve and appropriate the funds requested following the public hearing to amend the FY25 County and
School Budgets by the amount of $1,039,101.50.

Per section 15.2-2507 of the Code of Virginia a locality may amend its budget during the fiscal year.
However, if such an amendment exceeds the currently adopted expenditures by one percent or more, then the locality
must advertise the amendment at least seven days prior to the public hearing. The county's currently approved FY25
budget is currently $75,470,373.00, which means they exceed the one percent threshold.

Chairman Jenkins opened the public hearing.

There being no one wishing to speak, Chairman Jenkins closed the public hearing.

Supervisor Emert made a motion, seconded by Supervisor Townsend, to approve the increase of the FY25
County Budget and FY25 School Budget by $1,039,101.50 and appropriate the same funds to enable the expenditure
for the added security fencing at the Prince Edward County Elementary School and the renovation of the auditorium
at the Prince Edward County High School; the motion carried:

Aye: Pattie Cooper-Jones Nay: None
J. David Emert
Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.
Victor “Bill” Jenkins
Odessa H. Pride
Jerry R. Townsend
Cannon Watson

Absent: E. Harrison Jones

In Re: Highway Matters

Staff will record issues to report to Scott Frederick, PE, VDOT Resident Engineer.

Supervisor Townsend asked when the mowing will take place in his district. Mrs. Puckett said she will get
the grass cutting schedule and provide it to the Board.

Supervisor Townsend then said the road mile markers look good, that they stand out and could save a life.

Supervisor Emert said there are potholes on Old Prospect Road, Singleton Road, Oliver Road, and Hard
Times Road, as well as most of the secondary roads.

Supervisor Gilliam reported that at 1449 Heights School Road, there is a dead pine tree that needs removed;
he said at 2205 Five Forks Road, there is half an oak tree that has fallen. He then said that on Moore Road, where
the crews filled the ditch with crushed run, the rain has washed it all into the creek and needs a larger stone placed

there. He reported that on High Bridge Road, there are limbs and brush down, and on Pin Oak Road where they

picked up the trash north of Hendrick’s Store, the bags are splitting open from the rain and weather.

42
63



Supervisor Pride said grass mowing is needed in her area.

Mr. Stanley said the work from gathering the brush and trees from the ice storm have likely moved the
mowing schedule back.

Supervisor Townsend reported that he is receiving calls about Rice Creek Road and asked if there is
something that can be done to begin work; he said the road is rough and the trees need trimmed back.

Supervisor Gilliam stated contract crews did a good job on Heights School Road.

Supervisor Emert said the ditches are better on Buffalo Church Road, but the road is like a washboard.

In Re: Citizen Volunteer Appointments — Board of Appeals for Building Code

Supervisor Townsend made a motion, seconded by Supervisor Gilliam, to re-appoint Donald Amos, Jr. to
the Board of Appeals for Building Code for a term of five years beginning July 1, 2025 and ending June 30, 2030;
the motion carried:

Aye: Pattie Cooper-Jones Nay: None
J. David Emert
Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.
Victor “Bill” Jenkins
Odessa H. Pride
Jerry R. Townsend
Cannon Watson
Absent: E. Harrison Jones

In Re: Citizen Volunteer Appointments — County Industrial Development Authority

Supervisor Townsend made a motion, seconded by Supervisor Gilliam, to re-appoint Quincy Handy and
Tim Tharpe to the County Industrial Development Authority for a term of four years beginning July 1, 2025 and
ending June 30, 2029; the motion carried:

Aye: Pattie Cooper-Jones Nay: None
J. David Emert
Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.
Victor “Bill” Jenkins
Odessa H. Pride
Jerry R. Townsend
Cannon Watson
Absent: E. Harrison Jones

In Re: Citizen Volunteer Appointments — Social Services Board

Supervisor Townsend made a motion, seconded by Supervisor Gilliam, to re-appoint Pamela Snead to the

Social Services Board for a term of four years beginning July 1, 2025 and ending June 30, 2029; the motion carried:

43
64



Aye: Pattie Cooper-Jones Nay: None
J. David Emert
Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.
Victor “Bill” Jenkins
Odessa H. Pride
Jerry R. Townsend
Cannon Watson
Absent: E. Harrison Jones

In Re: Citizen Volunteer Appointments — Central Va. Regional Library Board

Supervisor Townsend made a motion, seconded by Supervisor Gilliam, to re-appoint Shauna Hunter-
McKinney to the Central Virginia Regional Library Board for a term of four years beginning July 1, 2025 and ending
June 30, 2029; the motion carried:

Aye: Pattie Cooper-Jones Nay: None
J. David Emert
Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.
Victor “Bill” Jenkins
Odessa H. Pride
Jerry R. Townsend
Cannon Watson
Absent: E. Harrison Jones

In Re: Citizen Volunteer Appointments — Poplar Hill CDA
Supervisor Townsend made a motion, seconded by Supervisor Gilliam, to re-appoint John Gantt and Kim
Yeatts to the Poplar Hill CDA for a term of two years beginning July 1, 2025 and ending June 30, 2027; the motion

carried:

Aye: Pattie Cooper-Jones Nay: None
J. David Emert
Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.
Victor “Bill” Jenkins
Odessa H. Pride
Jerry R. Townsend
Cannon Watson
Absent: E. Harrison Jones

In Re: Citizen Volunteer Appointments — Southside Virginia Community College Board

Supervisor Townsend made a motion, seconded by Supervisor Gilliam, to re-appoint Russell Dove to the
Southside Virginia Community College Board for a term of four years beginning July 1, 2025 and ending June 30,

2029; the motion carried:

44
65



Aye: Pattie Cooper-Jones Nay: None
J. David Emert
Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.
Victor “Bill” Jenkins
Odessa H. Pride
Jerry R. Townsend
Cannon Watson
Absent: E. Harrison Jones

In Re: Citizen Volunteer Appointments — County Planning Commission

Supervisor Townsend made a motion, seconded by Supervisor Gilliam, to appoint Ken Copeland to the
County Planning Commission to fill the unfilled term and ending December 31, 2025; the motion carried:

Aye: Pattie Cooper-Jones Nay: None
J. David Emert
Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.
Victor “Bill” Jenkins
Odessa H. Pride
Jerry R. Townsend
Cannon Watson
Absent: E. Harrison Jones

In Re: Appropriation of FY26 Prince Edward County Budget

On April 29, 2025, the Board of Supervisors approved the FY26 Budget for Prince Edward County. The
resolution adopted on that date listed a total budget of $127,692,756 which included a School budget of $33,014,882
and a School Cafeteria Budget of $1,954,000.

While the Board approved the FY26 Budget, funds cannot be expended until appropriated. The Annual
Resolution of Appropriation empowers the County officers to expend and manage funds in accordance with the
policies contained in the resolution; the Board was presented with the proposed resolution and a listing of FY26
appropriations by department/fund.

Supervisor Emert made a motion, seconded by Supervisor Cooper-Jones, to approve the Annual Resolution
of FY26 Appropriations and appropriate the FY26 Budget for each County Department and Fund; the motion carried:

Aye: Pattie Cooper-Jones Nay: None
J. David Emert
Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.
Victor “Bill” Jenkins
Odessa H. Pride
Jerry R. Townsend

Cannon Watson
Absent: E. Harrison Jones

45
66



ANNUAL RESOLUTION OF APPROPRIATION OF THE COUNTY OF PRINCE EDWARD

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2026

A resolution to appropriate designated funds and accounts from specified estimated revenues for FY 2026 for the
operating budget and the Capital Improvements Program for the County of Prince Edward and to authorize and
empower County officers to expend funds and manage cash assets; and to establish policies under which funds will
be expended and managed.

The Prince Edward County Board of Supervisors does hereby resolve on this 10th day of June 2025 that, for the
fiscal year beginning on July 1, 2025, and ending on June 30, 2026, the following sections are hereby adopted.

Section 1.

Section 2.

Section 3.

Section 4.

Section 5.

Section 6.

Section 7.

Section 8.

Section 9.

The cost centers shown on the attached letter labeled FY 2025-2026 Appropriations are hereby
appropriated from the designated estimated revenues as approved by the Board of Supervisors on
April 29, 2025 for FY 2025-2026.

Appropriations, in addition to those contained in this general Appropriations Resolution, may be
made by the Board of Supervisors, only if deemed appropriate and there is available in the fund
unencumbered or unappropriated sums sufficient to meet such appropriations.

All appropriations herein authorized shall be on the basis of cost centers for all departments and
agencies and by Category.

The Social Services Board is separately granted authority for implementation of the appropriated
funds for their respective operations. By this resolution the Social Services Board is authorized to
approve the transfer of any unencumbered balance or portion thereof from one classification of
expenditure to another within its respective funds in any amount.

The School Board is separately granted authority for implementation of the appropriated funds for
their respective operations. Appropriations for the School Board are by Category. By this resolution
the School Board is authorized to approve the transfer of any unencumbered balance or portion
thereof from one classification of expenditure to another within a category.

The County Administrator is expressly authorized to approve transfers of any unencumbered
balance or portion thereof from one classification of expenditure to another within the same Fund
with the exception of Constitutional Officers for the efficient operation of government. Transfers
into or out of a department of a Constitutional Officer requires prior approval of the Board of
Supervisors.

All outstanding encumbrances, both operating and capital, at June 30, 2025 shall be re-appropriated
to the FY 2026 fiscal year to the same cost center and account for which they are encumbered in the
previous year.

At the close of the fiscal year, all unencumbered appropriations lapse for budget items other than
those involving ongoing operational projects or programs supported by grants or County funds,
which must be preapproved by the County Administrator or his designee and submitted to the Board
of Supervisors for final approval. Such funds must be applied to the purpose for which they were
originally approved.

Appropriations previously designated for capital projects will not lapse at the end of the fiscal year
but shall remain appropriated until the completion of the project if funding is available from all
planned sources, or until the Board of Supervisors, by appropriate ordinance, resolution or other
action changes or eliminates the appropriation. Upon completion of a capital project, the County
Administrator is hereby authorized to close out the project and return to the funding source any
remaining balances. This section applies to all existing appropriations for capital projects at June
30, 2025 and appropriations as they are made in the FY 2026 Budget. The County Administrator is
hereby authorized to approve construction change orders to contracts up to an increase of $10,000.00

46
67



Section 10.

Section 11.

Section 12.

Section 13.

Section 14.

Section 15.

Section 16.

Section 17.

or five percent, whichever is greater, as long as funds are available from the funding sources and
approve all change orders for reduction of contracts.

The approval of the Board of Supervisors of any grant of funds to the County shall constitute the
appropriation of both the revenue to be received from the grant and the County's expenditure
required by the terms of the grant, if any. The appropriation of grant funds will not lapse at the end
of the fiscal year but shall remain appropriated until completion of the project or until the Board of
Supervisors, by appropriate action, changes or eliminates the appropriation. The County
Administrator may increase or reduce any grant appropriation to the level approved by the granting
agency during the fiscal year and appropriate grant funding not to exceed $20,000.00. The County
Administrator may approve necessary accounting transfers between departments and funds to
enable the grant to be accounted for in the correct manner. Upon completion of a grant project, the
County Administrator is authorized to close out the grant and return to the funding source any
remaining balance. This section applies to appropriations for grants outstanding at June 30, 2025
and appropriations in the FY 2026 Budget.

The County Administrator may reduce revenue and expenditure appropriations related to programs
funded all or in part by the Commonwealth of Virginia and/or the Federal Government to the level
approved by the responsible state or federal agency.

The County Administrator is authorized to make transfers to the various funds for which there are
transfers budgeted. The County Administrator shall transfer funds as deemed necessary up to
amounts budgeted or in accordance with any existing bond resolutions that specify the matter in
which transfers are to be made.

The Treasurer may advance monies to and from the various funds of the County to allow maximum
cash flow efficiency. The advances must not violate County bond covenants or other legal
restrictions that would prohibit an advance. The Treasurer is authorized and directed to credit all
interest received from the investment of all County funds to the General fund, with the exception of
the School Construction Fund, Economic Development Fund, Recreation Fund, Forfeited Assets
Fund, Landfill Fund, D.A.R.E. Fund, VDOT Revenue Sharing Fund (non-local money only) and
the Piedmont Court Services Fund, wherein all interest earned will be credited to the respective
funds.

All procurement activities with funds appropriated herein shall be made in accordance with the
County purchasing policy and applicable state statutes.

It is the intent of this resolution that funds be expended for the purpose indicated in the budget;
therefore, budgeted funds may not be transferred from operating expenditures to capital projects or
from capital projects to operating expenses without the prior approval from the Board of
Supervisors. Also, funds may not be transferred from one capital project to another without the prior
approval of the Board of Supervisors.

The County Administrator is authorized, pursuant to State statute, to issue orders and checks for
payments where funds have been budgeted, appropriated, and where sufficient funds are available.
A listing of vendor payments shall be presented to the Board of Supervisors for information not less
frequently than monthly.

Subject to the qualifications in this resolution contained, all appropriations are declared to be
maximum, conditional and proportionate appropriations - the purpose being to make the
appropriations payable in full in the amount named herein if necessary and then only in the event
the aggregate revenues collected and available during the fiscal year for which the appropriations
are made are sufficient to pay all the appropriations in full. Otherwise, the said appropriations shall
be deemed to be payable in such proportions as the total sum of all realized revenue of the respective
funds is to the total amount of revenue estimated to be available in the said fiscal year by the Board
of Supervisors.

47
68



Section 18.

Section 19.

Section 20.

Section 21.

All revenues received by an agency under the financial control of the Board of Supervisors or by
the School Board or by the Social Services Board not included in its estimate of revenue for the
financing of the fund budget as submitted to the Board of Supervisors may not be expended by said
agency under the financial control of the Board of Supervisors or by the School Board or by the
Social Services Board without the consent of the Board of Supetvisors being first obtained, and
those sums appropriated to the budget. Any grant approved by the Board for application shall not
be expended until the grant is approved by the funding agency for drawdown. Nor may any of these
agencies or boards make expenditures which will exceed a specific item of an appropriation.

Allowances out of any of the appropriations made in this ordinance by any or all County
departments, commissions, bureaus, or agencies under the financial control of the Board of
Supervisors to any of their officers and employees for expense on account of the use of such officers
and employees of their personal automobiles in the discharge of their official duties shall be paid at
the same rate as that established by the internal revenue service and shall be subject to change by
the County Administrator from time to time to maintain like rates.

All previous appropriation ordinances or resolutions to the extent that they are inconsistent with the
provisions of this ordinance shall be and the same are hereby repealed.

This ordinance shall become effective on July 1, 2025.

In Re: FY25 Appropriations — Sheriff’s Department

The Sheriff’s Department received a $1,000.00 donation from Wawa for Lieutenant Sprague's participation

in the Hoagies for Heroes hoagie building competition during the recent grand opening and a $250.00 donation from

Project Life Saver. The Board is asked to appropriate funds as follows:

FY25 BUDGET SUPPLEMENT
Rev/Exp Fund Dept Object Description Debit Credit
3 (Rev) 100 18990 0001 | Sheriff — Donations $1,250.00
4 (Exp) 100 31200 3110 | Animal Care $1,000.00
4 (Exp) 100 31200 6030 | Non-Capital Equipment $250.00

Supervisor Townsend made a motion, seconded by Supervisor Gilliam, to approve the budget supplement

request and appropriate the same funds; the motion carried:

Aye: Pattie Cooper-Jones Nay: None

J. David Emert

Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.
Victor “Bill” Jenkins
Odessa H. Pride
Jerry R. Townsend
Cannon Watson

Absent: E. Harrison Jones

48
69



In Re: IT — Data Backup System

Pursuant to the procurement policy, Shawn Howard, IT Director, solicited three bids to upgrade the County's
antiquated data backup process. The objective is to improve our process to current standards, ensuring government
continuity in the event of a catastrophic loss due to natural disaster, server crash, malware etc.

IT Noble, Inc. was the mid-tier offer that provided the best value of security and reliability for Cloud backup
and Disaster Recovery with Infinite Data Retention. The Board is asked to approve the total proposal of $25,065.00
for a 3-year term. The cost covers the annual subscription and maintenance fee ($7,986.67/year), one-time installation
fee ($1,080.00), and shipping (25.00).

Supervisor Cooper-Jones made a motion, seconded by Supervisor Townsend, to approve the proposal from
IT Noble totaling $25,065.00 for a three-year term; the motion carried:

Aye: Pattie Cooper-Jones Nay: None
J. David Emert
Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.
Victor “Bill” Jenkins
Odessa H. Pride
Jerry R. Townsend
Cannon Watson
Absent: E. Harrison Jones

In Re: Public Safety Committee Report

The Public Safety Committee met Monday, June 2 at 12:00 p.m. The Committee comprises Supervisor
Jerry Townsend, Chair, Supervisor Bill Jenkins and Supervisor Llew Gilliam.
The Committee brings the following recommendations to the Board of Supervisor for action:

1. As the Board is aware, the discussion of consolidating the 911 Center and the Sheriff's Office
Dispatch has been ongoing for about two years. The Committee has reviewed the dispatch
efficiencies and radio system savings that would occur from the consolidation. The Committee met
again with the Sheriff on June 2 and recommends to the Board:

a.  Approval of the creation of a Joint Emergency Communications Center;

b.  Authorize the Board Chair and County Administrator to execute a Joint Emergency
Communications Center Agreement); and

c.  Authorize an FY 26 Budget supplement in the amount of $211,775.47 from Fund Balance and
authorize the transfer of $69,383.77 from Sheriff-Salary & Wages to Emergency Services-Join

911 Communications Center line item.

49
70



FY26 BUDGET SUPPLEMENT

Rev/Exp Fund Dept Object Description Debit Credit
3 (Rev) 100 41050 0100 | General Fund Balance $211,775.47
4 (Exp) 100 31200 1100 | Salary & Wages (Co. Savings) $69,383.77
4 (Exp) 100 32500 5024 | Joint 911 Comm Center $281,159.24

2. Approve the requests from Prince Edward Volunteer Rescue Squad for EMS Levy Contingency
Funds to reimburse for costs associated with building generator repairs and replacement of HVAC
unit and hot water tank for the building at a cost of $46,887.68.

Supervisor Gilliam made a motion, seconded by Supervisor Emert, to accept the recommendations of the
Public Safety Committee to approve the creation of a Joint Emergency Communications Center; to authorize the
Board Chair or County Administrator to execute the Joint Emergency Communications Center Agreement; to
approve the FY 26 Budget supplement request and transfer as outlined in the amount of $281,159.24; and to approve
the request from PEVRS to be reimbursed from EMS Levy Contingency Funds for building generator repairs, HVAC
and hot water tank replacement for a total of $46,887.68; the motion carried:

Aye: Pattie Cooper-Jones Nay: None
J. David Emert
Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.
Victor “Bill” Jenkins
Odessa H. Pride
Jerry R. Townsend
Cannon Watson
Absent: E. Harrison Jones

In Re: County Administrator’s Report

Mr. Stanley presented his County Administrator’s report:

County Website — The new County website was launched on Monday, June 2. The site features a cleaner look and
greater ease of use with portable devices. Please review when you can.

Emergency Radio System/Federal Appropriation — Senators Kaine and Warner had a $1,690,000 appropriation
included in the FY25 Federal budget. The fact that the budget was not approved essentially killed the request. They
have again asked for the appropriation to be included in the FY26 budget. Fingers crossed.

Worsham Convenience Site — The project is currently out to bid with bids due at the end of the month. I have
secured a temporary site for use during construction from Mark Southall at no cost so we can provide service to the
public during construction (August-December).

Prince Edward Business Park/Access Road — We have the final plat put together showing the right-of-way
dedication. Once recorded, VDOT is prepared to take the road into the state system effectively completing that
project.

50
71



HIT Park/Grant Application — Staff worked with the CRC this week to submit a $500,000 State Economic and
Infrastructure (SEID) Grant pre-application through the Southeast Crescent Regional Commission. Grant funds
would be used for right-of-way acquisition and utility relocation for Persimmon Tree Fork Road leading into the HIT
Park. Localities from Alabama, Georgia, Mississippi, North Carolina, South Carolina, and Virginia are eligible to
apply. In addition, we should be hearing from VEDP on our Sites Ready grant request this summer.

Business 460 (3™ Street)/Persimmon Tree Fork Road Intersection Improvements — VDOT is working with the
Town and County to study and identify options to improve the intersection in anticipation of the development of the
HIT Park. They will be looking to hold a community information meeting this fall.

Kinex/Planet Network Broadband Project — As of June 1%, a total of 370 miles of middle-mile conduit and fiber
have been installed in Prince Edward County (51 miles/VATI and 319/RDOF) and 4,019 passings have been
completed with a total of 940 customer installs. They have indicated that they have completed their major system
repairs to installed fiber.

Recycling RFP — The County received one proposal for recycling services from Elite Recycling out of
Brookneal. We will be reviewing the proposal and working on a draft contract to present to the Board at its June 10t

meeting.

Zion Hill Sidewalk/Grant Application — Working with the CRC and VDOT staffs, we have submitted the TAP grant
for the sidewalk project to connect the high school and Poplar Forest apartment complex.

Tobacco Commission — We received word that the Tobacco Commission’s next round of funding will have a July
17% deadline. I am working with Chelsey to put a couple proposals together.

In Re: Treasurer’s Report

Donna Nunnally, Treasurer, submitted a report for the month of April 2025, which was reviewed and

ordered to be filed with the Board papers.

Prince Edward Treasurer's Report - April 2025

Name of Bank Ref # Int. Rate Int. Paid Bank Balance
Benchmark Pooled Fund Account 7654 2.75% $59,664.10 $24,362,565.73
Benchmark Social Services 9746 $221,986.09
Benchmark School Fund 3352 $2,106,204.57
Benchmark Food Service 3742 $131,957.81
TOTAL $26,882,715.20

*Note: School Fund and Cafeteria Fund balances shown above are estimated balances due to end of the fiscal year.

Certificates of Deposit

Ref # Int. Rate Bank Balance Available Balance
Benchmark 0994 1% $125,365.67

0995 1% $125,365.67
Recreation Fund 0998 3.55% $18,242.47
Benchmark 5 Yr CD-letter of credit 0632 1% $678,161.30 $947,135.11
Benchmark Investment Acct L796 3.02% $2,223,957.58 $2,223,957.58

51

72



Farmers Bank

Underground Storage 2478 2.48% $23,504.04 $23,504.04
Virginia Investment Pool 184 4.48% $10,761,457.13 $10,761,457.13
TOTAL $13,956,053.86
GRAND TOTAL $40,778,769.06

In Re: Review of Accounts & Claims. Board Mileage. County Attorney Invoices

Crystal Baker, Finance Manager, submitted reports for the month of May 2025, Mileage Reports and County

Attorney Invoices, which were reviewed and ordered to be filed with the Board papers.

In Re: Salaries
The County Administrator reported that checks have been issued pursuant to the order of the Board of

Supervisors as to salaries, etc., the amount of which salaries have been heretofore approved.

In Re: Animal Warden’s Report

Mr. Adam Mumma, Chief Animal Control Officer, submitted a report for the month of May 2025, which

were reviewed and ordered to be filed with the Board papers.

In Re: Building Official’s Report

Mr. Phillip Moore, Building Inspector, submitted a report for the month of May 2025, which was reviewed

and ordered to be filed with the Board papers.

In Re: Commonwealth Regional Council Items of Interest

Lauren Jones Pugh, CRC Planning Director, submitted reports for the month of May 2025, which were reviewed

and ordered to be filed with the Board papers.

In Re: Tourism and Visitor Center Report

Ms. Chelsey White, Director of Economic Development and Tourism, submitted a report for the month of

May 2025, which was reviewed and ordered to be filed with the Board papers.

52
73



Mr. Stanley reported that he and Supervisor Pride are working on an outline for the Strategic Plan and will

have to find a date for that meeting.

On motion of Supervisor Emert, seconded by Supervisor Cooper-Jones, and adopted by the following vote:

Aye: Pattie Cooper-Jones Nay: None
J. David Emert
Llew W. Gilliam, Jr.
Victor “Bill” Jenkins
Odessa H. Pride
Jerry R. Townsend
Cannon Watson
Absent: E. Harrison Jones

the meeting was adjourned at 9:11 p.m.

53
74



Board of Supervisors
Agenda Summary

Meeting Date: July 8, 2025

Item #: 9

Department: County Administration

Staff Contact: Douglas P. Stanley

Agenda Item: Community Partner Updates

SUMMARY: The following community partners will join the Board at its May meeting:

¢ Prince Edward County Public Schools
Donald “Chip” Jones II, Ed.D., Supetintendent

Motion Cooper-Jones Gilliam Pride
Second Emert Jenkins Townsend
Jones Watson ___

75



[This pageintentionally left blank]

76



Board of Supervisors
Agenda Summary

Meeting Date: July 8, 2025

Item #: 10

Department: County Administration

Staff Contact: Sarah Elam Puckett

Agenda Item: Highway Matters
SUMMARY:

Scott Frederick, PE, VDOT Resident Engineer, will be present for the July meeting.

COST:
ATTACHMENTS:
RECOMMENDATION:

SAMPLE MOTION:

Motion
Second

None.
Cooper-Jones Gilliam
Emert Jenkins

Jones

Pride

Townsend ___

Watson

77



[This pageintentionally left blank]

/78



Board of Supervisors
Agenda Summary

Meeting Date: July 8, 2025

Item #: 11

Department: County Administration

Staff Contact: Douglas Stanley

Agenda Item: Industrial Access Funding — Enterprise Lane
SUMMARY:

On January 15, 2000, the Commonwealth Transportation Board passed a funding resolution
for the Prince Edward County business park to provide up to $650,000 to consauct a new access
road. The County experienced a number of delays including the changing of County Administrators
and the need to acquire additional right-of-way for the project. The project design was finalized in
Spring 2022 and put out to bid. The Board of Supetvisors approved a contract in July 2022 to J.R.
Caskey and the road was subsequently completed in 2023. County staff and our consulting engineer
have completed all of the closeout documents and we have put the final right-of-way deed to record
which was VDOT’s final hurdle to taking the project into the state system.

As part of the VDOT Induswial Access program, recipient localities have 5 years from the
date of award to provide eligible capital outlay documentation on the project. This was in large part
due to right-of-way issues and COVID which have slowed down economic development. In our
case, we have to document at least $3,250,000 worth of investment in the park. To-date, the County
has failed to secure the required investment. This requires the County repay VDOT the grant funds
over a 5-year period at $130,000 per year. VDOT, in their letter of June 9®, has indicated that the
first payment was due in April. Subsequent payments must be made by January 15 in the years
2026-2029. The good news is that the County can request that VDOT reimburse Prince Edward
County for any funds repaid between now and January 2029 if we are able to attached development
meeting the investment threshold.

County staff have prioritized marketing of the site with VEDA and VHREDA and are
confident we can attract the qualifying development between now and 2029 barring any unusual
circumstances. In the meantime, we will pull the required funding from our Capital Improvement
budget line.

ATTACHMENT: VDOT request letter (dated June 9, 2025)

RECOMMENDATION: The Board approve the request to make the $130,000 payment for
Year 1 of the repayment schedule for the Industrial Access Grant for the Prince Edward County
Business Park.

SAMPLE MOTION:

I move the Board of Supetvisors approve the request and make the $130,000 payment for 2025 to
VDOT for Year 1 of the repayment schedule for the Industrial Access Grant for the Prince Edward
County Business Park.

Motion Cooper-Jones ___ Gilliam Pride o
Second Emert Jenkins Townsend ___
Jones Watson

79



COMMONWEALTH of VIRGINIA

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
1401 EAST BROAD STREET
RICHMOND, VIRGINIA 23218-2000

Stephen C. Brich, P.E.
Commissioner

June 9, 2025

Douglas Stanley, County Administrator
Prince Edward County

111 N South Street

Farmville, VA 23901

Dear Mr. Stanley,

On January 15, 2020, the Commonwealth Transportation Board (CTB) passed a resolution (attached)
titled, Economic Development Access to Prince Edward Business Park, which approved a $650,000
Economic Development Access (EDA) grant to assist Prince Edward County with the construction of an
access project to Prince Edward County Business Park. Included in the CTB’s Resolution is the
requirement that Prince Edward County shall provide eligible capital outlay documentation of at least
$3,250,000 to the Department within 5 years.

During the General Assembly’s 2021 Special Session, Budget Bill HB1800 Item 451 G (attached)
extended the bonded period for EDA Program projects by implementing a 48-month moratorium on all
paybacks related to bonded EDA projects, thereby affording localities additional time to establish eligible
capital outlay.

The moratorium for bonded EDA program projects expired on April 7, 2025. Prince Edward County has
not provided the Department with any eligible capital outlay documentation. To date, the County has
expended the entirety of the initial $650,000 grant. Without supplying the required documentation, the
County is responsible for repaying all funds not justified by eligible capital outlay pursuant to CTB policy
(CTB Policy Index, page 184, paragraph 21), and in accordance to the established CTB re-payment
schedule. The repayment schedule for this EDA grant is structured as follows.

$130,000 by April 8, 2025

$130,000 by January 15, 2026
$130,000 by January 15, 2027
$130,000 by January 15, 2028
$130,000 by January 15, 2029

VirginiaDOT.org
WE KEEP VIRGINIA MOVING

80



Prince Edward County - EDA Moratorium Letter
06/09/2025
Page 2

Upon receipt of this letter, the County is requested to provide the Department with the following
information within 45 days:

¢ Documentation of pending eligible capital outlay which would satisfy any part of the outstanding
capital outlay requirement. If documentation exists, please provide the potential business name,
amount of potential capital outlay, and date when capital outlay documentation will be available.

¢ Ifno pending eligible capital outlay exists, provide the date on which the Department can expect
to receive the initial repayment amount of $130,000.

VDOT'’s Local Assistance Director, Terry Short, is available to discuss this with you in greater detail
should you have questions or need additional information. Mr. Short can be reached at
Terry.ShortIR@VDOT. Virginia.gov or at 540-447-6350. Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Sincerely,
3 7
Stephen % Brich, P.E.
Commissioner
Enclosure: CTB Resolution — Economic Development Access to Prince Edward County Business

Park
Budget Bill - HB1800 (Chapter 552)

ce: Christopher Winstead, P.E., Lynchburg District Engineer
Terry R. Short, Ir., Local Assistance Division Director
Brittany Voll, Local Assistance Division Assistant Division Administrator
Jonathan Liss, Local Assistance Division State Programs Manager

WE KEEP VIRGINIA MOVING

81



Item 451 (VDOT) Financial Assistance to Localities for Ground Transportation. HB1800 ... Page 1 of 2

Visit the Help Center to learn more about the features of the State Budget Portal.

VIRGINIA STATE BUDGET

2021 Special Session |

Budget Bill - HB1800 (Chapter 552)

Bitl Order » Office of Transportation » item 451

Department of Transportation
ltem 451 First Year- FY2021 Second Year - FY2022
Financial Assistance to Localities for Ground Transportation (60700) $1:167,705,342 $1,185,349.324
$1,128,550,979 $1,285,004,357
Financial Assistance for City Road Maintenance (60701) $404-950.007 SALEAA LD
3397,832,085 $411,077,641
Financial Assistance for County Road Maintenance (60702} $70,445,497 $70,708,334
$70,610,931 371,892,921
Financial Assistance for Planning, Access Roads, and Special Projects (60704) $15,896,079 $16:047-202
$15,935,618
Distribution of Northern Virginia Transportation Authority Fund Revenues $304,600,000 £240,100,000
(60706) $299,311,884 $335,950,325
Distribution of Hampton Roads Transportation Fund Revenues (60707) $2AT400:009 $226,600,000
$208,000,000 $2385,500,000
Distribution of Central Virginia Transportation Fund.Revenues (60710) $122:404.675 SL4e; 752528
$136,900,000 $214,647,852

Fund Sources:

Commonwealth Transportation $488,300,669 $501,896.809
£484,339,095 $498,906, 180
Dedicated Special Revenue $679:404:673 CELEAE2ERE
$644,211,884 $786,098,177

Authority: Title 33.2, Chapter 1, Code of Virginia.

A. Out of the amounts for Financial Assistance for Planning, Access Road, and Special Projects, $7,000,000 the first year and
$7,000,000 the second year from the Commonwealth Transportation Fund shall be allocated for putposes set forth in §§
33.2-1509, 33.2-1600, and 33.2-1510, Code of Virginia. Of this amount, the allocation for Recreational Access Roads shall be
$1,500,000 the first year and $1,500,000 the second year. It is the intent of the General Assembly that up to $250,000 of the
funds allocated by the Commonwealth Transportation Board for Recreational Access Roads in this Item shall be prioritized for
handicapped accessibility improvements at Virginia State Parks, including improvements to handicapped access points and

parking facility enhancements as may be requested by the Department of Conservation and Recreation.

B. Distribution of Northern Virginia Transportation Authority Fund Revenues represents direct payments, of the revenue
collected and deposited into the Fund, to the Northern Virginia Transportation Authority for uses contained in Chapter 766,

2013 Acts of Assembly. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, moneys deposited into the Hampton Roads

Transportation Fund shall be transferred to the Hampton Roads Transportation Accountability Commission for use in
accordance with § 33.2-2611, Code of Virginia. Distribution of the Central Virginia Transportation Authority Fund revenues
represents direct payments, of the revenue collected and deposited into the Fund, to the Central Virginia Transportation
Authority for uses contained in House Bill 1541 as enacted by the 2020 General Assembly

https://budget.lis.virginia.gov/item/2021/2/HB 1800/Chapter/1/45 1/
82

4/26/2021



Item 451 (VDOT) Financial Assistance to Localities for Ground Transportation. HB1800 ... Page 2 of 2

C. The prioritization process developed under § 33.2-214.1, Code of Virginia, shall not apply to use of funds provided in this
Item from federal apportionments in the Metropolitan Planning Program,

D. Consistent with § 33.2-366, Code of Virginia, the Commonwealth Transportation Board, when establishing annual rates of
payments to Counties that have elected to withdraw from the secondary highway system, shall adjust such rate annually with
i) procedures established for adjusting payments to cities, and ii) lane mileage adjustments, It is the express intent of the
General Assembly that under no circumstance shall the addition of lane miles to one jurisdiction result in the direct or indirect
reduction in the calculation of payment to any other jurisdiction receiving payment from funds appropriated for Financial
Assistance for County Road Maintenance (60702).

E. The Department of Transportation shall report on an annual basis to the Commonwealth Transportation Board on the
impact of adjusting the payments made as part of Financial Assistance to Localities distributions for inflation consistent with
adjustments for highway system maintenance and operations.

F. Of the amounts in this item, $1,000,000 the first year and $1,000,000 the second year from the Commonwealth
Transportation Fund is appropriated for service charges to be paid to localities in which the Virginia Port Authority owns tax-
exempt real estate for roadway maintenance activities in the jurisdictions hosting Virginia Port Authority facilities. These
payments shall be treated the same as other Commonwealth Transportation Board payments to localities for highway
maintenance. These funds shall not be used for other activities nor shall they supplant other local government expenditures
for roadway maintenance. These funds shall be distributed to the localities on a pro rata basis in accordance with the formula
set out in § 58.1-3403 D, Code of Virginia; however, the proportion of the funds distributed based on cargo traveling through
each port facility shall be distributed on a pro rata basis according to twenty-foot equivalent units.

G. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 33.2- 1509, Code of Virginia, and consistent with the provisions of § 4-13.00 of this Act, ne
locality that has been allocated funds for a bonded project by the Commonwealth Transportation Board pursuant to § 33.2-1509,
Code of Virginia, shall be required to repay such funds during the 48-month period beginning on the effective date of this aci,
provided that ali of the other conditions of the Commonwealth Transportation Board's economic development access policy are met,

https://budget.lis.virginia.gov/item/202 1/2/HB 1800/Chapter/1/451/ 4/26/2021
83



COMMONWEALTH of VIRGINIA

Commonwealth Transportation Board

Shannon Valentine 1401 East Broad Street (804) 786-2701
Chairpersan Richmond, Virginia 23219 Fax- (804) 786-2940

Agenda Item # 14

RESOLUTION
OF THE
COMMONWEALTH TRANSPORTATION BOARD

January 15, 2020
MOTION

Made By: Mr. Dodson, Seconded By: Mr. Miller
Action: Motion Carried, Unanimously

Title: Economic Development Access to
Prince Edward County Business Park
Project ECON-073-639 — Prince Edward County

WHEREAS, § 33.2-1509 of the Code of Virginia provides funds to "...be expended by
the Board for constructing, reconstructing, maintaining or improving access roads within
localities to economic development sites on which manufacturing, processing, research and
development facilities, distribution centers, regional service centers, corporate headquarters, or
other establishments that also meet basic employer criteria as determined by the Virginia
Economic Development Partnership in consultation with the Virginia Department of Small
Business and Supplier Diversity will be built under firm contract or are already constructed ...”
and, “in the event there is no such establishment or... firm contract, a locality may guarantee to
the Board by bond or other acceptable device that such will occur and, should no establishment
or airport acceptable to the Board be constructed or under firm contract within the time limits of
the bond, such bongd shall be forfeited.”; and

WHEREAS, the Prince Edward County Board of Supervisors has, by appropriate
resolution, requested Economic Development Access Program funds to serve eligible property
located within the Prince Edward Business Park, located off of Commerce Road (Route 628),
and said access is estimated to cost approximately $2.1 million; and

WHEREAS, it appears that this request falls within the intent of § 33.2-1509 of the Code

of Virginia and complies with the provisions of the Commonwealth Transportation Board’s
(CTB) policy on Economic Development Access.

84



Resolution of the Board

Economic Development Access Program - Business Park - Prince Edward County
January 15, 2020

Page Two

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that $650,000 ($500,000 unmatched and
$150,000 matched) of the Economic Development, Airport and Rail Access Fund is allocated to
provide adequate access to eligible property within the Prince Edward County Business Park
property, located off of Commerce Road (Route 628), just south of Farmville in the southwest
quadrant of U.S. Highway 15 and U.S. Hiighway460, Project ECON-011-XXX, contingent
upon:

1. All right of way, environmental assessments and remediation, and utility adjustments
being provided at no cost to the Commonwealth; and

2. Execution of an appropriate contractual agreement between Prince Edward County
(LOCALITY) and the Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT), to provide for
the:

a. Design, administration, construction and maintenance of this project; and

b. Payment of all ineligible costs, and of any eligible costs in excess of this
allocation, from sources other than those administered by VDOT; and

c. Provision by the LOCALITY of either i) documentation of a least $3,250,000 of
eligible capital outlay attributed to qualifying business on property served exclusively
by this project, or ii) should documentation of capital outlay be insufficient, an
appropriate bond or other acceptable surety device by the LOCALITY to VDOT, not to
expire before February 15, 2025, without written permission of VDOT. Such surety
device shall provide for reimbursement to VDOT of any expenses incurred by the
Economic Development, Airport and Rail Access Fund for this project’s construction
not justified by the eligible capital outlay of establishments served by the project. If, by
January 15, 2025, at least $3,250,000 of eligible capital outlay on property served
exclusively by this project has not been expended or committed by firm contract by a
qualified establishment or establishments, then an amount equal to 20% of the eligible
capital outlay of up to $3,250,000 will be credited toward the project’s Economic
Development Access Program allocation utilized in the project’s construction and the
balance of the utilized allocation not justified by eligible capital outlay will be returned
to VDOT and the Economic Development, Airport and Rail Access Fund in
accordance with the CTB’s Economic Development Access Fund Policy. This surety
may be released or reduced accordingly at an earlier date upon provision of
documentation of eligible capital outlay by a qualified establishment, or
establishments; and

3. Determination by VDOT of eligible capital outlay in accordance with current policy
and procedures for administering the Economic Development Access Program.

i

85



[This pageintentionally left blank]

86



Board of Supervisors

Agenda Summary
Meeting Date: July 8, 2025
Item #: 12
Department: County Administration
Staff Contact: Jeffrey L. Jones/Sarah Elam Puckett
Agenda Item: Solid Waste /Landfill Engineering Services Contract

Summary: Attached for the Board’s approval is the FY 26 Contract and Scope of Work with
LaBella for the County’s solid waste/landfill engineering services. County Procurement Policy
requires contracts in excess of $50,000 be approved by the Board of Supervisors. Funds for this
contract are included in the Solid Waste Department of the FY 26 County Budget.

Attachments: FY 2026 LaBella Contract and Scope of Work for Landfill Engineering

Recommendation:
1. Approve the FY 26 contract for Solid Waste Engineering & Environmental Consulting
services to Labella in the amount of $224,000; and
2. Authorize the County Administrator to execute the contract on the behalf of the County.

SAMPLE MOTIONS:
1. T move the Board of Supervisors approve the contract with LaBella in the amount of
$224,000 and authorize the County Administrator to execute the contract on behalf of the
County.

or

2. I'move the Board of Supervisors table action on the LaBella contract; or

Motion Cooper-Jones Gilliam Pride
Second Emert Jenkins Townsend ___
Jones Watson

87



LaBella

Powered by partnership.

June 12, 2025

Mr. Douglas P. Stanley
County of Prince Edward
111 N. South St., 31 Floor
Farmville, VA 23901

Re: Scope for Professional Consulting Services
Prince Edward County Landfill (Fiscal Year 2026)
LaBella Agreement No. 1875-06

Dear Mr. Stanley:

LaBella Associates, D.P.C., P.C. (LaBella) appreciates the opportunity to offer professional consulting
services for the County of Prince Edward. LaBella is submitting below the proposed scope of services
for your review and consideration, which includes a description of the consulting services to be
performed (Scope of Services), fees, current rate schedule, and service guarantees.

Background

The County currently operates the Prince Edward County Landfill located off State Route 684,
approximately 5 miles west of the Town of Farmwville, Virginia. The facility encompasses approximately
99 acres, of which approximately 21 acres comprise the currently active disposal area.

There are three disposal areas: a closed disposal unit that operated under Solid Waste Permit No.
420 (incorporated into the current Permit No. 584 in 1998), a separate disposal unit to the south of
the Permit No. 420 area that was closed prior to 1988, and the currently permitted disposal area (Cells
A-F).

The County maintains an Assessment Monitoring Program in accordance with the Virginia Solid Waste
Management Regulations (VSWMR). Groundwater corrective action was implemented in 2006 and
was based on monitored natural attenuation (MNA) for organics and Long-Term Performance (LTP)
monitoring for inorganics. Results of corrective action activities are reported to the Virginia
Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) every three years in a Corrective Action Site Evaluation
(CASE) report, with the next report due on June 23, 2027.

The facility also conducts quarterly landfill gas monitoring of 19 boundary probes and one building.
Stormwater monitoring is also conducted and reported in accordance with the facility’s Virginia
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (VPDES) General Permit.

The services presented herein will be conducted by LaBella during the period July 1, 2025, through
June 30, 2026.

1604 Ownby Lane | Richmond, VA 23220 | p (804) 355-4520 | f (804) 355-4282

88



1

Task 01 - Groundwater Compliance Monitoring and Reporting

Scope

The compliance groundwater monitoring network is monitored quarterly under the Assessment
Monitoring Program pursuant to the VSWMR. The monitoring is typically conducted in March, June,
September, and December using a network of two upgradient monitoring wells (M-3 and MW-12R)
and twelve downgradient compliance monitoring wells (M-2R, MW-4R, MW-5, MW-7, MW-8, MW-0,
MW-10, MW-11, MW-13, MW-15, P-3R, and NE-6). The objective of the proposed scope of services
is to continue compliance monitoring at the facility in accordance with Module XI of the facility’s
permit. The scope of service for this task will include the following activities:

Collecting quarterly groundwater samples from the two upgradient and twelve downgradient
compliance monitoring wells in accordance with the VSWMR. Compliance monitoring will include
conducting one VSWMR Table 3.1 Column B groundwater sampling event and three VSWMR Table
3.1 Column A constituents plus Table 3.1 Column B detects events for the facility. The current list
of Table 3.1 Column B detects includes bis(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate; benzo(a)pyrene;
dichlorodifluoromethane; diethylphthalate; di-n-butylphthalate; isobutyl alcohol; mercury,
naphthalene; sulfide; tin; and 2,4-D. In addition, quality control samples will be analyzed for Table
3.1 Column A/B constituents (as appropriate). Each event will be conducted 75 to 105 days from
the preceding compliance monitoring event;

Conducting well gauging for all compliance wells, including twelve observation wells (ASD-MW-1,
M-2, MW-4, MW-6, MW-12, MW-14, NE-1S, NE-2, NE-3, NE-5, NE-7, and NE-8);

Preparing notification letters for Column B constituents detected in compliance wells during the
annual Column B event within 14 days of the date of the analytical data packages;

Preparing notification letters for GPS exceedances and submitting to the DEQ within 44 days of
the date of the analytical data package; and,

Preparing one Annual Groundwater Monitoring Report for the facility in accordance with the
VSWMR, and meeting the reporting deadlines as determined in 9VAC20-81-250.E.2.b. The report
is due within 120 days of laboratory data receipt. The Annual Report will include a discussion of
the four groundwater monitoring events that occurred during the calendar year and the analytical
results; groundwater contour maps; an evaluation of the monitoring network; and a completed
Annual Report QA/QC Submission Checklist.

Deliverables

The 2025 Annual Groundwater Monitoring Report; and,
Correspondence as necessary.

Schedule
The 3rd and 4t quarter 2025 and 1st and 2nd quarter 2026 monitoring events will occur within 75 to

105 days of the preceding quarterly monitoring event. The 2025 Annual Report will be submitted to
the DEQ, with a copy to the County, within 120 days of the date of the fourth quarter laboratory data
package.

June 2025 Page|2

89



A3

Limitations
The associated fee is based on the following assumptions:

® We assume that no additional constituents will be detected in wells at concentrations exceeding
their respective GPS values. Any additional Table 3.1 Column B detects may incur additional
laboratory costs;

® The associated fee does not include the analytical fees of per-and polyfluorinated substances
(PFAS); and,

¢ (Client-generated activities beyond the above scope or in excess of the budget are subject to
additional charges billed at hourly rates plus expenses or negotiated fees and may affect the task
schedule accordingly.

Compensation
Fixed Fee $82,800 (To be billed on a percent complete basis.)

June 2025 Page|3

90



[

Task 02 - Groundwater Corrective Action Monitoring
Scope

As a result of Groundwater Protection Standard (GPS) exceedances, corrective action was
implemented that consists of Monitored Natural Attenuation (MNA) for organics and Long-Term
Performance (LTP) monitoring for inorganics. The facility permit was amended on June 27, 20086, to
include Module XIV (Corrective Action), the CAP, and the Corrective Action Monitoring Plan (CAMP).
The next CASE report is due to the DEQ by June 27, 2027.

The objective of the proposed scope of service is to continue corrective action groundwater monitoring
in accordance with the facility permit. The scope of service for this task will include the following
activities:

® Collecting semiannual groundwater samples from six performance monitoring wells (M-1, P-2,
MW-16, NE-D, NE-4, and NE-9,) and three sentinel monitoring wells/points (S-1, S-2, and S-3) in
accordance with the facility permit Module XIV. Groundwater samples will be analyzed for the
constituents of concern (COCs), as appropriate, using EPA SW-846 methods, and MNA/LTP
parameters referenced under Section XIV.1.1 of the facility’s permit; and,

® Preparing notification letters for GPS exceedances and submitting to the DEQ within 44 days of
the date of the analytical data package.

Deliverables
® GPS exceedance notifications will be submitted to the DEQ within 44 days of receipt of the
analytical data packages.

hedule
Semiannual corrective action monitoring will be conducted within 150 to 210 days from the preceding
semiannual corrective action monitoring event, and will likely occur in September 2025 and March
2026. Semiannual corrective action monitoring will be conducted concurrently with compliance
monitoring.

Limitations
The associated fee is based on the following assumptions:

® We assume that no additional constituents will be detected in wells at concentrations exceeding
their respective GPS values;

® Preparation of responses to comments from regulators that may resuit from their review of
submitted reports will be handled under Task 06; and,

® C(Client-generated activities beyond the above scope or in excess of the budget are subject to
additional charges billed at hourly rates plus expenses or negotiated fees and may affect the task
schedule accordingly.

Compensation
Fixed Fee $26,200 (To be billed on a percent complete basis.)

June 2025 Page| 4

91



C

Task 03 - Landfill Gas Monitoring

Scope

The facility maintains 19 landfill gas monitoring probes that are monitored on a quarterly schedule.
Also included in quarterly landfill gas monitoring is one facility building (scale house). The monitoring
program is designed to ensure that any methane gas generated by the facility does not exceed 25
percent of the lower explosive limit (LEL) for methane in facility structures (excluding gas control or
recovery system components), and the concentration of methane gas at the facility boundary does not
exceed the LEL for methane.

The objective of the proposed scope of service is to provide Prince Edward County with professional
environmental services related to landfill gas monitoring. The scope of service for this task will include
the following activities:

® Conducting four quarterly landfill gas monitoring events of the 19 landfill gas probes (LMW-1
through LMW-19), and the one building (scale house). Monitoring will measure methane, carbon
dioxide, oxygen, and static pressure. The results will be entered on gas logs and exceedances of
the LEL, if any, will be reported to the DEQ; and,

® Gas monitoring results will be entered on gas logs and a copy provided to the County. Methane
regulatory limit exceedance notifications (>5% by volume) will be made verbally to the DEQ within
24 hours of monitoring and via written notice within 5 days of the exceedance event. Methane
action level exceedance notifications (>4% by volume) will be made in writing within 5 business
days of the monitoring event.

Deliverables
® Gas logs for quarterly monitoring events; and,
® Gas exceedance notifications, if necessary.

Schedule

As a cost-saving measure, the four quarterly landfill gas monitoring events will be conducted
concurrently with the quarterly groundwater monitoring events. Methane regulatory limit exceedance
notifications will be made verbally to the DEQ within 24 hours of monitoring and via written notice
within 5 days of the exceedance event. Methane action level exceedance notification will be made in
writing within 5 business days.

Limitations

The associated fee is based on the following assumptions:

® Monitoring events will be conducted concurrently with quarterly and/or semiannual groundwater
monitoring events. Additional trips for verification monitoring or due to regulatory exceedances will
be conducted as part of General Environmental Consulting (Task 06); and,

® Client-generated activities beyond the above scope or in excess of the budget are subject to
additional charges billed at hourly rates plus expenses or negotiated fees and may affect the task
schedule accordingly.

Compensation
Fixed Fee $5,700 (To be billed on a percent complete basis.)

June 2025 Page|b

92



i,

Task 04 - Stormwater Administration and Reporting
Scope

Under this Task, LaBella will provide support to Prince Edward County for administrative activities
associated with stormwater compliance at the facility. Activities will be conducted according to the
facility’s Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) and stormwater general permit (VPDES Permit
No. VAR051362). LaBella will provide stormwater training, inspection, and reporting services for FY26.

LaBella will provide stormwater administration and reporting services during FY26 as follows:

® Order sample containers for the two stormwater outfalls prior to each 6-month monitoring period.
Containers will be delivered to the facility for use by on-site personnel;

® Arrange for each semiannual sample to be analyzed for the parameters specified in the
Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP);

® Complete a draft electronic Discharge Monitoring Report (e-DMR) for each 6-month monitoring
period. Following review, Prince Edward County will electronically submit each e-DMR to the DEQ.
The e-DMRs are due to the DEQ by January 10 and July 10, 2026, respectively;

® If necessary, prepare a corrective action exceedance report which will be submitted to the DEQ per
Part |.A.1.6.c of the General Permit, if there is an exceedance of an effluent limitation, benchmark
limitation or a water quality standard;

® Conduct annual stormwater training for appropriate facility personnel in accordance with SWPPP
requirements. The appropriate training forms in the SWPPP will be completed; and,

® Conduct a Non-Stormwater Discharge Assessment and complete the associated form. A signature
will be required by a representative of Prince Edward County.

Deliverables

® SWPPP Training Forms;

® Non-Stormwater Discharge Assessment Form; and,
® Draft e-DMRs for submittal by Prince Edward County.

Schedule
The schedule for each service will be as follows:

® e-DMRs entered for Prince Edward County’s review at least 10 days prior to due date; and,

® SWPPP training and Non-Stormwater Discharge Assessment will be conducted on a schedule
agreeable to County personnel. Associated forms will be completed and submitted to Prince
Edward County within 10 business days of site visit.

Limitations
The associated fee is based on the following assumptions:

® Prince Edward County personnel will conduct stormwater sampling, quarterly facility inspections,
and the quarterly visual stormwater inspections;

® We propose to handle responses to regulatory comments under General Environmental Consulting
(Task 06); and,

e Client-generated activities beyond the above scope are subject to additional charges billed at
hourly rates plus expenses or negotiated fees and may affect the task schedule accordingly.

June 2025 Page| 6

93



Compensation

Estimated Fee $10,000 (To be billed on a time and expense basis.)

June 2025 Page|7

94



i

Task 05 - Aerial Survey and Volume Study

Under this Task, LaBella will analyze the volume of airspace consumed at the facility over time. In
accordance with I.F.4 of the facility’s permit, by December 31 of 2023, and every two years thereafter,
a topographic survey should be completed and certified by a professional engineer or certified land
surveyor. Areport is due to DEQ by April 1 of the following year that should include the following:

® areas that have attained final elevations and grades;
® the capacity used during the year;

® the remaining permitted capacity; and,

® the projected remaining site life.

Scope
LaBella will prepare a Volume Study Report for Prince Edward County, including:

® A drone survey of the active landfill will be conducted by LaBella to obtain current topography,
including placing of temporary ground control points;

® Mapping and volume analysis depicting total volume consumed since the previous topographic
survey; and,

® An aerial photo of current site conditions.

Deli bl

Volume Study Report;

Drawing of the site features and topography;

Drawing of the depth of volume consumed since the previous topographic survey; and,
Drawing including an aerial photo of the active area overlaid with topography.

Schedule
The schedule for each service will be as follows:

® The aerial survey will be conducted in December 2025; and,
e Deliverables will be provided within 60 calendar days of drone survey.

Limitations
The associated fee is based on the following assumptions:

® The aerial photo and topography will only cover the non-vegetated areas. Surrounding areas may
be included, but may not show ground features accurately, because they are obscured by
vegetation, or are outside of survey control; and,

e (Client-generated activities beyond the above scope are subject to additional charges billed at
hourly rates plus expenses or negotiated fees and may affect the task schedule accordingly.

Compensation
Fixed Fee $11,600 (To be billed on a percent complete basis.)

June 2025 Page|8

95



L,

Task 06 - General Environmental Consulting

Scope

The objective of the proposed scope of service is to provide Prince Edward County with professional
environmental consulting services regarding the facility that are not included in Tasks 01 through 04.
The scope of services for this task may include the following activities:

Consultation on an as-needed basis for the environmental compliance management program;
Performing re-sampling events;

Responding to letters and other correspondence from regulatory agencies, or other sources,
regarding the environmental program;

® Presentations to County Board of Supervisors as requested to update and educate Board
members on issues relating to the County’s environmental program; and,

® Attending meetings with County staff and/or regulatory agencies to discuss issues relating to the
County’s environmental management program.

Deliverables

e Correspondence as necessary.

Schedule

Correspondence will be provided on an as-needed basis.

Limitati
The associated fee is based on the following assumptions:

® The estimated fee is not intended to be inclusive, but rather provide the County with an initial
budget to address concerns or problems as they arise. The fee is suggested for Fiscal Year 2026;
and,

® (Client-generated activities beyond the above scope or in excess of the budget are subject to
additional charges billed at hourly rates plus expenses or negotiated fees and may affect the task
schedule accordingly.

Compensation
Estimated Fee $15,000 (To be billed on a time and expense basis.)

June 2025 Page|9

96



L1

Task 07 - General Engineering Consulting
Scope

The objective of this task is to provide Prince Edward County with general engineering consulting
services related to the facility’s operations and future design issues.

The scope of services for this task will include the following activities:

Reviewing the facility’s onsite files related to operations and permitting activities;

Site visits and meetings with landfill staff to provide operational assistance as required. This may
include, but not be limited to, preparing and executing a fill sequencing plan, stormwater control,
minimizing leachate generation, equipment usage, and general housekeeping activities;

Observe landfill operations and make recommendations to County Administration;
Consultation on an as-needed basis for engineering issues that may arise;

Presentations to County Board of Supervisors as requested to update and educate board members
on issues relating to the facility; and,

e Attending meetings with County staff and/or regulatory agencies to discuss issues relating to the
facility.

Deliverables
® Correspondence as necessary.

Schedule
Correspondence will be provided on an as-needed basis.

Limitations
The associated fee is based on the following assumptions:

e The estimated fee is not intended to be inclusive, but rather provide the County with an initial
budget to address concerns or problems as they arise. The fee is suggested for Fiscal Year 2026;
and,

e C(Client-generated activities beyond the above scope or in excess of the budget are subject to
additional charges billed at hourly rates plus expenses or negotiated fees and may affect the task
schedule accordingly.

Compensation
Estimated Fee $20,000 (To be billed on a time and expense basis.)
June 2025 Page| 10

97



L

Task 08 - New Regulation Column C Laboratory Fees (If Needed)
Scope

The Virginia Solid Waste Management Regulations (VSWMR) are currently pending a new amendment,
Amendment 9, approval. The scope of services for this task includes the laboratory fees associated
with the pending Amendment 9 sampling requirements and will only be utilized if Amendment 9 is
passed during calendar year 2025. Samples will be analyzed for the list of 40 per-and polyfluorinated
substances (PFAS) constituents by Draft Method 1633 as designated by the USEPA and 1,4-dioxane
(designated in VSWMR Table 3.1 Column C). Afield blank will be collected for quality control purposes.
If the Amendment is passed, samples will be collected in conjunction with the groundwater sampling
outlined in Task O1.

Deliverables
The deliverables for this task are as listed below:

® Laboratory data packages including results for VSWMR Table 3.1 Column C for the 3 and 4t
quarter 2025 and 1stand 2nd quarter 2026 monitoring events (if the new Amendment is approved
at the time of each sampling event).

Schedule
The 3 and 4t quarter 2025 and 1st and 2nd quarter 2026 monitoring events will occur within 75 to
105 days of the preceding quarterly monitoring event.

Limitation

The associated fee is based on the following assumption:

® Client-generated activities beyond the above scope are subject to additional charges billed at
hourly rates plus expenses or negotiated fees and may affect the task schedule accordingly.

Compensation
Estimated Fee $52,700 (To be billed on a time and expense basis.)

June 2025 Page| 11

98



Ay

Summary Table and Fees for Prince Edward County Annual Services (FY 2026)

Tﬁ:k Description Amount
o1 Groundwater Comphaqce Monitoring and Fixed Fee $82,800
Reporting
02 Groundwater Corrective Actuon Monitoring and Fixed Fee $26,200
Reporting
03 Landfill Gas Monitoring Fixed Fee $5,700
04 Stormwater Administration and Reporting Time and $10,000
Expense
05 Aerial Survey and Volume Study Fixed Fee $11,600
06 General Environmental Consulting TMerand $15,000
Expense
" . . Time and
07 General Engineering Consulting Expense $20,000
08 VSWMR Table 3.1 Column C Lab Fees Himeiand $52,700
Expense
TOTAL $224,000
June 2025 Page| 12

99



i,

This proposal when executed below will serve as an Addendum to Master Services Agreement (MSA)
No. 1875 between LaBella Associates, D.P.C., P.C. and Prince Edward County. The proposed scope of
services will be conducted under the Terms and Conditions of the previously executed MSA and this
Addendum.

If this Addendum is acceptable, please sigh and date below and return via electronic mail or regular
postal service. Upon receipt, we will endorse and return an executed Addendum for your files.

We sincerely thank you for this opportunity and we look forward to continuing our relationship with

Prince Edward County. If you require additional information or have any questions, please contact me
at (804) 355-4520.

Respectfully submitted,

LABELLA ASSOCIATES, D.P.C., P.C.
%a ww’.[//

John G. Westerfield, P.G.
Environmental Director - Waste & Recycling

LaBella Associates, D.P.C., P.C. Prince Edward County

Signature Signature

Printed Name Printed Name

Title Date Title Date

Attachment - Rate Schedule
Attachment - Service Guarantees

June 2025 Page| 13

100



RATE SCHEDULE

PROFESSIONAL STAFF (RATES PER HOUR)

ENGINEERING CQA
Staff Engineer $111 CQA Technician $78
Senior Staff Engineer $123 Senior CQA Technician $g0
Project Engineer $135 Field Operations Leader $125
Senior Project Engineer $152 CQA Manager $180
Technical Engineer $175 COMPUTER-AIDED DESIGN/
Senior Technical Engineer $190 DRAFTING & DRONE
Sustainability Manager $190 MSPRING
Senior Regulatory Engineer $215 CADD Operator $85
ENVIRONMENTAL CADD Designer $102

Environmental Technician $78 Senior CADD Designer $108
Staff Geologist/Scientist $90 Drone Operations Leader $125
Project Geologist/Scientist $108 ADMINISTRATIVE
Senior Project Geologist/ $130 Administrative Assistant $65
Sclentist CORPORATE MANAGEMENT
Technical Geologist/Scientist $150 Principal Geologist 4210
gigsii;echnicat Geologist/ $175 Division Director $220

EACILITY OPERATIONS Principal Engineer $260
Operations Consultant $190
Equipment Operator Trainer $230

Fees for professional services include time incurred on a specific project by professional, technical,

and administrative personnel and administrative fees, reimbursable expenses, consultant fees, vehicle
expenses, and field expenses. Personnel charges are portal-to-portal from our office or from overnight
accommodations when out of town. Personnel charges are not made for overhead work such as general
secretarial services, office management, and accounting. The following hourly rates and expenses are
subject to annual adjustments based on a calendar year.

COURT PROCEEDINGS

All requests for appearance before a Judge or other Officer of the court will be billed on a per diem basis at
a rate of $3,120 per day, plus direct expenses. Other litigation support will be billed at a rate of $390 per hour,
plus direct expenses.

Q._] LaBella

rev2025 VA NC SC (page 1 of 3)
101



FIELD EXPENSES

When directly related to a project, the following field expenses will be billed at our calculated

costs as units.

Electronic Water Level/Skinny Dipper Meter
Electronic Oil/Water Interface Probe

Field Meters - Conductivity/Temperature/pH

Field Meters - Turbidlity

Field Meters - HACH meters (iron, sulfate, etc)

Hand Auger

Bar Hole Sampler

Bar Hole Sample Sleeve

Combustible Gas Monitor {GEM 5000/ Envision)

QRAE Il Gas Detector Meter

Converter Box - Redi-Flo Grundfos/Geotech

Pump - 2" Grundfos/2" Geotech GeoSub Pump

Pump - 12-v Electrical Submersible (includes Whaler)
Pump - QED Well Development Pump (with control box/air compressor)
Pump - SS-Mega-Monsoon submersibte with control box
Pump - QED/SamplePro Bladder Pump

QED MP-15

CO2 Tank Refill

Flow Cell (YSI Pro Plus and Horiba)

GEO Control Box (control box for ded. bladder pumps)
Generator

Composite Sampler

Tier Il Probe

Infinicon Irwin SEM Meter/ProSEM

Infinicon Irwin SEM Meter/ProSEM

VFD Gas Extraction Unit (75 HP)

Gas Extraction Unit (< 2 HP)

Drone Equipment

Laser Survey Level

GPS (Magellan Professional or Juniper Systems-Geode)

$30 Per Day
$60 Per Day
$35 Per Day
$30 Per Day

$20 Per Day (Per Meter)

$10 Per Day
$40 Per Day
$5 Each
$225 Per Day
$50 Per Day
$60 Per Day
$100 Per Day
$30 Per Day
$125 Per Day
$150 Per Day
$75 Per Day
$150 Per Day
$35 Each
$150 Per Day
$40 Per Day
$75 Per Day
$75 Per Day
$150 Each
$ 450 Per Day

$1,050 Per Week
$800 Per Week

$350 Per Week
$320 Per Day
$150 Per Day
$175 Per Day

Note: When LaBella equipment is not available for a project, equipment
charges will be billed at rental cost plus 15%.

rev2025 VA NC SC (page 2 of 3)

102

[}, LaBella

Powered by partnership



EXPENSES AND FEES

Administrative Fees: A 5% administrative fee will be added to the total invoice
amount in lieu of postage, phone, plotting, internal photocopying and CADD
expenses.

Reimbursable Expenses and Consultant Fees: When directly related to a project,
the reimbursable expenses and consultant fees will be billed at cost plus 15%.

Consultant: The fees of consultants to LaBella Associates, who may perform
surveying, geotechnical, laboratory, drilling or other technical or consulting
services.

Copy and Reproduction Services: Copy and reproduction expenses include the
cost of using professional copy and reproduction.

Delivery: Delivery expenses include the cost of using delivery and express services.

Travel Travel expenses include the cost of airfare, taxi, rental cars and fuel, tolls,
and parking. Employee vehicle reimbursement will be the current IRS standard
mileage rate.

Lodging: Lodging expenses include the cost incurred during project related travel.
Meal Meal expenses include the cost incurred during project related travel.

Miscellaneous: Miscellaneous expenses include the cost of expendable field
supplies and other expenses directly incurred during a project.

VEHICLE EXPENSES

When directly related to a project, the following vehicle expenses will be billed at our
calculated costs as units.

Vehicle Expense; Vehicle expense includes the daily costs for the use of company field
vehicles and fuel.

Vehicle Expense $125 Per Half-Day
Vehicle Expense $175 Per Day
Vehicle Expense $525 Per Week

Note: When LaBella vehicles are not available for a project, travel expenses listed in the
reimbursable expenses section will apply.

D:j LaBella

rev2025 VA NC SC (page 3 of 3)
103



SERVICE GUARANTEES.

Provided by

D LaBella

Powered by partnership.

LaBella Associates and our project teams are excited to offer the following
“Service Guarantees” to Prince Edward County:

i If we are late for a meeting with you, there will be no charge for that
meeting time,

ii. For tasks contracted on a time and materials basis, youwill not be billed
for professional services performed for these tasks after the scheduled
completion date.

ii For tasks contracted by lump sum basis; in the unlikely event we do not
meet the agreed-upon schedule for those tasks, your agreed-upon fee
will be reduced by 107%.

If you have any questions about the above-listed guarantees, please
contact us.

Signature: }% Signature: M 6. (IJ-IMM

Division Director PI‘OJeCt Manager

Date: June 12, 2025 Date: June 12, 2025

©2025 LaBella Associates. All Rights Reserved

104




Board of Supervisors
Agenda Summary

Meeting Date: July 8, 2025

Item #: 13-a

Department: Finance/HR

Staff Contact: Cheryl Stimpson

Agenda Item: FY 25 School Appropriation
Summary:

The Board of Supetrvisors has received a request from the Prince Edward County School Board to
appropriate funds totaling $7,500.00 to the school operating budget as described below. This
request is for state funds as desctibed below. There is no local match required for this

approptiation.
FY25 BUDGET SUPPLEMENT
Rev/Exp | Fund | Dept | Object Description Debit Credit
3 (Rev) 250 024020 | 0099 Other State Funds $7,500.00
4 (Exp) 250 061000 | 0001 Instruction $7,500.00

Attachment: Request from Dr. Joseph Cox, Jr.

Recommendation: Approve the FY25 Budget supplement and appropriate the same funds.

SAMPLE MOTION:

I MOVE THAT THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVE

THE BUDGET SUPPLEMENT REQUEST AND APPROPRIATE THE SAME FUNDS.

Motion

Second

Cooper-Jones

Emert

105

Gilliam Pride
Jenkins Townsend ___ _
Jones Watson ___




PRINCE EDWARD COUNTY

PUBLIC SCHOOLS

School Board

June 4, 2025

Prince Edward County

Mr. Doug Stanley, County Administrator
P. O. Box 382

Farmville, VA 23901

Dear Mr. Stanley:
The Prince Edward County School Board respectfully requests an appropriation of local
funds in the total amount of $7,500.00 to the School Operating budget for the FY2024-

2025 school year. There is no local match required for this appropriation.

> $7,500.00: Hometown Teacher Program Allocation — New Appropriation -
FY2024-2025 (State Funding)

Thank you for your consideration of this request.

Respectfully submitted,
% JA ' é/ (o
. Joseph O. Cox, Jr. y Carson
Acting Superintendent Chairperson, School Board
JOC/vmj

pe: School Board Members

Attachment

UNITED IN EXCELLENCE

35 Eagle Drive Farmville, VA 23901 | Telephone: 434-315-2150 | Fax: 434-392-1911

106



Action Item 12B: Local Funds

Subject: Request of Local Operating Appropriation of Additional Funds
Recommendation: It is recommended that the School Board requests the Prince
Edward County Board of Supervisors to appropriate additional
funds to the School Operating Budget for the FY2024-2025 school
year.
Increase: $7,500.00: Hometown Teacher Program — New
Appropriation - FY2024-2025 (State Funding)
Rational: Prince Edward County Public Schools has received an additional
$7,500.00 for the School Operating Budget in excess of the
original approved FY2024-2025 budget.
FY2024-2025 Updated Budget
School Operating Budget (Original) $31,757,712.00
Previous Additional Appropriations 2,987,197.83
New School Operating Budget $34,744,909.83
Total Additional Appropriations — February 5, 2025 7,500.00
Revised School Operating Budget $34,752,409.83
Budget: Revenues — School Operating

Legal Reference:

Expenditure - Instruction
Prince Edward County School Board Policies

DA — Management of Funds
DB — Annual Budget

107




[This pageintentionally left blank]

108



Board of Supervisors
Agenda Summary

Meeting Date: July 8, 2025

Item #: 13-b

Department: Finance/HR

Staff Contact: Cheryl Stimpson

Agenda Item: FY 25 School Appropriation
Summatry:

The Board of Supervisors has received a request from the Prince Edward County School Board to
appropriate funds totaling $383,147.57 to the school CARES ACT budget as described below. This
request is for two purchase orders as desctibed in the attached letter from the school Acting
Superintendent. There is no local match required for this appropriation.

FY25 BUDGET SUPPLEMENT

Rev/Exp | Fund | Dept | Object Description Debit Credit
3 (Rev) 250 033020 | 0104 CARES - ESSER 111 $383,147.57
4 (Exp) 250 064000 | 0001 Operation and Maintenance $383,147.57

Attachment: Request from Dr. Joseph Cox, Jr.
Recommendation: Approve the FY25 Budget supplement and appropriate the same funds.

SAMPLE MOTION: I MOVE THAT THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVE
THE BUDGET SUPPLEMENT REQUEST AND APPROPRIATE THE SAME FUNDS.

Motion Cooper-Jones Gilliam - Pride =
Second Emert Jenkins Townsend S
Jones o Watson

109




PRINCE EDWARD COUNTY

PUBLIC SCHOOLS

School Board

June 25, 2025

Prince Edward County

Mr. Doug Stanley, County Administrator
P. O. Box 382

Farmuville, VA 23901

Dear Mr. Stanley:

The Prince Edward County School Board is respectfully requesting an appropriation of funds in
the amount of $383,147.57 to the CARES ACT budget for the 2024-2025 school year. In the
fiscal year 2023-2024, the school division issued two purchase orders. The first purchase order
was for HVAC units at the high school, specifically for the gym and main office, and it was
placed with Honeywell. The second purchase order was for two buses and was placed with
Sonny Merryman. Both sets of items have been delivered, and payment was issued during the
FY2024-2025 school year. No local match is required for this appropriation. Additionally, the
division has successfully completed the reimbursement process for these items.

Thank you for your consideration of this request.

Respectfully submitted,
,‘ % iy /) H 4/-
/& A 4/1/‘7 i
Dr. Joseph O. Cox, Jr. Mrs. Lucy Carson
Acting Superintendent Chairperson, School Board
JOC/vmj

pe: School Board Members

Attachment

UNITED IN EXCELLENCE

35 Eagle Drive Farmville, VA 23901 | Telephone: 434-315-2150 | Fax: 434-392-1911

110



Action Item 2B: Cares Act (FY2024-2025)

Subject:

Recommendation:

Rationale:

Budget:

Legal Reference:

Request of Appropriation of Additional Funds

It is recommended that the School Board request from the Prince
Edward County Board of Supervisors to appropriate
$383,147.57 to the CARES ACT Budget for FY2024-2025

school year.

Increase: $383,147.57 — ESSER |lI-ARP Division (Cares Act
Funding)

Prince Edward County Public Schools is requesting that Cares Act
funds in the amount of $383,147.57 be appropriated to the

Cares Act Budget for the FY2024-2025 school year.

Revenues

Expenditure

Prince Edward County School Board Policies

DA — Management of Funds
DB - Annual Budget

111



[This pageintentionally left blank]

112



L,
s S
o
N .
i Board of Supervisors
L Agenda Summary
==
Meeting Date: July 8, 2025
Item #: 13-c
Department: Finance
Staff Contact: Crystal Baker
Agenda Item: National Opioid Settlement Funds
Summary:

In June, Prince Edward County received $5,266.86 from the Opioid Settlement Fund Trust. These
funds are required to be used for opioid remediation. The Board is asked to appropriate the funds
received as follows:

FY25 BUDGET SUPPLEMENT

Rev/Exp | Fund | Dept | Object Description Debit Credit
3 (Rev) 100 18990 0056 National Opioid Settlement $ 5,266.86
4 (@xp) | 100 | 52400 | 5601 | Opioid Remediation $ 5,266.86

Attachments: N/A

Recommendation:

See sample motion below.

SAMPLE MOTION: I move the Board of Supervisors approve and appropriate the FY25 Budget

Supplement as outlined above.

Motion

Second

Cooper-Jones
Emert

Gilliam

Jenkins

113

Jones

Pride

Townsend
Watson




[This pageintentionally left blank]

114



Meeting Date:
Item #:
Department:
Staff Contact:
Agenda Item:

July 8, 2025

13-d

Finance

Crystal Baker

Board of Supervisors
Agenda Summary

FY26 Appropriation — Fire Program/ATL Funds

SUMMARY: On June 23, 2025, the County received a deposit from the Fire Program Funds or
Aid to Localities (ATL) for FY25 in the amount of $76,233.00. Per Board policy, it is recommended
that these funds be divided among the four Volunteer Fire Departments located in the County,
outside the Town of Farmville — Darlington Heights, Hampden-Sydney, Prospect, and Rice. The
Board is asked to appropriate as follows:

FY26 BUDGET SUPPLEMENT
Fund | Dept | Object Description Debit Credit
100 24040 | 0012 Fire Program Funds $76,233.00
100 32200 | 7012 Fire Program/ATL - Rice $19,058.25
4 (Exp 100 | 32200 | 7013 Fire Program/ATL - Prospect $19,058.25
4 (Exp) | 100 | 32200 | 7014 | Fire Program/ATL - Dalington | $19,058.25
4 (Exp) 100 32200 | 7015 Fire Program/ATL - Hampden $19,058.25

Attachments: N/A

Recommendation: See sample motion.

SAMPLE MOTION: I move the Board of Supetvisors approve and appropriate the FY26 Budget
Supplement as outlined above.

Motion

Second

Cooper-Jones Gilliam Pride
Emert Jenkins Townsend ____
Jones Watson

115




[This pageintentionally left blank]

116



Meeting Date:
Item #:
Department:
Staff Contact:
Agenda Item:

Board of Supervisors
Agenda Summary

July 8, 2025

14

Board of Supervisors

Douglas P. Stanley/Sarah Elam Puckett

Properties Committee Report

Summary: The Properties Committee will be meeting Tuesday, July 8, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. to review
the bids for the Worsham Convenience Center. Bids are due Thursday, July 3, 2025 at 11:00 a.m.
The Committee, which comprises Supetvisor David Emert, Chair, Supervisor Bill Jenkins and
Supetvisor Jerry Townsend, will bring a recommendation to the Board at its July 8" meeting.

Attachments:
Recommendation:  Forthcoming following the Properties Committee meeting.
Motion Cooper-Jones Gilliam Pride
Second Emert Jenkins Townsend
Jones Watson ____

117



[This pageintentionally left blank]

118



Board of Supervisors
Agenda Summary

Meeting Date: July 8, 2025

Item #: 15

Deparsment: County Administration

Staff Contact: Douglas P. Stanley

Agenda Item: County Administrator’s Report
SUMMARY:

The County Administrator will provide the Board an update on additional matters or concerns of the
County.

COST:
ATTACHMENT:
RECOMMENDATION:

SAMPLE MOTION:

Motion Cooper-Jones ___ _ Gilliam Pride e
Second Emert Jenkins o Townsend
Jones Watson

119



[This pageintentionally left blank]

120



Board of Supetvisors
Agenda Summary

Meeting Date: July 8, 2025

Item #: 16

Deparsment: County Administration

Staff Contact: Douglas P. Stanley

Agenda Item: Date of November Board Meeting

Summary:  The regular November Board meeting date is Tuesday, November 11, which will fall
during the annual VACo Conference.

Historically, the Board has changed the date of its November meeting to either the Thursday prior
to VACo (November 6, 2025) or the Thursday following VACo (November 13, 2025).

Board consideration is requested.

SAMPLE MOTION: I move that the Board of Supervisors approve moving the date of its
November 2025 meeting to November , 2025 and authorize the publication of the required
public notice to advertise the new meeting date.

Motion Cooper-Jones Gilliam Pride

Second Emert Jenkins ‘Townsend

Jones Watson

121



[This pageintentionally left blank]

122



Board of Supervisors

Agenda Summary
Meeting Date: July 8, 2025
Item #: 17-a
Department: Board of Supervisors
Staff Contact: Donna Nunnally
Agenda Item: Treasurer’s Report
SUMMARY:
The Treasurer’s Report is attached.
Cost:
Attachments: Treasurer’s Report
Recommendation:
Sample Motion:
Motion Cooper-Jones Gilliam Pride
Second Emert Jenkins Townsend
Jones Watson ___

123



Prince Edward Board of Supervisors Treasurer's Report

May 2025
Bank Account Balances
Name of Bank Ref #| Int. Rate Int. Paid Bank Balance B
Benchmark Pooled Fund Account 7654 2.75 $ 21,223,626.36
Benchmark Social Services 9746 S  350,262.19
Benchmark School Fund 3352 $ 3,211,928.61
Benchmark Food Service 3742 S  201,774.46
TOTAL $ 24,987,591.62
Certificates of Deposit
Available

Ref #| Int. Rate | Term | Maturity Bank Balance Balance
Benchmark

0994 1.00 24 01/15/26| S 125,365.67

0995 1.00 24| 01/15/26] S 125,365.67
Recreation Fund 0998 3.55| 36| 02/14/27|5 18,398.15
Benchmark 5 Yr CD-letter of credit 0632 1.00] 60| 01/04/26/$  678,161.30 $  947,290.79
Benchmark Investment Acct L796 3.02 36| 05/13/25|$ 2,223,957.58 $ 2,223,957.58
Farmers Bank
Underground Storage 2478 2.48 36| 10/27/27| S 23,504.04 S 23,504.04
Virginia Investment Pool 184 4.46 $10,801,944.03 $10,801,944.03

TOTAL $ 13,996,696.44

[ GRAND TOTAL | P [ |$ 38,984,288.06 |

124



Prince Edward Board of Supervisors Treasurer's Report
May 2024
Bank Account Balances
Name of Bank Ref #| Int. Rate Int. Paid Bank Balance
Benchmark Pooled Fund Account 7654 35 $61,423.50| $ 23,582,915.05
Benchmark Social Services 9746 S 270,407.56
Benchmark School Fund 3352 $ 2,486,796.50
Benchmark Food Service 3742 S 429,306.94
TOTAL $ 26,769,426.05

*Note: School Fund and Cafeteria Fund balances shown above are estimated balances due to end of the fiscal year.

Certificates of Deposit
Available
Ref #| Int. Rate | Term | Maturity Bank Balance Balance
Benchmark
0994 1.00) 24 01/15/26|$  124,122.23
0995 1.00 24| 01/15/26| S 124,122.23
Recreation Fund 0998 3.55 36| 02/14/27| S 17,769.14
Benchmark 5 Yr CD-letter of credit 0632 1.00 60| 01/04/26| S 671,435.50 ) 537,449.10
Benchmark Investment Acct L796 3.09 36| 05/13/25| S 2,495,000.06 S 2,533,222.02

Farmers Bank

2465 0.50] 36] 06/17/24]$  110,590.12

2466 0.50] 36| 06/17/24]$  110,590.12

Underground Storage 2478 0.60| 36| 10/27/24|$ 23,146.38

3494 a66| 6| 11/16/24]$ 2,658,827.65

3454|  453] 6| 10/05/24]$ 2,616,615.23

3475 4.64] 6| 10/05/24]$ 5,23541554
$ 10,755,185.04
TOTAL $ 14,225,856.16
| GRAND TOTAL I 1 [ | | | | $ 40,995,282.21 |

125



[This pageintentionally left blank]

126



Board of Supervisors

Agenda Summary
Meeting Date: July 8, 2025
Item #: 17-b
Department: County Administration
Staff Contact: Crystal Baker
Agenda Item: Review of Accounts & Claims
SUMMARY:
The Bill List, Mileage Reports, and County Attorney Invoices are attached.
Cost:
Attachments:
Recommendation:
Sample Motion:
Motion Cooper-Jones Gilliam Pride.
Second Emert Jenkins Townsend o
Jones Watson .

127



80" TZE'0€S L
¥L°058°L08 €S
¥S 666 LS

6 P0S LYS
9L°99%
T1S°S%2$
TS'625'0G¢
00°6TS’'TS

0T S09'¥T9'c$

$$ A¥d  $$

QI¥YMaE HONI¥d
T govd SYMDHEHD HTIVAVYd SINNODOVY

IYLOL
aNNA SHOIAYHES IL¥N0D LNOWJHId

aNnd JEMIs

aNnNg JHILYM

aNnd IDIYLSIA SWH

¥adD STIVA HLINVED - SHINLIANHIXH
aNnNg IVIdHENID

NOILAI¥DSHA

Sz02/0€/9 -HLYd OL
SZ0Z/T0/9 -HLYA WOMA

SvL
%L
0cs
¢09g
T0S
s0¢
0zt
00T

"ON dNnd

5z0¢/0€/9

128



-06°" %L
06 VL
¢r st

S0°LE6
0009
06°6ST
6T €T
SL° 1T
08¢

vL 0L
L6 €09

00°000'T
00°000°T

00°s¥vE’T
00°0g
00°562'T

00" %%T
00" P91

ST 80%'0T
LS %LT
GG 8¢
TO0"9ET

S6°200°'S
09°91S
80°0%¢
T¢"LZS
8% CLT
LY €99
6%°S0L
Z9-L8T’Z

SZ2°960'S
§Z°960'S
8E VET
ET" €€
ST 10T

LNOQOWY

T govd
SMDHEHD ¥HILAY

IQEYD SYIAdVYdSMAN DNV
dIdVdSMEN DNV
ONILAIW LIYLS

IYLOL LNOODDY
NDIS QuVX MDIHD 9Id
SAQIAYD FWIL ATIHEM
YadVd NOWIVS/ANTL
YALYM (€)
Td QU TYINTS
SYHATOA HTIId HNIODNVH
FI400/8dND/SdITID /NI

TY.LOL LNNODOY
dHSYHIWEN YHIO0D VAN

TVIOL INNODOY
ONILIHEW/ONINIVIL IVd
D¥d NOLIVDIAILIHAD dv¥

TV.LOL LNOODOY
LNEY Z28¢& X0d

TVILOL YOLYW
TYLOL LNNODOY
SOT¥OYN
DLW WOD d0dd SOA¥OVN

TYIOL INNODDY
¥2/9 a¥ OIW INIOL
HIIS WYHSYOM aId
Q¥ ONILFEAW Sod 0T/9
ay ONITOADHEY dJd
ONILIEN S09 €T/S
avy "TOA NZLID/AV¥ dvdd
a¥ DAS NIDH/Q¥ I1asand

TYLOL LNNODOVY
SZ AYW S¥H WWOD ALD

TYLOL LNNODDY
ST AVW dWIHO TIVH
SZAYNW Id¥ "INNV S20¢C

NOILAI¥OSHA

Sz0Z/0€/9

G290 NIWAVY SSST
G290 NIWAY SSST
9290 NIWAV SSST

29€000

959L6S ST¥
Y0vL6S STV
NIWAY 620€8%SE
NIWQY €€6Z8¥%S€
6LEN-LAN6-LLDT
NIT-TTHL-L0dT

9290 NIWAY ¥SST

DNINIVML SZ0¢
G290 dWIHY ad

SC90 INAY XOd

SZ90 NIRWAVY ¥%9ST
SC90 NIRWAVY $SST

S59€00C 86%cCCT
£59666T 86%CCT
0T¥966T 86%2CC
9065861 86¥%CCT
660¢€86T B6¥CTT

STS0/6LS6TT

SZ¥0/6LS62T

TLZE

TLCE
TLZE

H#ANT

-- §Z0Z/T0/9 W04 SHDIOANI 40 ONILSIT

qy¥Mad HONIN¥d

JINVE ALINAWWOD MIVWHONHLE 0SCTT
JINVE ALINOWWOD MIVWHONHLE 0STTT

JNVE ALINOWWOD MYVWHONEE 0SCTT
suotidTIdosgng pue syood

SNOIS MHTYD NIVINAOW 01622
A1ddns HDIAAO0 XEM 00902
A1dd0S EDIAL0 XTA 0090C

ONI HWIL MOUNS S.II Z988T
ONI HWIL MOVUNS §,II Z988T

SEHDIAYES TYLIAYD NOZVNWY 6SZO0T

SADIANAS TYLIAYD NOZWWY 6SZ0T
se11ddng 221330

JINYE ALINOQWWOD MYVWHONAL 0SCTT
ISqWSW UOTIBTIDOSSY ¥ song

dNo¥d ¥dsn IV¥d STOTT

HTAVA ‘NOSYHANY 9%90T
eONpPH ¥ UOTIUDAUOD-TIARIL

HOIAYES TIVLSOd S N1 00G0¢€
S9DTAISS Telsod

YOLVILSININAY ALNNOD

JINVE ALINNWWNOD MIYWHONEL 0SZTT
JNVE ALINOWWOD MIYWHONHE 0SCTT
BpoT 3 8DUL3STSANS-TSARIL

T'IVYHH HTIIAWIVA T#ZST
QTVEH HTITIANIYA THZST
TIVIHH dTIIANIYA THZST
TTVIdH dTITANIYA THCST
TIVIHEH dTIIANIYA THZST
VIIWSMEN HTIIAWIYL 0%ZST
VIQIAWSMEN HTTIIAWIVYL 0%ZST
ButsTtilILApY

SNOILVOINNWNOD SSHIdYHLLAT 9SLTT
ButuueTd o1bajeis

SNOILVDINNWNWOD SSHIAYHLLAT 9SLTIC
SNOILVDINNWWOD SSHIYJUHLLAT 9SLTIZ
S9DTIAISS TRUOTSSJOId

SYOSIAYHANS J0 qYY0od
HWNYN AHFWON
JOANHA JOANIA

aNNd TYIIANED 00T

CT09

1009

018s

0¥ss

01Zs

0TICTO

129

0€ss

009¢

19T¢

09T¢

0TOTTO

#IODY
#IOLVN

- # aNn4g

§Z0Z/0€/9
HSL€dVY



8T LTIT

66°0TS'0T
00°000°0T
00°000°0T

66°¥¢C
66°¥C

00°06
00° 06

00°0ST
00°0ST

00°9%¢
00°9¥%¢C

00°000°‘2
00°000°2
00°000°'2

00°59¢
00°59¢
00° 0S¢
00°ST

00°00L
00°o00L
00°00L

z8 0e8’'6
LL %0V 9
S¥°SL0'9
0T"8T¢
0T" 96
LNNOWY

4 qHDVYd
SYMDEHD ¥HILAV

TY.LOL
TYLOL

IYIOL

TYLOL

TYLOL

TYLOL

TY.LOL
TY.LOL

TYLOL
TY.LOL

TYLOL
TYLOL

TYLOL
TYLOL

JOLYNH
LNOODOY

LNOODOY

LNOODOY

LNOODOY

LNQODDOY

YOLVH
LNNODOVY

JOLYN
LNNODDOVY

YOLYN
LNNODDOY

YOLVYIN
LNAODDOY

Y DIW NLZINVOYO dH09

1928861 B6¥CCTT

AHY 40 WWOD HYVMLACS OETET

dWVLS HINLVNDIS €6€L6S 9TV

HONHIHANOD ¥UL 2B JOD

HONHIHANOD ¥Od THILOH

9%% TYMNEY X0d Od

S290 ¥OO TESO

S290 ¥OD T€S0

9290 INHY X0d

HINSOTOSIA/NTVA IDDY COLOTOT-ANID

LSHL DNda T€S05CY0dd

dSA MOHEHO dNNO¥DADNVL

DNINONYL HIYVHL ¥ O

SZ90 NIWAV ¥SST

6CLOTT c¢9BeCL

ATIVIHEH HTITANIVA THCST
BursTilIsApY

dOSsHSSY

ONI HSIVdd¥Y LSnr 20002
axemiJos

A1ddNs d0I440 AHA 0090¢
sar1ddng 901330

JNVE ALINOWWOD MYVWHONAL 0SCTT
eonpH ¥ UOCTJUSAUOD-TIARIL

JINVE ALINOWWOD MAVWHONAL 0SCTT
BpoT ® 2oUL3ISTSQNS-TIARI]

HOIAYAS TYLSOd S N 0290¢€
S9DTAJIDS Te3sod

HOANHAHY 40 YINOISSIWWOD

SHOIAYHS HONWANSNI JAATIDDN 6ZLBT
98 buTaTpny ® sburTjunosoy

JOLTANY INHANHJHANI

Sav4d SYIST
JNVE ALINOWNOD MYVWHONHE 0SCTT
S8DTAI®S JO eseynand

TANNOSYHd

od NOSYHANY SANVS ¢908<
SODTAISS TRUOTSSaJOId

SHOIA¥HS TVYOHT

DTT ‘SNTADIAID 0S6ZC
SIXAN SIXHT Vvdd °"ONI XTHY TTCZZ
SIXEN SIXHT v¥vdd °"DNI XTHI TT1ZZ<
HWYN YIIWON
JOaNEA FOANHA

aNNd TVIENED 00T

NOII4TIHEDSENS TYNNNY cLovee
LYLID ONNVY ST 302 VA ¥9C9T9S¥
TTAYST SHTINAG HACD VA 2989TPS¥
NOILATYOSHA H#ANT
SZ0Z/0€/9 -- STOZ/TO/9 ¥OA SHDIOANI 40 DNILSIT

qIYMdHd dONT¥d

009¢

02ZecT0

€109

1009

0¥ss

0€S9

01Cs

0TECTO

0ZT¢€

0%2<CTO

661¢€

0cecto

09T¢

0TZZTO

#LDOOY
#IOLVN

- # aNn4g

sz0Z/0€/9

HSL€4d¥

130



00

"08T

00°9%% LT
00°9LT'TT
00 9LT'TT
00°0LZ'€
oo-oLz'e
00°000°‘€
00°000°€
VETLIS BT
00°sL8‘€
00°GL8'€
SETTPE
9€°92T
66°%1C
€9°LLS
19°8%
Z0°6T
00°55¢
00°SSZ
96°TTIS9'T
96°TIS'T
0% LT
0%° LT
00" %%T’S8
00" %¥T
00°000°€
00°00§°2
00°005’¢
86°L8E
86 L8E
08°0LT
LNNOWY

€ HDYd

SADHHD ddLAY

TYLOL
TYLOL

TYLOL

TYLOL

TYLOL
"TV.LOL

TYLOL

TYILOL

"TY.LOL

TYILOL

TYLOL

IYIOL
TYLOL

YOLYIN
LNQODOY

LNNODDOY

LNNODOY

YOLVH
LNNODOY

LNNODDY

LNAODOVY

LNNODOY

LNNODOVY

LNQODOY

YOLYIN
LNNODOY

TVIDIAAC NOILDHTH

SEPWADVYd INIVIW TINNV

HLATIWOD HAIT 0D €SKW

LNEWEHEDY LOYALNOD

SdHd dOLS ARWA

FAYMOADINW
(00S2Z) SHJOTAANA OT#

HONTIHINOD @ VAW
HONHAIHANOD ® TVHN

TTEMOd [ THLOH
ATIUNNON d THLOH

INHWNAVd dSVAT

TYdAYd /MOTAAYd

¢Zs INHY X0d

HOVYLS0d

ANI XV¥Idd DLSd

ANT HIVLSHE TVHd DISd

a¥ SHIVA ONILHEIW HOd
NOIL4AI¥NDSHA

SZ0Z/0€/9

x4

4

9290

S290
S290
S290
S290

G290

x4
S2so

90 NOIILOHTH

800¥%0905¢20¢

9ezLoC

880-80

TLOOTSTSZ0C

SVHUL LLLT
T€S06TB0ANI

SYHYL LLLT
SVHNL LLLT
SVHML LLLZ
SYHYL LLLT

80€EVL8TO

SVHNL LLLZ

90 INEY Xod
DILSd SYHAL
C-ddascoeso
T-d48dsc0oeso

C9Z886T B86¥CCT

-- §5202/10/9

HANT

Y04 SHDIOANI d0 ONILSITI

qav¥Mad dONTId

VYIDIULYd SWYAY 8%¥TOT

TeTIdTIFO UOT3DSTH 1I9T¢
STVIDILAO ANV QuV0od TRIOLOHTH 00TETO
HIVMLAOS TYVAIDINAOW IVd LE€STT
9D TAIDS SDUBUSIUTEN 0cee
DTT 'SNDINVID €899
sodTAIRS abedqepm T91¢€
‘ODNI ‘V¥A 40 YIVA SSENISNI ZO06TT
SODTAIDS TRUOTSS2J0Id 09T€
XOOTONHOEL NOILVWMOANI 0TSZTO
ANd ZTOET
sdols AWA 0209
JINVE ALINQWWOD MYVWHONALI 0STTT
SNd ¥YOod4 SNOILNTOS NVDIYHWY €0TOT
sat1ddng 801330 T009
ANVE ALINOWWOD MIVIWHONHLE 0SCTT
JINVE ALINOWWOD MIVWHONALD 0SCTT
JANVE ALINAWWOD MIVIWHONHL 0SZTT
JNVE ALINNWWOD MIYWHONHE 0SZTT
BporT ® sous3STSANS-ToARIL 0€Ss
‘ONI ‘¥SN ONISVAT INHIAYND SZ192
juswdtnbg juey/eses] 0T%S
JNVE ALINAWWOD MIVWHONAL 0SCTT
SUOTIED TUNWWODDTIL 0€CS
HOIAYES TYLSOd S NI 0%S0€
‘ONI ‘¥SN HONUNIA INZIAVND $ZT9T
Snd ¥0od SNOILNTOS NVOIYIAWY €0TOT
SNY ¥OA SNOILNTOS NUYDI¥AWY €0TOT
S9DTAISS Te3sod 0TZS
YHINSYHIIL 0T¥%ZTO
TIVIdH HTITANSYA THCST
HINYN HHGNON #ILDDY
YOANIA JOANTA #IOLVIN

aANAd TVIEANTD 00T - # aNnd
sz0Z/0€/9
HSLEAY

131



00°08T
00°08T
00°5992
00°SST
00°9ST
00° 5S¢
00°5S¢
00°08T
00°00T
00°08T
00°08T
00°08T
00°8s2
00°08T
00°SST
00°s2

00°0TC
00°SS¢
00°SST
00°0S

00°08T
00°08T
00°S8T
00°SST
00°0¢€c
00°08T
00°0T2C
00°SST
00°0TC
007012
00°08T
00°0LZT
00°s0¢
00°SST
00°99¢2
00°0T2C
00°SST
00°08T
00°08T
00°95¢
00°SST
00°08T
00°0T¢C
00°98T
00°08T
00°98T
00°S9ST
00°08T
007 99T
LNNOWY

14 aJpvd
SADHEHD ¥HILAY

IYIDIAA0 NOILDHTH G290 NOILDITH
IYIDIAA0 NOILDITH S290 NOILDATA
TYIDIAA0 NOILDHETH S290 NOILDITH
TYIDIAA0 NOILDHTH G290 NOILDHETH
TYIDIAA0 NOILDHATH G290 NOILDETH
TYIDIAA0 NOILDHETH S290 NOILDATA
TYIDILA0 NOILDHETH GZ90 NOILDHATH
IYIDIAA0 NOILDHETH SZ90 NOILDETH
IYIDIAA0 NOILDETH GZ90 NOILDEITH
TYIDIAA0 NOILDHETH $Z90 NOILDATHA
TYIDIAA0 NOILDHTH G290 NOIILDITH
IYIDISA0 NOILDATH G290 NOILDATH
TYIDIAI0 NOILDHETH §290 NOILDITH
IYIDISJ0 NOILOHTH SZ90 NOILDATH
IVIDIAA0 NOILDITH SZ90 NOILDATH
TYIDIAA0 NOILDHATH $Z90 NOILDHETH
TYIDISA0 NOILDITH §290 NOIILOATH
TYIDIAA0 NOILDHATH §290 NOILDATH
TYIDIAL0 NOILDHATH S290 NOILDATH
TYIDIAI0 NOILDHTH $290 NOIILOHTH
TYIDIAA0 NOILDHATH §Z90 NOILDATH
TYIDIAI0 NOILDHTH §Z90 NOILDHTH
TYIDIAI0 NOILDHATH §Z90 NOILDATH
TYIDIAI0 NOILDHTH SZ90 NOILDHATH
TYIDIAA0 NOILDHATH G290 NOILDHATH
TYIDIAI0 NOILDHTH §290 NOILDHATH
TYIDIALO NOILDIATH §290 NOIIDITH
TYIDIAL0 NOILDHATH $290 NOIILOHATH
TYIDIAAO NOILDHETH $290 NOILDHTH
TYIDIAA0 NOILDETH SZ90 NOILDHETH
TYIDIAIO0 NOILDHTH §Z90 NOILDHTH
IVIDIAA0 NOILDATH S290 HIV1/Hdd
TYIDIAA0 NOILDHTH $290 NOIILDATH
TYIDIAA0 NOILDHETH §Z90 NOILDHTH
TYIDIAA0 NOILDHTH §Z90 NOILDATH
IYIDIAA0 NOILDHTH GZ90 NOILDHETH
IYIDILA0 NOILDHATH §290 NOILDHTH
TYIDIAL0 NOILDHETH S290 NOILOATH
TYIDIAL0 NOILDHTH §290 NOILDHATH
TYIDIAI0 NOILDIETH §290 NOILDHTH
TYIDIAI0 NOILDHATH S290 NOILDATH
TYIDIAL0 NOILDHTH §Z90 NOILDHTH
TVIDIAL0 NOILDITHE §Z90 NOILDITH
TVYIDIAJ0 NOILDITH §290 NOIILDATH
IYIDIAI0 NOILDHTH $290 NOILDHTH
TYIDIAL0 NOILDHETH SZ90 NOILDHTH
TYIDIAA0 NOILDITH §Z90 NOILDHETH
TYIDIAA0 NOILDHATH S290 NOILDITH
TYIDIAA0 NOILDHATH S290 NOIILDITH
NOILdI¥DSHA #ANT
§20Z/0€/9 -- S20Z/T0/9 ¥0d SHDIOANI 40 ODNILSIT

QIYMAE HONTIUd

SHTIVHD ‘JOTAVL
NOYVHS ‘¥OTAVL
NNAT VIDI¥IVd SIDANLS
QAYMAE AL IATIDIULS
UNVA d9HIVIS
NNAT WOMYIS
YIAOVID S¥YHAWOS
VYNNOQ NOSdWIS
NOTIIA NOSdWIS
dTEHOIN JHHOVWNAHDS
AONVHTH ‘NOSNIFOY
SHJYOTHd ‘NOSNIGON
T ¥0oDoEgHY HATOANYY
ANOWAYY SdITIIHA
SINNAd ‘ILLOITYd
YaNT¥g HSUYN
d YHYANY HSNOHTIW
d Y¥0T IINZHTIOW
I HANTY KIXVN
Y ‘NOSYW
W VAI NITTIDIVA
JOINAL SHWYL HAT
YHNANY ‘HAT
4909 ‘YHHILHOM
H AANID ¥HHIAOM
HLIAAL ‘AQINNTI
d0 9 QIYNOd WATTEM
IVadvd SENOL
INAS NOSNHOL
d SHONVIA ¥HASYL
HLIAAC ‘dTONIHH
YaNVIOA NIAQYVID
YANVIOA NIAAVID
SHSOW aJ0od
M QIVHDIY NOSMOIYH
HYIYS NOSANHWAH
NIAAM ‘NNNQ
H TEVHOVY HAOQ
SIIO XITIYA
YHIAIY ANYTIEJO0D
ASINIQ ‘NVWIIYA-NOILXOdd
D I¥AF0d MYHSAvId
YLIAOL NOLIVE
ALLII NIMSVL
T LYId0d SEANYVE
VIVgdIve SANIVE
1I¥dV JIvd
Y1037 ‘AATIVE
NOONVIE S¥IIY
HNYN
JOANHA

L906C
9906¢
L668T
6868¢C
67¥8¢C
6EVBT
1437214
80%8¢C
SveE8C
6808¢
VILLT
€TLLT
TETLT
cLese
12152
Zveee
oovee
yLecee
Ltcee
€LTCT
LZTCT
ce91e
T0STC
¢00TC
T00TZ
9ze0e
L020¢
89L6T
TOL6T
0SZ6T
COSLT
82291
82¢C91
0L8ST
E6LYT
S9€FT
ZEBET
99LET
STOET
L082T
COSTT
0S¥%TT
S9C1T
86TTT
98TTT
TLITT
¥90TT
SPOTT
TLTOT
HHINON
YOANHIA

aNNgd TYIENHED

#IDDOV
#IOLYN

00T - # aNOJ
§z0z/0€/9
HSLEAY

132



* %
*

19" %8¢
19°%5¢
88°9¢T
(484
cT|es
66°6¢

€0°L9Y
LSTLTT
LS LTT

99°69¢
€8 FET
€8 VET

08°6L
08°6L

09°ZIZ'ET
09°LTIT
09°LTT

00°009°T
00°00¢
00°002
00°00¢
00°00¢2
00°002
00°00¢
00°00¢
00°002

00°S6%'TT
00°ssc
00°SST
00°0LC
00709T
00° 952
00°08T
00°08T
00°SST
00°0TZ
00°0LT
00°09T
LNNOWY

g HDYd
SMOHHD ¥HLAY

TYLOL JOLYN
TYLOL LNAODDY

TYLOL ¥OLVI
TYLOL LNNODDY

TYLOL LNNODOY

TY.LOL LNNODDY

TYLOL YOLVI
TYLOL INNODOY

TYLOL INQODOY

TY.LOL LNNODOY

HADATYILIYD MNI
STIMOL ¥HIVd
SYANIYN/JAHLYM/HHAIOD
ADIVN 94400

SEX09 JELYDNJIAO0D

NYWMEN [ THLOH
SYEATIHD O THLOH

JIAITIA HDOYD-HDOVATINW

YEIAITEA EDVD-HOVHTIN

LNHY NOIILVILS NIVAL

LNIY HOV¥1d
LNHY dOV'1d
INHEY HOV1d

DNITTIOd
ONITIOd
DNITIOA

LNHY HOVId DNITIOd
LNEY HOVTd ONITIOd
LNHY HOVTd DNITIOd
LNHY HOVTId DNITIOd

T¥IDILI0
TVYIDILA0
I¥IDIAA0
TVIDILAO
IVIDILA0
TVYIDIAA0
T¥IDIAA0
IYIDIAA0
IYIDIAA0
TYIDIAA0
TYIDIAA0

NOILOETH
NOILOHTH
NOILOHTH
NOTI.LOHTH
NOILOATH
NOILOHTH
NOILOATH
NOIIOHTH
NOILOATH
NOILOHTH
NOILOWATH

NOILAI¥DSHA

szoz/0€/9

-- §202/10/9

¢0L96S 8988
T0L96S 8988
00L96S 8988
AHLN-90XL-99%T

0LBLSYEGT

9290 NIWAY ¥%SST
SC90 NIWAVY ¥SST

ST90 HOVHTIIW

S290 HDVHATIW

S290
S290
S290
SC90
S290
SZ90
SZ90
SZ90

S290
S290
SZ90
SZ90
S290
S290
§C90
S290
9290
§290
9290

NOILOHTH
NOILOHTH
NOILOHATH
NOILOHATH
NOILOHTH
NOILOHTH
NOILDATH
NOILOHTH

NOILDETH
NOILDETH
HIV1/34d
NOILDETH
NOILDETH
NOILDHETH
NOILDETH
NOILDETH
NOILOHETH
qALV1/39d
NOILOETH

#ANT

IYMAHE HONI¥d

A1ddNs HOIAA0 AdAA
ATddNS d0Id40 AHA
A1ddNS dDTIJ40 AHA
SHOIAYHS TYLIAYD NOZYWY
sotTddnsg 201330

LINOoD

ANITN
sst1ddns eoT330

JNVE ALINOWWOD MYVIWHONHEL
JINVE ALINOWWOD MUYWHONHE
BporT 3 aoue3sSTSANS-ToARI],

JLLANAT LHOI¥UM
S9beaTTIN~ToARIL

0090¢c
0090¢
00s0c¢
6G20T

LINDAID

86€0€E

0SCTT
08CTT

T96C¢

AVALSIDEY

NATOANIAMD JHAAOOH-STEANY
abesTIi

HTITAWIVYA 40 NMOL

J4dLINN INYSVHTd LW

Lddd HY4Id "I0A dDOTId

LIdHA HIIA TOA ILOHJASOUd

HD LSIIdVd (NODHES NOIZ IW

LdHA d¥Id AHNUAS-NHAdWVH

692# HOHAOT SMTH

Ldd3d dJTd IOH NOLONITIVA
sburpIIng Jo Tejuy/esesT

HIDNT YENHEZ
HOAOL SLIVHX
d HISYX JqOooM
d ISV dooM
WOQTAW EDAOL INHAL
ALLEE AdTSNIL
YaANIT SNOWWIL
VNNVIVS NOLNIOHL
SI¥HD NOLSMDOVHL
T AHTITHS YOTAVL
T AETIIHS YOTAVL
HNVN
JOANHA

aNNA TVIENED
Y04 SHOIOANI 40 DNILSIT

ELTOT

[A XN ¥4
L688C
0geLe
026S¢
6682C
80CLT
009%T
£80¢ET

0vT9¢t
09Lee
ST6CE
S16cE
o6L6C
0écec
£8¢6¢C
8EC6C
yST6C
¢606¢
2606C
YTINAN
JOANHA

1008

00TTZO

T009

0€sS

0TSS

002¢€10

0TSs

133

[0k 474°)

#I1ODOY
H#IOLYN

00T - # aNNJA

sz0Z/0€/9
HSLEdY



*x ST EDPS'T
+ §T°S¢C
ST ST

% 06 %0E€E'T
T9°8¢T
66 6L
86°9¢€C
ST'669
80°6¢C
66°68
0S°%1
0s° L

*» 0C°69
0C° 69

+ 00°%%T
00" ¥9%T

*x TP 78
¥+ 00°STE
00°STE

* CL°1%E
SL°TC
0s°L
L8 TITE

*» 00°%2T
00°%CT

x» 6C°V¥
6T v¥

*x 08°%9

+ 08°%9
08°¢%
0S° 91
0S° L

LNOOWY

9 qJdvd
SMOHHD ¥HIAY

TYLOL YOLNVN
TYLOL LNNODOY
SIVY'1d

TYLOL INNODOY
/A9Ivd/SNEd/LILS0d
dqdYd Xd0D
SHX0E HOVIOLS
SHOATILIYD
LAIdOTY/SNAd
Jadvd XdOD
JIALYM (2)
TYLINEA

TY.LOL INNODOY
YHETO L¥N0D LINDYEID

TY.LOL INNODOY
TYMANHY 70t XOd

TYILOL JOLYKH
TYLOL LNNODOY
SLSHL DdNad

TYIOL LNNODDY
YALYM (€)
TYLNAS
JNI/INdEHS /MK 301

TY.LOL LNAODOY
IDVY.L50d

TYIOL LNNODOY
ADINYHS JHYHS

TYLOL YOOV
TYLOL LNNODDOY
HOIAYHS THYHS

ZT0ZTS

£6CL6S
C62L6S
T6CL6S
§5896S
758965
£9896S
ODD LZOE8YSE
20D CE6TBTSE

G250 66L£9860¢C

SZ90 INHY X0d

¥820T-INN

YaL €€0€8YSE
qar veecsvse
PANT-MIN6-NdOST

S¢S0 DLS4 ¥ar

vZeel

€C66T

JIIVM (Z) DaD TE0EBRSE
TYINAY 20D S£6T8VSE
NOILdIdDSHA H#ANT
sz02/0€/9 ~-- €20Z/10/9

IYMaH HONI¥d

DNILNTId NRIL 8€06¢
suotidraosqnsg pue s3oog

A1ddNs dHOI440 AHA 0090C
ATddNs dOIJ40 AHM 003502
ATddNs dDIAJ0 AdM 0090¢C
A1ddNs dDIL40 AdM 0090¢C
A1ddNs d0Idd40 AHM 0090¢C
KX1ddNs dHOILA0 AdM 00902
ONI HWIL MDOUNS S..LI 29881

ONI EWIL XMOVUNS S.LI Z988T
sotTddns =5T330

JHEEdSLHDIYY 6TETC
SUOTJeD TUNUWWODITITL

HOIA¥ES TVLSOd § N 0T90¢€
S90TAZRS Te3Isod

LIN0D LINDYUID HHI J0 MIETID

ONI JELINO XHddWIdHN €%€2C
sa1y bniag

ONI HWNIL MDUNS S.LI Z988T

ONI HWIL MDVUNS S.LI Z988T

SHOIAYHS TVYLIAVD NOZVWY 6SCO0T
soT1T1ddng 2251330

*ONI ‘¥Sf HONUNIA INHIAVAD $TT9CT
S9DTAISG Te3s0od

ONI ‘SdHLS 9988¢
I3U0) BDTAIDS SOUBUSIUTEN

LIANOD DILSHWOA ¥ HTINHANLD

ONI 'SdHELS 9988¢

ONI HWIL MDVUNS S.LI Z988T

ONI HWIL YMDUNS S.LI Z988T
SOOTAISS TRUOTSS9JOId

LANOD LOIYLSIA TVIANED
HWNVN AHGWNN
VOANIA AOANHA

aNNd TYIENED 00T

Yod SHOIOANI 40 DNILSIT ST0T/0€/9

CT09

1009

o€ecs

0Tes

009TCO

¥209

T009

0Tcs

ocee

0S¢2TCO

091¢€
00TTZ0
#IDOOY
#IOLYN
- # aNn4a

HSL€d¥

134



0e"¢6T
vS ¥6E€’T
00°060°2

00°T8L'T
00°T8L'T

Ly 0%T
LY 0%T

66768
66°68
66°68

897968
1s°o0zce
1597022

€6°%2¢
S6°6S
66°66
66°C¥%
08" %T
0s°L

LS C¥¢
LG C¥C

LT L8T
LT L8T

0% 1¢
(70 R4

00°9LY
00°9L%
00°9LY

LNNOWY

L qaovd
SMOHEHD ddLIY

TYLOL

TY.LOL

TYLOL
TYLOL

TYLOL
TYLOL

TYLOL

TY.LOL

TYLOL

IVLOL

TY.LOL
TYLOL

LNOODDOY

LNNODOY

YOLYIH
LNNODOY

YOLYIN
INNODOY

LNNODOY

LNNODOY

INNODOY

LNOODDY

YOLYIN
INNODOY

HOT ENIDNH/ISNHS AXO
SYOLO™/FONHD TIO
QTINK/SYOLOY/SAd ¥4

SHI¥ALLYE/Y09vY T

qood Doa

JIdvYd AdOD

S300d MY'I

JANOL MOY1d
AOATILIVD NI
S.dAd

SYHILYM (T)
TYLNAA

AEEM DHYAAV HDITOd

HSYHT SHMOE AHNLIA

HOIAYES JHYHS

LNHNAYd AV

NOILAI¥OSHA

§20Z/0€/9

-- §202/T0/9

2681520
9881520
60LTSCO

T-8%T0000LE

SO0T00¢ET

SO0TL6S

T0000L%SCE

809L6S 9
LESLES 9
0L99%6S 9
UMD CTE0E8VSE
¥MD 926¢C87%SE

G290 ¥MD GCTT

S290 ¥MD STTIT

TZ66T

€LT¥8L960C

H#ANT

QIYMad HONI¥d

ONI OD ¥OLOW aNd# LSVH

ONI 0D ¥YOIOW ANd LSVd

ONI OO ¥YOLOW ONH ISVH
bz » ojny-jutey 3 satedsy

JAWY SNOILVDINNWWOD HIIHOW
oTpey-odueuULjUTEH/sITedsy

‘ONI ‘AAILVEEA00D SYHWIVA
S9DTAISS/2a€) Tewiuy

A1ddNsS HOIAA0 AEA
A @3e3s - so1Tddnsg 821130

SaNnd HLYLS LSISSY SSHNLIM WIIDIA

AAANTE MHHLLVW SIXENSIXHT
suotadiaosqng pue s3joodg

A1ddns HOIAI0 XTI
A1ddnS FOIAI0 AEA
X1ddns FOIAI0 KT

ONI FWIL YOUNS S.LI

ONI HWIL MOUNS §.1I
se11ddng 921330

JNVY ALINOWWOD MAVWHONHL
SNOSURTTOOS T

MNVE ALINNWWOD MYVWHONHE
s90TAJSS Te3IsOod

ONI 'SsddlLs
I3U0D SDTAISS SDUBUDIUTER

AINJOLLY S:HLIVEAMNOWNOD

SIXEN SIXHT Vdd "ONI XTHY
suoTidTIansqns pue siood

AUVILEIT MYT

HNVYN
JOANHA

00EPT
00€¥%1
00€¥T

I3 244

9658¢

JATIIHS

0090¢

¥oL1C

0090¢
0090¢
00s80¢
2988T
2988T

08CTT

0SCTT

9988¢

444

HHGNON
JOANHA

Tiee

0TEe

0TTE

00CTEO

1009

(VAR AAAY

ZT09

1009

668S

01Zs

ozgee

00TZCCO

2109

008TC0
#IOOY
#IOLVIN

aNnd TYIENED 00T - # aNOd4

Yod SHOIOANI 40 ONILSIT

sz0z/0€/9
HSLE€AY

135



*

*

x

*

x

*

*

TS LLT
0% €8
S2°9¢
00°ST
-¥0°9g
86°9¢

00° 0S¢
00°0s¢

EAR 4374
99 °v67¥

£€8°¢9¢
6€°T€E
ve'oc
0T TTIC

86 €V
86 ¢tV

Zs 00T’z
L6° L

9¢° 0T
S6°61T
¥Z°796'1

00°20T
00°¢oT

80°66L'T
SS T9T'T
8L ¥8
00°0%¢
00°¥LT
SLT8ET

€T°296'%
00° 062
00" 0L
00°02
00°sSL
86° L6
96" €ST
86°66
86°LOT
96" €CT
S¥ 0¥T
86" 70T
LNONOWY

8 JOvd
SMDEHD ¥HLAVY

TY.LOL

TYLOL

TYLOL

TYIOL

TYLOL

TYIOL

TYLOL

TYLOL

LNNODOY

LNNODOVY

LNOODOY

LNNODOY

LNAODOY

LNOODDY

LNNODOY

LNNODDY

N34 /41d4d¥/SIVINDONIL
XANYD / AITLAD /SALYIA
SYALYM (9)

TYLINEY

SHITAdNsS dADIA40

gNH I¥OJdHAYM €SN

HHdd NOILV.LICGHIDOV

DONINIVAL

LNHNESINGWTIIT TVENW
LNANISYNGWNIHT TYHN
STYERN

08DEd STIOL

NIDA

ANOHd

NNOD dHEId/Nd ALWY
AMIOVAL SdD/DAS TTIHD

TYMANHY SZ XOd

SC AVA SHEDYVHO IAW
ENIT L¥0d XATIVS
SHSNEDIT OAH
SHSNHEDIT OAH
ONITIIE HWIL dINAC

HOTAYHS EMDEUM
NOILVIdITVD HHA
NOILDHASNI HHA
VAT LSOVHXH JIVdHY
dDNVHD IIO
dDNVYHD TIO
ONVHO IO
dDNVHD TIO
dONVHD TIO
IDNVHD TIO
EDNVHD TIO
NOILATIDSHA

5202/0€/9

-- ST0Z/10/9

SZS0 SCE9E9
9290 SCE9¢E9
ATYHHS 820€8¥SE
dTYHHS $€6T8VSE
SZS04dTUHHSSS S0
MX[D-€XHL-THOT

S¢S0 0SDEd

SCS04dIYIHSSSS0

S¢S0 dWIHY
¥Z¥0 dWIHY™
SZS04ATIIHSSSS0

6622607779 ¢E

G290 87985960¢
SC90 6€£889%60¢€
S0085900-505¢2
SCS0 TSPLL

SZ290 INHY X0d

CLEIOOFTITO
G290 ¥99686687
26602

€TLOT

S06TTC

06%STL
S29T90 0sDEd
9189100
€LLITOO
L1ZST
00252
6LTST
SL0SZ
§20S¢
€6L¥%C
TLOYVZ

HANT

I¥YMdd HONTINd

LIVIWIYM /INO TYIIAYD

IIYWIYM /ENO TYLIAYD

DNI HWIL MDOU¥NS S..LI

DONI HWIL MDUNS S..LI

adgyn SsANIsndg

SHDIAYES TYLIAYD NOZVWY
sor1ddng @21330

JHANSTYHAL OSJdETA
UOT3e3TPIIDOY

AQIYD SSENISNg
npd pue UOTJIUIAUOD-TIARI],

aaolL ONIWHTA

LLVW NOSYHEMDOIA

ayvd SSEUNISNg
Bpo1 3 sous3lsIsqns-Taseil

D DNISSHDOYd SS¥d MOIND DN
obesTTN-ToA®I]

AEEdSLHDI¥d
JEEdSLHDIYEL
NOILATOS ONIMYOMLIN XHNIM
ALITIGON IBLIVY
SUOTIED TUNUWODSTIL

HOIAYHS TIVIS0d S N
S8DTAISS Telsod

SSHTHIIM NOZIY¥HA

a¥IdSLHDI¥I
HONVHOXH JHLNAJWOD
HONVHOXHE dHLAJdWOD

HONVINSNI ® SLIAANHE ZIdD
IJUC) IDTAIDS SDURUSIUTRW

ONI ¥EMOH¥M LEHALS JUIHL
dITVD YHLINOTHHAS S HLINWS
OTT OLOAVY WOYILSANNY
OT1 OLOVY WOULSANNY
HIVD SSHIIXH
HYYD S5S5dd¥dXH
HIVD SSHIAIXH
HIVD SSHIIXH
JIvD SSHIAXH
HIVD SSHUAXH
HIYD SSHUdXH
HNYN
YOANHIA

€STIC
£€9TTC
2988T
29881
¥e811
69C0T

C60T¢E

¥681T

618ST
¥eeeT
768TT

666666

6TETC
6TETC
¥060¢
COTOT

9990¢

6EETE
6TETC
6LLTT
6LLET
L6TCT

66T6C
298¥%8¢
06vLT
06¥LT
ST6VT
ST6%T
ST6PT
ST6%T
ST6VT
ST6vT
ST6VT
YHIWNON
YOANIA

aNNg TYIINEID

d0A SHOIOANI 40 DNILSIT

00T

1003

1088

0%ss

0€SS

01SS

0ecs

0TeZS

(AR

#LODOVY

#JOLVI

§T0T/0€/9
HSLE€AY

- # aNng

136



00°00%‘2 Qd TTOA HDIY dHdd XVl S20ZZT90 6CO0ST Dd ‘¥dD ‘SIAYA ® TIIH 6L9LT
00 00% DONIMONW S2S0 L6 HOIAYHS NMYT S NOIONITIH S69%1
8T 0¢T NOILDHTIOD HSVIL SZL8E90000MI HLSYM AINNOD/T4D S¥82T
00°0Z9’L IAT LSNI/HSINJNA ddnd 099TTSOD ONI SY00Td NHELSOD ¥€8¢CT
ST 8% TOULNOD ISHA ddAAd 6€8960T TOYLNOD LSHA SUHALSNHE DNd CTLLTIT
QdA °0TY 03 juswieg Z00L
INHNLIVAHA HYId IHELNNTOA 00zZZEeo
PECTEL'ST TYILOL ¥OLVRW
9L 99L TYLOL INNODDOY
00" %9 LITIHS CELG669ANT d¥D ALIAVS OITdNd VHANWILIM ¥E€LTE
9G°6€T SINVYd 66-62092¢ OTT SWIOAINAN S.,AVEY €STLZ
00°LOT SINVd NJg 66-9LEECE DTT SWIOAINN S.,dVHY €STLT
C¥LTT IVYOONII 66-PLEETE OTT SWIOAINN S.AVHY €STLZ
86°89 LTHd CTEISPTIEOD DT STIVD CTOTIST
08 692 SHITAANS WIOAINN SZS0AdTIYHHSSSS0 advd SSHANISNT ¥68TT
axeddy buraesMm ¥ SwWIOITUN TT09
¥Z°€cs TY.LOL LNNODOY
29°20¢€ SLHDITHSVYTA 66-6209C¢ OTT SWJIOAINN S.dVHY €STLT
00" LT ddd NI THDS OL SDHD 60T HOS DT1dd 0D Q¥V¥MJH HDNI¥d Z8LSZ
Z9° 9% dHSYD d4ANDANVYH 9CTLLETEOD DTT STIVD ZOT9T
00°0T dIl TIVIDdEdSs L8000TSTSZ0CZ ANQ Z2T0CT
00 LET SHITAANS dDIT0od SZS0AdTUHHSSSS0 QIYD SSHNISNG ¥68TT
se1Tddng soI1TOd 0T09
$Z°99S'T TYLOL INANODDY
09°80¢ CS98L6 SHIIL 0¥2Zsco ONI OO ¥OILOW aNd LSVd 00¢€¥%T
Y% 099 C6%T0 SHIIL 9881520 ONI OD ¥OILOW dNH LSVH 00¢€¥%T
0T LTS ¢CEBT SHYUIL Z98TS20 ONI OD ¥OILOW ONH ILSVYHd 00€PT
s drnbg psasmod ¥ 9TOTYSA 6009
88°TLS TYLOL INNODDY
veLE TaNdg 8LYYY VITIZE HOIAYHS ADYUHENH NOLONITTIH 00L¥T
00°6¢€ TdN4g LLYY%Y YTIICE HOIAYHS ADYENH NOLODNITTHE 00LPT
T0 82 danad 9LYYY YTTICE HOIAYES ADYHENH NOLODNITTIH Q0LPT
e be THNg SLYPY VIT1ZE HOTAYEAS XOYENHI NOIONITTIH O00LPT
LT 82 THNg VLYYV VWTITICE HOTAYHES XDYENT NOIDNITTIH 00LPT
TT 09 Td04 ELYYY VITZE HOIAGHS ADYHNH NOLONITTIH 00LPT
ce 8T Tdn4d CLYYPY YTTICE HOIAYHS ADYEANH NOLONITITH 00LPT
20" LE THNA TLY?P? VYITIZE HOIAYES ADYHENH NOLONITTIH 00LPT
00 0% THNA 0LVP¥¥ VYITZE HOIAYES ADYUENH NOILONITTIH 00LF%T
0T €% THNA 6977y VITCZE HOTAYHES ADYEANH NOLONITIH O00LPT
S9°8¢ Tdand 89V¥¥ VITICE HOIAYES ADYEANI NOLONITIH O00LPT
¥8°LOT SYD SZS0ddTYHHSSSS0 I¥d SSANISNd #68TT
A dinbg psismod ¥ STOPTUSA 8009
[AARAS FIVLOL INNODOY
[4AARAS 0SDEd OSUIA SZS0 Z009LL9ZS dO0D DI¥ULOATI HAISHILNOS 0%98<C
d SWTID JI9]JUSD WWOD OSITA $009
[ AR TYLOL INNODOY
€T HOAVHD HONUYNIA 9250 SZ€9¢€9 IAVNIYM /ANO TYLIAYD €STIC
LNOOWY NOIILAI¥DSHA HANTI HWNVYN JIWNAN #IODOVY
HOANHA JOANHA H#AOLVIN
aNNd TYIEANED 00T - # dNNdg
6 J€DV¥d §2Z02/0€/9 ~-- S20Z/T10/9 ¥Od SHEDIOANI 40 SNILSIT S20Z/0€/9

SADEHD YAILAY aIYMaE IONI¥d HSLE4dVY

137



*x S0°TCL
* G0°TZL
S0°1ZL

*x 69°LTI6'CE
*+ €8°967¥
-69°¥8
69°98
-Z1'¥6
[ 4
-¥6°9%
76 9%
TCc 88
TC° 10T
86°69
6L LY
79°86T

* 89°0%C %1
-09°L60°¢€
05°L60°€E
0S§°L60'€E
A A
ZT 99¢€’'2
¥0°LEO L
99°¥86
08°819
¢0°STT

* PSTEER L
-00°20€’¥%
00°20€'¥
00°20€’'¥
-66°S8¢
66°S8¢C
66°98¢
00°9CT
00°STL
00°¥v¢€2
00°TS
00°0¢
SS°00L'T

* $9°LVL'0T
TE 6T
LNNOWY

0T HD¥d
SMDHHD ¥HLAY

TYLOL JOLYH
TYLOL INNODOY

TY.IOL YOLVH
TYLOL LNAODOVY

"TYLOL LNNODOY

TYLOL INNODOY

TYLOL LNNODOY

DNIDVLS YIOJOLOW

SYD dAd
SYD dAd
SYD dAd
SYD aAd
SYD dAd
SYD dad
TISHIA and
TISHAIA dad
THSHIA aad
QAASH TaNd
QdASH THSHIA

SNI dWOD SYINIOM
SNI dWOD SAEANIOM
SNI dWOD SYINIOM
HJYL MDd/SAIvoddIin
GWNITT TH# MONAL

AVID LNONANIL SLES T
SALYJdN/HYYMIAOS
SAAOTD/SLo0d
AADYOANH MDHHD HAOD

dWOD SYHAIOM

dWOD SYHEMUOM

SNI dWOD SdYHANEOM
Jd SIOH NOLONITIVd
dd SIOH NOLONITIVA
dJA SIDOH NOLDNITIEVA
NOIILVIVdHdd XV
INHANAINOE TYDIAAKW
OAS YOLVYEANAD INNY
NOILOHASNI HIVLS
NOILDHASNI HILWVLS
YANITIHOIHIS INIVN

LdEd HYId TOA HOIY™
NOILAI¥DSHA

gz0z/0¢€/9

SZ90 ONINIVIL

§250 SYD dad
S¢S0 S¥D dAd
SZ¥0 S¥YD dad
SC¥0 SV¥D dAd
SCE0 SVYD dAd
S2¢0 SYD aad
G2S0 THSHIA dAd
SZ¥0 THSHIA dAd
S2¢0 THSHIA dAd
9290 THNA

SZS0 TESHIA

JIASH LTOPTT
JAASH LTOVIT
dnd dASH LTO%TT
99VTLE6T NOZVNWY
OI¥S69ST SHY
TIASH 6€£S6€T
986L9T~0SH
921699

QIASH DIY¥ZSOST

QAAHA 6€LETT
JIAHd 6ELETT
dNa dIHd 6E€LETT
G290 T009STI8E
S290 TOOSSTI8E
dNd T00SST8E
J4AHd 6STLS8ST
TdAHAd $CTO0PT
QdHA ¥CSS¥ DSt
JAAHd ¥660520
J4dAHd 05960520
TQIAHA OI¥YESSST

S290 600S6%00S¥
H#ANT

QI¥MAd dDONI¥d

QI¥YMOH ‘HTAd
O ¥ VOUSISTEANS ~ TLARI]

SHOIAYES AODNEIDYHWH

SYHAL 0D QIVMAE HONI¥d
SYHIL 00 QUVMJH HONI¥d
SVHAL 0D QUU¥MdE HONINA
SYHAL 00 d¥YMdd HONTIHd
SYHYL 00 ¥¥YMdd HONTI¥d
SYHYL 00 QU¥V¥Mdd HONIdd
HDS OTdd 0D Q¥V¥Mdd HONI¥d
HDS D7T1dd 0D QY¥Mdd HONIHd
HOS DT1gd 00 QUVMJd HONI¥d
HDETTIOD XHNCAS NHIIWVH
HOATIOD AANJAS NIHAIWVH
end dda

JdIODYA

dI0DYA

JdIODYA

Iddd JYId AINAXS-NAAIWYH

1dAd H¥9Id AHNUJAS-NAHTINYH

0D dINdd ALIAVS ¥ HIIA

ONI ‘SNOILNTIOS 0SH

SWYITIIM M D

ADNHOYHWE DILNVILY
AoupAs-uspdwey o3 juswied

JI0dYA
dIODOVYA
dI0OYA
dOo0oD DIVMLOETH HJIISHINOS
dO0D DI¥IDETH HAISHINOS
dO0D OI¥ULOETH HAISHINOS
Dd ‘¥dD ‘SIAVA ® TIIH
0D dINddE ALIAVS ® dAIA
HDOIAYES ADYENH NOLONITIH
ONI OD ¥OILOW aNdH LSVH
ONI 0D ¥OIOW dNH ILSVH
ADNEDYHNWE DIINVILY

gdA uolbutTIeg 03 Juswiedg

VINIDYIA ADYEANH NOININWOQ
HWVYN
JOANHA

aNnd TYIENED 00T - # aNnd
-- GZ0Z/T0/9 YOA SHDIOANI A0 ONILSIT

T96S<C
0€ss

00s2¢0

0v¥6c
ov¥v6c
ovvec
Sh 444
ovvec
ov¥ec
Z8LST
Z8LST
¢8LST
6ETLT
6ETLT
Tv0L

1Z%1¢
12¥%1¢
T2PTE
80CLT
80CLT
999ST
108%T
ycocT
08801
S00L

1Z291¢€
14453
TCPTE
0¥98¢
0¥98¢C
0¥%98¢
6L9LT
999ST
00L%T
00EPT
00€%T
05801
v00L

9¥81¢
AHGNON
YOANHA

#LOOVY
#IOLVIN

ST0Z/0€/9
HSLEdAY

138



* ¥
*

€T°520°¢€
8T°¢¥%C
89°68T
05°99

L8 T8¢
T0 0L
6L ¥VT
05" %¢
6%°01
88°8T
66 €T
6%°0T
0V 6¢
68°ST
67" 6
S6°LT
66°9

€8°L9T T
€8°L9T'C

LT OET
LT O0ET

86" TOT
86 TOT

00°0Z9'ST
00°0Z9°ST
00°0%2'1T
00°002'T
00°09¢
00°02T'T
00°S9TT
00°0%Z’'1
00°09%
0070021
00°966
00°09¢
00°0¢€2
00°00S"'L

LNOOWY

TT ddv¥d
SADEHD ¥YILAY

TYLOL JOLVYIN
TY.LOL LNAOODOY

TYLOL LNNODOY

TYLOL LNNODOY

TY.LOL LNNODOY

TYIOL LNOODOY

TYLOL dOLYNW
TYILOL LNQODOY

HA0D SVYD WNHTOAULHA
9 00D TVILNIdISHYI

SYALSVYD/M HSVE ¥IVHD
SNEd NI

TIDNHEd dTdd¥

LIY ¥YENVETD NIIIOS
HWVYd YWOTI4IA Tdd
ZNDJO NOILVLS HHIAOD
ADVA ONIXIA

HWVIA VYWOTIdIdA
SHATHHS ¥04 SANHMO0d
YINALSION HdOTHANH
HdV.L NOILDHEIYOD
SAIVD XHANI

Hd4 AAHT %¢C

YILVD DId NIHSIA

HONVHD TIO

YOLINOW DINCHLOETH
YOLINOW DINOALOHTH
YOLINOW DINOYLOHTH
YOLINOW DINOILOHETH
YOLINOW DINOYALDETH
YOLINOW DINOMLOHTH

MOHHD MEAIND
YOLINOW DINOULOHTH
YOLINOW DINOYLOHETH
YOLINOW OINOYLOETH
YOLINOW DINOIYLOHTA
NOILNALHQ HTINIANC

NOIILAI¥OSHA

szoz/0€/9

-~ §202/10/9

G290 DATd 8LES
G290 DATd 8LES

€ S2S0 GWIFY
GZ90 ©QTd 8LES
OTHI-NLTO-LMIT
OTHY-NLTID-LMIT
OTHY-NLTID-LMIT
OTHY-NLID-LMIT
OTHI-NLID-LMTT
OTHI-NLTO-LMTIT
OTHI-NLTID~LMIT
OTHI-NLTID-LMIT
OTHI-NLTD-LMIT
OTHI-NLID-LMIT

SZ90 DAId 8LES8

SZ90 DATd 8L¢E8

S290 dWIHY

S¢S0 dz
SCT¥0 dz
SC¥0 "IN
S2S0 M
SZ%0 O
SCS0 o4
SCTV¥0 DX
SZ¥0 DX
S290 90
SZ¥0 MI
SZ¥0 €D

09¢€c

H#ANT

QIvMad HONTdd

arc

JNVE ALINONWWOD MYVYWHONHEI
JINVE ALINOWWNOD MIVIWHONHL
suoTadTIOSqng pue sjoog

SdOIA¥ES
SHDIAYES
SHDIAYES
SHDIAYHAS
SHOIAYES
SHOIAYES
SHDOIAYHS
SHDIAYES
SHDIA¥ES
SHDIAYHS

dITIIHd ‘HYOOW
JNVE ALINOWWNOD MIVWHONHH

TYLIdYD NOZVWY
TYLIAYD NOZVWY
TYLIAYD NOZVWY
TYLIdYD NOZVRWY
TYLIAYD NOZVRWY
TYLIdVYD NOZYWY
TYLIAYD NOZVWY
TNLIdYO NOZVWY
TYLIAYD NOZVWY
TYLIAYD NOZVIWY

sa11ddng 821330

JINVE ALINOWNOD MIVWHONEY
sbieyoang atwisd b1d %2

JINVE ALINNWNWOD MAVWHONHEG
BpoT % 9ous3sISANg-TaARIL]

YOd SHOIOANI 40 ONILSIT

LHA
LHd
LAa
Lid
Lad
LA
LHA
LHA
L13d
Lad
Ldda

dITIIHd ‘HIOOW
oany-Jjutel 3 satedsy

HOVHILNO
HOYHILNO
HOVHYLNO
HOVHEILNO
HOVIIINO
HOVYHILNO
HOVIILNO
HOVHILNO
HOVYIILAO
HOVIILNO
HOVIILNO

TYIDIA40 DNIQTIING

HAISHLNOS
dAISHLNOS
HAISHLNOS
HAISHLNOS
HAISHLAOS
dJISHLAOS
HAISHLNOS
HdISHLNOS
ddISHLNOS
JAISHLAOS
HAISHLNOS

TINZAONL TNDY LNOWaHId
SODTAIDS JO oseydand

NOILNILIHA 3 TIVL TYNOIDHY
HINAN

HNYN

JOaNEA

06211
0SCTT

1852¢
0SCTT
69C0T
69C0T
659¢C0T
65201
6920T
65201
69C0T
6SC0T
69¢C0T
6520T

0SCTT

0SCTT

188¢¢

2998¢
2998¢
2998¢
z998¢
2998¢
2998¢
2998¢
2998¢
c998¢c
29982
2998¢
SLEST

YOANHA

aNNg TYIINID

¢T09

T009

0885

0€SS

TTEE

00T¥E0

96T¢

00ZE€0
#IOOY
#IOLVIN

00T - # QNNJg
Gz0T/0€/9
HSL€AY

139



LL"CY
LL TV

9% T9S’L
00°059
00°STL'T
00°S€9
00°SL6
00°66S'T
00°S2¢
STLTO
12°S%T

00°0¢
00°oc
00°0¢

65°09T°€
€T ¢E
[XARR

9% V0T
9% %01

86 6L
86 6L

€2 0TS
€C°0T9
00°6%2'T
00°6%2°'T
26°80¢
26°80¢

[4 RIS
e 9ee

S¥°6¢9

69°67¢
9L°68T

LNNOWY

T HDVYd
SMDHEHD ¥dILAY

TYLOL

TY.LOL

fIYLOL
TYLOL

TY.LOL
TYLOL

TY.LOL

TY.LOL

TYLOL

TYLOL

TYLOL

TYLOL

TY.LOL

LNNODOY

LNNODOY

YOLEN
LNNODOY

YOLYIH
LNNODDOY

LNAODOY

LNNODOVY

LNOODOVY

LNNODDY

LNOODOY

LNQODOY

LNNODOY

YAIDS/SEIL dIZ/IHDIT

S¢ ATIND NIVA LNIAHIG
YLD JLSIA dIVdEd DY
SSA LSHEL MTAXMDd FINNV
HO LSEL MIIXOg TINNV
AATO WYHSYOM HELIWIHL
YIMIS YONVW OAS IH
OW € INIVW INIAHA]
S20¢ aNnL

SZ%090 ¥YONOYIOD

Yd (T) SIASSYID ALIIVS

STHHHM L0OD ANOWVYIQ

YHLTHHS Y04 aood Doda

LTHS TVWINY d0d SddIW

ASJdO¥DHEN

TOYLNOD TVIWNINY

TOYLNOD TVWINY

00ZHV0VYL

CTTSE

G202c090
6TPTETOONI
8T¥TETOONI

SZ90 00L9€ES-TOL
G8YLY

¥¥C€001TS
99L9980TONID

SHWYL ‘dX014

WAZWXO-L68966

WAZWAO-L68966

7SL66CT

S¢90 NIRWAY ¥SST

Y100 €€TSC AI

S290 9CL6TIOTE

9290 £00S¥L0680

HIVO LHA 06L¥6E E€TTET
g89v0 LHA L99%6E€ ETTCET
NOILAI¥DSHA H#ANT
szoz/0€/9 -- SZT0T/T0/9

MAYMaE EDNTHd

QT SHTIVAIHEDHY SISK
ba » oany-juten » satedsy

ONI ¥ATIOE AHTIVA

ONI OO TYDINVHOHW AANING

ONI HYIdA HTIOVH

ONI HIId HTIOVH

TOYILNOD LSHd NOSaod

DONITYHANIONH HLIVAMNOWWOD

¥SN SWHLSAS LIOAWOD

ONI LYHYLWEHD
soueusjuren/satedsy

SHILYHJOHUd

YINIDYIA A0 JYHANSVHIL
AJDS U3TeSH TRUOTSS9Joid

ANTWYXH

S+ HMOT
eddy Butaespy pue sSwIOITUn

S dMOT
s dinbyg psasmod % STOTYSA

"ONI 'HAIIVIEJO0D SYAWIVA
pood I93T=ys

ANVE ALINOWWOD MAVWHONHI
I93T9Yys xo3 sarTddng

P ? HINLTIADTIYOV A0 ILddd VA
SNOSURTTROSTI

AIEdSLHOI¥Y
SUOTIEeD TUNUWWODS TR,

VINIDIIA ADUHENH NOININWOJ
S9DTAISS TEDTIIOSTH

TVLIASOH TVWINV HDdId
TYLIdSOH TVYWINV #HDAIA
axe) 3°9A

S688¢C

LOTTE
096S¢T
890%T
890¥%T
9%LET
SLLTT
vPLCT
80¥%CT

TYIHINED

649762

TYOITEAN

TI8TC

TT8TC

96S8¢C

0SCTT

4348

6TETC

9¥81¢

¥ZaLe
¥ZsLe

TOYLNOD TVNWINY

HNVN
YOANHA

AHINAN
YOANHIA

ITEE

0Tee

002E¥0

0TTE

00€S€0

TT0S

6009

€009

2009

6689

oecs

0TTS

O0TTE

00TSEQ
#LODOY
H#IOLYIN

aNngd TYIANTD 00T - # aNnd

Y0d SHOIOANI A0 ODNILSIT

sz0z/0€/9
HSLEdY

140



66 €C
S6°¥¢E
66°TC
LL" 8¢
69°LT
66°%C
66°6¢C

x €5°800°C
¥6°8L
76°8L
08°9L
08°9L
¥8°6¢€
1879985
0C 0¥

-02°0%
08°8496
09 TET

*

0L" 008
0L°00S

00 S6%
00°S67%

*

+ 96°1¢CC
$9°09
TE 8ET
00" ¢t

+ 88°96¢
¢8 08
0%"CST
86 TL
89°T6

PE ET6'9T
0T"86
Z8°LEO'T
6L LYT
T0° 9%
L9
LO'TIZ'T
Vet

82 €6Z V1
ve'L
88°S¢

L3

LNNOWY

€T HDVd
SMDOHEHD ¥dLAY

TYLOL INQODDOY

TY.LOL LNNODDOY

TYIOL LNNODOY

TY.LOL LNNODDOY

TY.LOL (LNNODOVY

TYLOL LNAODDY

SONTAYVH qIaI0oD
KTdNHSSY WIY THHHM
SdIL dTZZON WHHD Md
HNIT JHWANIYEL

YHANIYD HIDONV-ANOJYHS
THIHM ANI¥O HLEYONOD
STHHHM ONIONI¥D

TYINOLINYL
TYIYOLINYL
TYIJYOLINYL
TYIVOLINYL

LSNd ¥HALIMS/JATONVYH

SHITdANS TYIYOLINYL

TYIYOLINYL

ds TIYINOLINVYL NINLAY
SHITAANS TYIYOLINYL

SHITAANS TYIVOLINYL

HOTMLIHEd ¥V dDA¥d

HOIAYHS ATHLNOW

WATY HY¥I4A DATd ¥YAJHd
YOLVAHTH
LSHL ddId OLOVY VAddd

YAMES /JTLYM
AAMES /IHLYM

dALYM
TAMIS /IHLYM

dOHS

ONIQIINd OV

dO0I¥ @ S.IHOI'T

DIAA0 SYYETD WYHSYOM
JaHS J4TYHHS

Sdd.LS

LOT M¥¥d LS HINOS
HSNOHLANOD

LNHWONOW ¥VID AOd
YIATY AANVS

NOILAI¥OSHA

Gz0Z/0€/9

MION-ANTX-TNDT
MTON-ANTX-TNOT
MION-ANTX-TNOT
MION-ANTX-TINDT
MTION-ANTIX-TNDT
MTON-ANTX-TINOT
MION-ANTX-TNDT

8GLZLSEECTY
L80TZBCECY
9LTSTOCECY
0SLTHETETY
NNSWAId-T68€66
y10CS¢E
C-CTEETSE
T-CEETSE
CEETSE
T-20L0S¢E

DIYLIHA 0LS8BLYO

TPSTIT

GZ2S0 00£S00T6Y
GZS0 09¢T¥P0TE
8¥59¢¢

G290 AVYM IWS 9§
9290 S4dLS

G290 NMVT HD
G290 DAT1d DY

9290 %000TLOL9E
9Z90 ¥¥6SL¥SOT8
SZS0 €858916999
G290 0T9¥%68948S
G290 6609€61S6¥
G290 6S9STEE88Y
ST90 TTST9TO¥9E
G290 €06T8C98LT
9290 S00S8€0€CT

G290 ZO006LEVIT

#ANT

QI¥Mdd HONI¥d

SHOIAYES
SHOIAYES
SHOIAYHES
SHOIAYHES
SHDIAYHS
SHOIAYES
SHOIAYHES

TYLIAVYD NOZVINY
TY.LIAYD NOZVIWY
TYLIAYD NOZVIWY
IYLIAYD NOZVWY
TYLIAYD NOZVNWY
TYLIdYD NOZVYWY
TYLIAYD NOZVWY

S @dueusjuten pue satedey

7Z9# NOILYIOJYOD SYINID
¥ZS# NOLLVIOdYOD SVINID
yZS# NOILVYIOd¥OD SVINID
¥Z9# NOIIVIOJYOD SWINID

S, HMOT

ANYANWOD ¥ddVd ANOWVIJ

ANYJNO,
ANVJRNO

D ddd¥
D Jgddv

d ANOWVIQ
d ANOWVIJ

ANVAWOD ¥HdVd ANOWVIJ
ANYJWOD ¥HJY
sotTddng Tetxoatuep

d ONOWVIA

HOHETIOD WWOD VA HAISHLNOS

ONI

eonpE ¥ UOTIUSAUOD-TIARI]

O O 44ILS

Tejusy 3IBTTOL @TgelIod

ag
ag

ddSLHOIY¥E
HdSLHOIYY

I ‘SWILSAS ALI¥NDES QIAITIV
SUOTILD TUNWWODS T,

ATIIAWIYA 40 NMOL
HTTIANIYA J0 NMOL
HTTIAWIYA 40 NMOL
TIIANIVE 40 NMOL

VINIDYIA
VINIDIIA
YINIDAIA
VINIDIIA
YINIDYEIA
VINIDIIA
VYINIDIIA
VINIDIIA
VINIDYIA

I9M3S

AOYHENH
ADYHINH
ADYHINI
ADYENE
ADYENAI
ADYENE
ADYANH
ADUANH
AOTENI

3 I93EM

NOININOQ
NOININOQ
NOININOQ
NOININWOQ
NOINIWOQ
NOINIWOQ
NOININWOQ
NOINIWOQ
NOINIWOd

dO0D DOI¥LOITH JAISHLOOS
S9DTAISS T[ePTIIDATH

-- §20Z/T0/9 ¥OA SHDIOANI A0 ONILSIT

A

HINN
OUNHA

65201
65201
6920T
69C0T
6920T
69C0T
65201

zceLe
ceeLe
cTeLe
(4ATRA
TI8TC
LOEET
L9EET
LOEET
LOEET
L9EET

1968C

6988¢C

6TETC
6TETC
19201

(A RN ¥4
TEL6T
(AN x4
ceee6d

9¥81¢
9¥8T¢
9¥8T¢
9¥81¢
9¥81¢
9¥81¢
9¥8T¢
9¥81¢
9¥8T¢€
0¥98¢

VHINON
JOANHA

aNnd TYIINED

L00S

S009

0¥sa

(37474)

0€cs

0eTs

0TTS
#ILOOY
HAOLVIN

00T - # aNOJg

5Z0Z/0€/9
HSLEAY

141



142

L9°9T6'C TYLOL LNNODDY
L9 9T6'2 IOYLNOD A¥ANNYD WHWOD TOOT SMMOM dO0d VINIDVIA £S9T€
ue)-S8DTAISS TRUOTSSDI0Id T9TE
AJHNNYD 00%EV0
vE€°90L‘Z¢E TYIOL JOLYN
€C° TC¢ TVLOL LNNODDOY
AREAN TVILNHY WIOAINN 8GLTLYEETY $ZS# NOILLVYOdMOD SVINID TZ6LZ
€T LS IVINAEY WI0AINN L80CT8ZECY $ZS# NOILWVYOdYOD SVINID ZTZ6LZ
£6°99 TYINHY WI04INN 9LCSTOCECY ¥Z9# NOILYYOdY0D SVINID ZZ6LZ
£6°99 TYLNHY WIOAINN 0SLTPETETY ¥ZS# NOILVYOdUOD SYINID TZ6LZ
oxeddy Buriesy R swIoITUN 1T09
0s8°¢s IVLOL INNODDY
09°¢s 8Td dTVYDS-IINV CZLLTINT 0D dINddE SHIIOJI-YOTAVI €8067¢
s dinbg peiamod 3 STOTYUSA 6009
I8 TLT'T TYLOL INNODOY
76" ¥9T THSHIA © 2 € S290 THSHIA HOS DTdd 00 QU¥VMJH HONIVd TB8LSZT
6T 67T THSHId © % € §Zv0 THSHIA HOS DTdd 0D Q¥V¥MdE HONI¥Wd C8LSC
TV 712 THSHIA D 3 9 S2¢€0 THSHIA HOS 271dd 0D JUUYMdE HONI¥d Z8LSZT
LT €% JOLVIEANED ¥yOo4A THNA TTAT6LES €£€9T9Z ONI ANVAWOD TIO ¥HEMYVL L¥TST
A dinbm pazsmod ® STOTUSA 8009
90°6T0’€E TYI0L INNODOY
86°9C ATIDVHS ONIYA/dVILS 00CdVOYL DT SHITIVAIHOHY SLSW S688¢C
€S 87T dWNI¥D /IANED / SIHOTIIM SAHIO0TTIZO DT SHTIVAIEOHEY SILSW S688C
66° 9% JAYHE4S OVd JYHAINOHS STE66CT "ONI ‘HEATIVIHIOOD SHHAWAYI 96S82
00°8TT 7105 dNATE JLOALNOD 99686CT ‘ONI ‘HATIIVIHJOOD SYAWAYI 96582
PP°GSPT LI ¥IVdHY I1LHSOTID 006%TO-95092UqU0 ONI OD ATddAs "dDI¥d 089S
S€° s S10d LISOTD/XYM 66LFTO~-90S2IQAYU0 ONI OD X1ddns dDI¥d 089S
95789 SYALIIA JIV (¥2) LLEFTO-S0S2IMIO ONI 0D AT1ddns dH0I¥d 089S
0T"S§ (T) JOLIOYAYD TYAO 9STHTD-S052IAAOC ONI OD X1ddNS d0I¥d 089S
8L°LS /Y99Iy /AINAYd dHEM JAZNWAO-209966 S, HMOT TT8TC
8% 8¢ YAD TIVE HONHA TANIA YAZWAO-LCZ966 S+dIMOT TT8TC
LT SLT IS mgmvw\mmmzbq IdUMZO-LEEZ66 S,dMOT TTIS8TIZC
L9 LTT SYNIA/ SMADS /HAL/AOOM JIOSZ0-£88066 S,HMOT TI8TZC
9%-g98 (Z) SYIIIIA NOFIVD HXADDO-0%2S86 S,dMOT TTI8TC
0€°€ST LADNYA /MNIS WINSYd-68C6L6 S.dHMOT TI8TC
8L 8TT SYHAITA/S1IE/SIINNOID LOWSVYd-6208L6 S,HMOT TT8TC
S0°¢TT diYL ZLORHZO-60TLLE S.dHMOT TI8TIC
¢C TI9 ATOH/ANYM INIVYd/INIVd HWSNVYd-S¥ESL6 S,dMOT TTI8TIZ
o¥- Lo JALTIA/FIONII IIIS dgAIVd-TT8€ELE S.dMOT TT8TC
€T°08% SNPIS LAFULS (9) 889207% SNDIS NVIWIOM S00TZC
€€°20T w € SYHEWNN 10D 946920% SNDIS NVIWJOA S00T<Z
00°62 TIANID/ANZ JALYM (¥) NINAY 620€8%SE ONI dWIL MDOUNS S.LI Z2988T
00°ST S¥Td AN¥DH/ANT TYINHY NIWAY €£6C8¥%SE ONI HWIL MDOUNS S.LI Z988T
08°60T (0og) s€1Ind IHOIT 6LEETS DIJIDHETHE HITVSHM HTTIIAWIVA 099ST
8v°"8¢c¥ (2) AVLIH IDD M0OSZT 8LEECTS DIFIOETH HTIVSHM HTIIAWIVA 09GST
T 1% WJOd I¥OVY/SIYAMOTA 9%EST HSONOHNHHYD W ® d SC0TT
66°8 JHLSHEHL ©ONTd MYYdS MTION-AONTX-TNOT SHOIAYHAS TYLIAYD NOZVWY 6SZO0T
67" 6 YHILTIH YINVHATD VIV MION-ANIX-TINOT SHOIAYES TIVLIAVD NOZVYNWVY 6SZ0T
LNOQOWY NOILATEDSHA #ANT HWNYN JHIWAN #IODVY
JOdNEHA JOANHA HAOLYIH
aNNg TYIENED 00T - # aNnd
71 HDUd §z02/0€/9 -- S20Z/10/9 V04 SHADIOANI J0 ONILSIT 5202/0¢€/9
SYMDOHHD ¥HILAY @IYMAE dONIdd HGLEAY



+x €9°88€'SCT
% €5°88€'SCT

o0"oL8’eE
00°S6€'0T
00°082°L
00°88T'9
00°098°S
00°186'%
00°08Z’L
00°88T'9
00°08Z°L
00°88T'9
00°08Z "L
00°88T'9
00°098°S
00°186'%
00°098°S
00°186'%
16°S2T'9
00°S2T'T
00°08L"€E
00°891'€
00°9%9
00°0S0'T
00°S90'T
00°9¥%6
00°590'T
00°STT'T
0070599
0070899
TE€° L9t
00°089
Te L9t
00°0SS
00°00L'T

*x GT°9%6'%
» 06°%6
06" %6

x T9°682°T
z9°'682°'1

96°¥¥9
96" ¥¥9

*

LNOONWY

ST ddvd
SMOHHD ¥dIAY

TYLOL YOLYN
TYLOL INOODOY

TY.LOL JOLVN
TYLOL INAODDY

TY.LOL LNAODDOY

TYIOL LNNODOY

dDIAYHES
ADIAYUES
HOIAYES
O IAYES
HAOIAYES
HOIAYHES
HOIAYES
HOINTES
HOIAYES
HOIAGHS
HOIAGHS
dOINYES
HOIAYAS
HOIAGHS
HOIAYHAS
HOIAYHS
HOIAYHES
ADIAYES
HOIAGES
HDINYGES
AOIAYES
HOIAYES
ADIAYES
O INGES
IO IATHS
HOIAYES
HOIAYES
HOIAYHES
O IAYES
HOIAYHS
HOIAYES
HDIAYHES
HOIAYHS

TYNOISSHAOEd
TYNOISSHAO™d
TYNOISSHAOAd
TUYNOISSHA0dd
TYNOISSHAOUd
TYNOISSHAOUd
TYNOISSHAOAd
"TYNOISSHAIOUd
TYNOISSHAOUd
TYNOISSHA0dd
TYNOISSHAOAd
TYNOISSHA0dd
TYNOISSHI0dd
TYNOISSHAOEd
TYNOISSHAOUd
TYNOISSHAOUd
TYNOISSHI0dd
TYNOISSHAOEd
TYNOISSHAOAd
TYNOISSHAOEd
TYNOISSHAOAd
TYNOISSHAOEd
TYNOISSHAOEd
TYNOISSEI0dd
TYNOISSHAOEd
TYNOISSHAOUd
TYNOISSHAOTd
TUYNOISSHAOTT
TYNOISSHAOUd
TYNOISSHIOUd
TYNOISSHA0dd
TYNOISSHAOHd
TUYNOISSHAOYd

ATINNVO

AJENNYD ® HNVdOdd

AYHENNYD

NOILdT¥DSHEA

ST0Z/0€/9

-- §z0T/10/9

SZ%0 S0TZ ONVSD
G250 Z89% ONVSD

S2S0 P¥STCCICT
SZ%0 ¥¥STCCIC

SZ290 0¥¥6 ONVSO
GZ%0 0%¥6 ONVSDO
S¢S0 06%9 ONVSDO
SZv0 0679 ONUSD
S¢S0 0Ted ONUSD
SC%0 OTEY ONVSD
G250 8S9C¥ ONVSD
GZ¥0 89C¥% ONVUSDO
SCS0 %99 ONVSD
SZ¥0 ¥99¢ ONVUSD
GZS0 $9TT ONVUSD
GZ%0 ¥9TT ONVSD
G250 290¢€ ONVSD
SZ¥0 0Te¥ ONVUSDO
GZS0 6€86 ONVSD
SZ¥0 918€ ONWYSD
GZSTC08ZTTESSE

9250 ¥¥91CCIC

GZS0 9.8% ONVUSD
SZS0 0T8E ONVYSD
G290 ¥99¢ ONVUSDO
9290 €8SC ONVSD
SZS0 6£86 ONVSD
G250 918¢€ ONVUSD
GZS0 0T8E ONVSD
S2S0 T90E ONVSD
G250 €89C ONVUSD
§290 S0TZ ONWVSDO
§2S0 L2800 ONVSD

7088500-90S¢C

8 JZ6LES SIB6ET

G290 T00SER¥Y

#ANT

@MIYMad dONTdd

INIWLVHAL SYHIATY HHAYHILI ZST6T
Y¥ITIIA S.HAHSOL LS SZL8Z
NOILISINODY ALISIVA HS 8LSLT
NOILISINOOVY ALISYVA HS 8LSLZ
NOILISINOOY ALISYVA HS BLSLT
NOILISINODY ALISYVA HS B8LSLT
NOILISINODY ALIS¥VA HS 8LSLT
NOILISINDOVY ALISYVA HS 8LSLZ
NOILISINOOVY ALIS¥VA HS 8LSLZ
NOILISINDOY ALISYVA HS 8LSLT
NOILISINDODY ALISUVA HS 8LSLT
NOILISINOOY ALISYVA HS 8LSLT
NOTILISINOOY ALISUVA HS 8LSLZ
NOILISINODY ALISYUVA HS 8LSLT
NOILISINDODY ALISVVA HS 8LSGLZ
NOILISINDOY ALISYYA HS 8LSLT
TVIOIAVHALS ONI¥AS HI¥ON TL8ET
DTT ‘HSnd HAIT ¥8LIT

H TYIIOIAVHAL INIOd JOd¥VH O0FELT
AWHD T -TIVOHLAOA MAVIWTIVH S90LT
DT 'SY0TASNAOD WNIDTINA S96ST
DT SYOTASNAOD WA¥DTINA S96ST
DTT 'SYOTASNNOD WAADTINA S96ST
DT 'SYOTASNAOD WAMDTINA S96ST
DT ‘SYOTESNNOD WANDTINA S96ST
DT ‘SYOTASNNOD WOMDTINA S96ST
ad SHEDINA¥ES SAVOISSOUD 6262T
adgd SHEDIAMHS SAVOASSOUD 626CT
ad SHDIAYAS SAVOYSSO¥D 626CT
ad SHDIAYHAS SAVOISSOodD 626CT
ad SIDIAYES SAVOISSOdD 626CT
ag SHDIAYHS SAYOISSOUD 62621
SYVYTIOHDS TTIYMHADY TZI0T

sweiboid ¥sSD

LOY SHDIAY¥HES HAISNAHIIANWOD

NOILNTOS ONIMIOMLAN XdANIY ¥060C
SUOTIRD TUNWWODSTI ],

ONI ANVAWOD TIO JdEM¥Vd L¥CST
§80TAISS BurjesH

do0D OIY¥LDETH HAISHLNOS 0%98¢
S9DTAISS TEDOTAIDDTH

d0d SHOIOANI 40 ONILSIT

HINVN
YOANHA

ATGWON
YOANHA

aNnNg TYIINID

091¢

00S€S0

0EZCsS

0C1s

0TTS
#LODY
#IOLEW

00T - # aNNJ
§T0T/0€/9
HSLEAY

143



09 CLY
0S°CLY
0S°CLY

Z29°08T’S
L9 L0C
SZ°L
09" L
66°6¢
66°9T1
LT 8T
05" %¢
0S°0T
68 8T
66°¢T
67 0T
0V 6¢

0L t6t
0L €6¢€

ST'6LS'V
ST 6LS'V

€9°2zs¢e't
S9°81S
99°8TS

¥L 099
vL°90¢
00"vEC

yc-eéc
99 VLT
89 8TT

6T°8ST’'C
61°891°C
00°000°C
6T°8ST

LNOORNY

9T Hdv¥d
SMDOHEHD ¥dL4AY

TYLOL
TY.LOL

TY.LOL
TYLOL

TYLOL

TYLOL

TYLOL
TYLOL

TYLOL

TYLOL

TY.LOL
TY.LOL

JAOLYIN
INNODOY
SZTAVW INIAI AHA NODH
AOLYNW
INNODOY
dAIYM (T)
TYLNAI
AMIVA THEYT JHHLOYE
HAYL THIYT 7D
HAYL AMIVW THEYT
TIDNAd dTddY
LIN JANVATD NAEFIDS
HNTIA YWO'IdId Tdd
ZNO¥O NOILVYLS HAIJOD
MOV ONIXIA
AWNYEd YINOTIAId
INOODDY
avy SNILEAW Dd 02/S
INNODDY
HI¥VddN N¥Id dWoD
JAOLYH
INNODDY
HIVAIIY IANOD DA
INNODDY
ANOD STVAW ISANGWIFA
IMN0D AYFAODHM THIOH
INNODDY
INAWASINGWIHY ¥FDN
OVATIN THAVIL
JOLYH
INOODIY

SHHOYVHES HNOHAd

NOILJI¥DSHA

szo0z/0¢€/9

-- §20Z/T0/9

TLee

AFZANOD 0&0¢&8PSE
AIAWOD ST6TBYSE
OTHM-NLID-LMIT
OTHY-NLTD-LMIT
OTHY-NLTO-LMTT
OTHY-NLTD=-LMIT
OTHM-NLTD-LMTIT
OTHI-NLTO-LMIT
OTHI-NLTD-LMTT
OTHI-NLTD-LMTIT
OTHE-NLTID-LMIT

Y¥2LB6T 86¥%2CC

Z2¢-T-8dN-Ddd

S290 NIWAVY ¥#SST

T-S290 d9WIEY
G290 NINWAY ¥SST

€-9¢90 dWIdHd
Z-5290 dWIHA

09ST¥TOOTT

#ANT

I¥MaH IONI™d

404 SHDIOANI 40 DNILSIT

SNOILVUYDINNWWOD SSHYdYHELLAT SSLIC

BuTsTII9APY 009¢
ININdOTHAHA DIWONODH 00ST80
ONI HWIL MDUNS S.LI T988T
ONI HWIL YDVYNS S.LI Z988T
SHDIAYHS TYLIAYD NOZVWY 65201
SHOIAYAS TVYLIAVYD NOZVYNWY 6SZO0T
SHDIAYHAS TYLIAVYD NOZVWVY 6S20T
SHOIAYHS fTIVLIAYD NOZVYWY 6SZ0T
SHOIAYHAS TYLIAVD NOZVNWY 65201
SHOIIAMAS TIYLIAYD NOZVIWY 6SC0T
SHOIAYHS "IVLIAVYD NOZVYKWY 6SCO0T
SHOIAYHS TVLIdVD NOZVWY 6SCO0T
SHDIAMES TYLIAVYD NOZVWY 6SCTO0T
soTTddng °2TFJF0 1009
QIVIEH dTTIIANIVA T#ZST
ButsTixeapy 009€
D11 ‘SINIWLSHANI XHATIIEd 6SCTT
SODTAISS TEUOTSS2I0Id 09T€E
DNINNYId O0TTS80
JINVYd ALINOWWOD MIVWHONHLE 0SZTT
npg 3 UOTJIUSAUO) - TLARITL [} 21
VINVILVLI SYHAWVYHD-SHNOL OT86T
JINVE ALINAQWNOD ¥VWHONHALE O0SCTT
O R SOUDISTSANS - [9ABIL 0€ss
VINVILVL S¥Hd9dWVHO-SENOL 0T86T
VINVILVL SYHAWVHO-SEHNOL O0T86T
oBbeSTTIW - ToAeRL]L 0TSS
IANOD AJHAODHEYA DNAA 00TTS90
I :cccc
DUNVIN VIVA JSI¥ SIXANSIXHT LSLTZ
suoTjlexadQ Isa0DISPUN 868G
INIWHOYOANH MVT ¥FAHILO 00T8S0
HINVN JAHINNN #LDOY
JOANHEA HOANHA HIOLTIN

aNnd TYYENED 00T - # aNnd
sz0T/0€/9
HSLEAY

144



697991
697991

00°089
00°089
007089

§9°99¢€’S
007005
00°009

00°8L
00°8L

00°968°2C
007062
00°909°2

S8 TTT
S8°ITT

9%°0¢
9%°0¢

¥0° €S
¥0° €9

857 6%¢C
80°98
LY ¥9T

00° 8¢9
00°9LT
00°¢T
00" 1%T
00°S6¢
00°ST

SL°80L
SL°80L

LNOQOWY

LT dDYd
SADEHD ¥HLAY

TY.LOL

TYLOL
TYLOL

TYLOL
TY.LOL

TY.LOL

TY.LOL

TY.LOL

TY.LOL

TYLOL

TY.LOL

TYLOL

TY.LOL

LNNODDY

JOLVIN
LNNODOY

YOLYN
LNNODDOY

LNNODOY

LNNODDOY

LNNODDY

LNNODOY

LNNODDOY

LNOODDY

LNOODOY

LNOODOY

OAS LXHd dO0D Hd

MHIAHY NVTd DHd

IV NHZdO LdDIVHD

WSIJNOL S.:0710d4

ANJAAYM SNDIS AVMHLYD
HONIANTAAYM DHd

YHINED ¥OLISIA

SHDYVHD SdNn

VEMES /YHIYM

g JYHINAD JOLISIA
¥ JHINHD dOLISIA

SZ HENAL YIMLTN WSAL
dsSH¥vYN0S DAS HIISTAM
YIANNVE dTdYLOVILIT
NHOO¥E/Sa¥d JYANA DA
HOVASHYYNDS HLISHEM

SYH SC AVNW TdWI WSIL

NOILAI¥OSHA

$Z02/0€/9

§2590 8600¢S560¢

LZTLOZZOCZ €LTICTE

G290 dd 98¢8

L6€8T

£0-96T0S¥C
LS00-T20C LZC¢t

0088500-90S¢

G290 NIWAVY ¥SST

SZ90 YLD dISIA

G290 L¥¥LBE6SOT
G290 TLOB6TSLI0

/A4

SC90 dd 98¢s8
G290 dH 98¢8
G290 a4 98¢8
SZ90 NIWAY SSST

TLeE

#ANI

-- S20C/T0/9 ¥WOA SHDIOANI d0 PNILSIT

aQI¥Mad JONTHd

qIEdsIHDIdE
SUOTIED TUNWWODITST,

HDI440 NOISNHLXH HAILVIIJIOOD

ONI ‘LLIAJ0dd ¥ ILIOH

S99 MITADY ISJLMWIO]S

TOJYLNOD NOISOdH

JNVE ALINAWNOD MYVWHONHES

soTTddng °°TIJ0O

ONINWTIDOONON HATLVHID
saoefoxg Tetosds

SHLYIDOSSY ¥ AHXVH
ONI ¥dIZVEA ® JHIZVYA

JueIn WSTINOL VddV DIA

NOIILNTOS ONINYOMIAN XHNIM

SUOTIeD TUNUWODS T3,

JNVE ALINAWWOD M¥YWHONHH

geoTAISS Teasod

HTIIAWNIYA A0 NMOL
IoMSS R I27eM

VINIDIYIA ADYINE NOINIWOA
VYINIDYIA ADYENHI NOINIWOQ

S9DTAISS TEDTIIOSTH

SNOILVDINAWWNOD SSHIJUHALLAT
JNYE ALINOWWOD MIYWHONIL
JNYE ALINAWWOD MIVWHONHL
JNVE ALINAWWOD MUVWHONEE
JNYE ALINOWWOD MYYWHONHL

q xel AouednooQ JUSTSURILL

SNOILVDINAWWOD SSHEIdYELLIT

Burstaxsapy

HWYN
JOANHA

aNnd TYIENIED

6TETC

0€zs

00S€£80
SZ6LT

0L%S
® QOOTId 00€280
0STTT

1009
99122

6685
€022
8G6ST

Z68S
$060¢

0€zs
0SCTT

0128
TEE6T

0€TS
9%¥81¢€
9p8TE

0TIS
9GLTZ
0SCTT
0STTT
0STIT
0SZTT

00LE
9SLIC

009¢€
WSI¥NOL 009180
AFINNN #I1DDY
AOANIA #IOLN

00T - # aNnag
sz02/0¢€/9
HSLEAY

145



% TS 9€T’L
x 0€E°PET
0E " PET

» 00°81¢
00°8ST
00°0¢
00°0¢

* ¥6°9L8'¥
¥V 6LT’T
€€ TES'T
€ETTES'T
0T 60L'T
-L8°2LY'T
L8°TLY'T
0v°886'T

* 8Z°L06'T
¥9°LTT
00°2¢€9
¥ ST
0€°09
€799
08" TL
SY LT
02°20T
0Z°91T
S€°99
SE€°SS
08 TL
oe oL
SE€°SS
S8°0L
SL°88
S8°9S
0€°0%T
66 TV

*x 69°T¥8
¥+ 00°00T
00°00T

*+ 00°SLS
00°SLS

LNNOWY

8T dDVd
SMDEHD ¥HIAY

TYLOL JOLVIN
TYLOL LNNODOY
S20c¢ HINNL

TYLOL LNAODOY
JO0D ALLIL SYHAMOTA
qQu¥0 I14ID WOH
TIYD LAID WOH

TYLOL LNQODDY

S0

€87922N ANI LIQHUD

SYD

SYO

8€8T0CN LITHID

5049

SYO

TYILOL (LNNODOY
LANYEINT LdHd HLTVHH
LINYHELNI
SSENLIM WILDIA
LSIA HLIVAH ILNOWJHZId4

ALVILSIOVA

ATY A0 ¥INOISSIWWOD
ONIQIING/DNINNYI
JATIAHS

MYITD IAN0D LINDIID
DILSHNOA/ATINIANL
AVALSIDHEY

ALLY HLTYAMNOWWOD
LIN0D ISIA TYHENHD
LJNOD LINDYID
AHINSVEAL

LdHd HLTIVAIH
HIO¥Yd/d0¥d HTINIAQL
NINAVY ALNNOD
ONILSOH TIVWH 3NALC

TYLOL JOLYH
TYIOL LNNODOY
dOODVYA TIVWS H DIDSY

TYLOL LNNODOY
dOODVYA TIVWS d ANOD

NOILdI¥DSHA

Sz0Z/0€/9

-- SZ0Z/T0/9

80¢CS¢CL

66C¢€T

9290 NIWA¥ #9ST
S¢90 NIWAVY ¥SST

8cT8eeNn
Lo6€EZN
€8¢9¢an
ooecezn
988¢caN

8€8T0CN.

0TZeE8TIN

9290 €00 STLSPS
9290 TOO0 STILSPS

1288500-90SC
0288500-9059¢
6188500-90S¢2
8T88500-90S¢2
LT88500-905C
9188500-90S2
ST88500-90S¢
¥188500-9052
€188S500~-9052
2188500-905¢
T1T885900-90S¢2
0T88500-905¢
6088500-9052
8088500-905¢
L088500~-9052
9088500-905¢

T1SS0H

9290 NIWAV ¥#SST

S¢90 NIWAVY ¥%SST

H#ANT

TIVMaE HONTId

DT ‘SHLVIDOSSY ¥ SHMOTA LESST
994 UTWPY S9I0T4

LSI¥OTA S, HLLIHDOY 9SGLLZ

JINVE ALINNWNOD MIVWHONEL 0SCTT

JINVE ALINOWWOD MIVWHONEL 0STTIT
Aousburtiuod

YITHAWNV-SHLYLS NIHHINOS 86S58¢
VITAWV-SHLYLS NIYHHLNOS 86S8¢
VYITHNV-SHLVLS NIFHLNOS 86S58¢
YITINY-SHLYLS NIHHINOS 86S8T
VITIWV-SALYLS NYTHLNOS 86498¢
VITIAWV-SALVLS NYHHLNOS 8658T
YITHNY-SHLVLS NIAHLNOS 86S8T
JUNODDdY Teng Teuxsijul

THINIHS 62¢€8¢

THINIHS 62¢€82
NOILATOS DNIMYOMLAN XdINIM %060¢
NOILNTOS ONIMYOMLAN XHANIM #060¢C
NOILNTOS ONIMYOMLAN XHANIM %#060¢
NOILNTIOS ONIMIOMLAN XHANIM ¥060¢
NOILNTOS ONIMIOMLAN XHANIM %0602
NOILNTOS ONIMYOMLAN XHANIM #060¢
NOILNTOS ONIMYOMLAN XHANIM #060C
NOILATOS ONIMIOMLAN XHANIM ¥060C
NOILATOS ONIMYOMLAN XHUNIM $060C
NOIILNTOS ONIMYOMLAN XHANIM ¥060¢C
NOIILATOS ONIMIOMLAN XHANIM %0602
NOILATOS ONIMYOMLIN XHNIM ¥060C
NOILATOS ONIMYOMLEN XHNIM ¥060C
NOILATOS ONIMIOMLAN XHNIM %060¢
NOILATOS ONIMNYOMLAN XHNIM $060¢
NOILATOS ONIMYOMLIN XHNIM %#060C

ONI ‘ZADOTONIAAAY Z9TOT
JUNODOY WODITIL Teursijul

ASNAJXd TVIINED

JINVE ALINOWWOD MIVWHONHL 0SCTT
ISqUSN UOCTILTOOSSY R sang

JINVE ALINOWWOD MYVWHONHE 0SCTT
BONPHE ¥ UOTIUSAUOD-T3ARIL
HWUN HHEWON
AOANEHEA JOANHA

aNNg TYIINED

d0od SHOIOANI 40 ONILSIT

1189

L08S

€08S

0€zs

000T60

0T8S

0%SS
#LDDOY
#IOLYIN

00T - # aNOJ
S20zZ/0€/9
HSLEAY

146



0T°S09'%T9°¢€ TYLOL aNNd

xx 90°0T8°L6T
% 90°0T8'L6Y

TY.LOL JOLVI
TYIOL LNNODDOY

90°0T8'L6F INEWAYd G2 ATIArL aNod ¥SdA €9%20¢ JMNYE SO TZH0€E
Iojul - puod 09 ¥SdA %202 A4
HDIANES LEgAd 000560
¥x P6°LES’LOL'T  TTYIOL YOOV
¥ 00°000’ST TYLOL INNODDY
00°000°ST WALSAS WWOD SWH 620T DTT ‘SINVIINSNOD VID ¥¥62T
sprmAjunop-3nalorg oTpeyd z0€0
» TZT LIT'9€EL'Z  'IYIOL INQODDY
00-08g‘2 IO0¥d TTHDS A¥VINAWATI 860LS8EC06 DNI NVWSIODS SWYITIIM L69ZE
00°08€°T I0¥d THDS XIVINAWATH L60LS8ET06 ONI NVWSLODS SWVYITIIM L69CE
00°08€’2C LO¥Nd THOS AUVINAWATH 960LS8EZ06 DNI NVKWSLODS SWUYITIIM L69ZE
00°08€’'Z Idd THOS AMVINAWHTH G60LS8ETZO6 ONI NVKWSILODS SWYITIIM L69CE
00" ¥LY L I0Yd THDS XUVINAWITI $60LS8ET06 ONI NVKWSLODS SWYITIIM L69ZE
00°SLZ L Io¥d THOS A¥VLNIWATA Z60LSBET06 ONI NVKWSILODS SWYITIIM L69CE
00°SLT'L I0dd THOS AUVINIWATH T60LS8ET06 DNI NYWSIODS SWYITIIM L69CE
00°SLZ L I0¥d THOS X¥YINAWATI 060LS8ET06 DNI NYWSIODS SWYITIIM L69CTE
00°SLZ L IO0¥d THOS XUVINAWATH €60%8LEC06 ONI NVYKWSLODS SWVITIIM L69C€E
00°SLZ L I0¥9d THOS XUVINAWHTH Z60%8LETO6 DNI NVKWSLODS SWYITIIM L69CE
00°sLZ'L I0¥d THDS AUVINIWITH 060%8LET06 DNI NYKWSIODS SWYITIIM L69Z€E
00°GLZ L IO0¥d THDS XAVINANATI 68078LEZO6 ONI NYWSIODS SWYITIIM L69ZE
6L°698'9¢C THOS DHd ONZY #%8229 YZT-¥%82C9 Od SLDOELIHDYY AHTASOW 0%LZZ
Zy 8ZE I¥9'C ONHY/dd¥ THOS Ddd S dday¥y IWNd YAWOD NOILOAYLSNOD HSITONE L¥LPT
dId - Toouds 0520
x G9°LZE'T TYLOL LNNODOY
S9°LZE'T AYANNYD INVINVISIAM §Z90 NIWQY SGST ANVE ALINAWWOD MIYWHONALS 0SZTT
Azsuue) - dIJAY $%00
+ 09°669'%T TYLOL LNOODDY
-0T 00T dEEd.8 fIME HTONS NLI LZTSTZ-9082C ONI OD A1ddNS HDI¥d 089ST
TT°0TT SIHOIT/IADNVA dLIIND 8ZTSTD-9052dqI0 DNI 0D A1TddNS HDI¥d 089S¢
66588 SI¥Yd TIYLSNI dLIIND 070STD-9052dAI0 ONI 0D A71ddNS HDI¥d 089S<T
0S°66L°ET JATYTHS SALITILNNOD SL8-€Z% DTT SNILOVAINOD DMM ZTH0TT
mO._”uHGQO.Hm HMHOG@U €¥00
x 8G°L6E TYLOL INOQODDOY
85 L6€E JANYHIHLE /JIINIdd dH MOLA-NLTD-LMTT SHDIANES IYLIAYD NOZVWY 6S20T
we3sAg suoydaTsl 2200
SIOALO¥d IYLIAYD  000%60
¥x €0 L8L'L TYLOL JOLYKW
x €0°LBL'L TYLOL INNODDY
00°000°’S @IS - INY¥D WSIVNOL G250 GWIFY™ ¥aIl 0D Q¥¥Mdd HONI¥d 0Z8S¢
00°STE IS - QiS §ZS0 GWIHA YaI 0D Q¥YMdA HDNI¥d 0Z8S¢
00°66 HTIIONYL-QIS SZS0 gWI=d ¥aIl 0D Q¥¥YMdA HONI¥d 0Z8S<T
€0 €ELE'T g9 LSIA JYEAIN XANVS §ZS0 EWIHY ¥aIl 0D qu¥YMad HONId¥d 0T8S<T
pund ¥dI oL 0TLO
1IN0 SYAASNYHEL ANAA  000€E60
INOOWY NOILAI¥DSHA #ANT ANYN AHIWNAN #LODOY
JAOANIA JYOANHA HAOLYN
aNnd IYIENID 00T - # aNndg
6T HOVd §20Z/0€/9 -- SZTOZT/TO/9 ¥OA SHDIOANI A0 OHNILSIT 5z02/0€/9

SMDHHD ¥HLAY QIYMdd HONTHd HSLEd¥

147



LNOOWY

0Z dbv¥d
SMDHHD ¥HILAY

NOILATY¥DSHA

§z0Z/0€/9

#ANT

-- §20Z/10/9 ¥OA SHEDIOANI 40 ONILSIT

QIvMdE HONTITdd

HWVN AHIINON #IODY
JOANHEA JOANHA HAOCLYN

aNnd TYEENID 00T - # aNnd
S202/0€/9
HSL€4Y

148



00" 6TS'T TYLOL aNNdg
#x 00°6TIS'T TYLOL YOLVIN
¥ 00°6TIS'T TY.LOL (LNNODOY
00°6TIS'T HONVANSNI ALITIEVIT Yao 49 6CLTIT dJ00¥YA TZHIE
souerInsul L0ES
SHINLIANAAXH STIVA HLINVID O0TTICTO
LNOOWY NOILAI¥DSHA H#ANT JNVN UHINON H#ILOOY

YOANHA YOANHA H#IOLVN

V@O STIVA FLINVYD - SHINLIANEIXHE O0CT - # aNnJd
T2 db¥d §20Z2/0€/9 -- STOZ/T0/9 Y04 SHDIOANI 40 DNILSIT sz0Z/0¢€/9
SMOHHD ¥HLIY QI¥Mad HONIdd HSLEAVY

149



15762508 TYIOL aNNJd

*x 89°L88'9%
* 89°L88'9¥%

TYLOL ¥YOLYH
TYIOL LNAODOY

SMOHHD ddLAY

QI¥MAd HONI¥d

89°L88'9% YILYM/OVAH JOLVIEANTD dnd ST90 EWIHY ANDSHA TIOA QI¥YMAE ADNIAYd 088G
-89°.88'9% LHILM/DVAH/JOLVIANAD SZ90 dWIHY HADSHY TI0OA Q¥VYMAA HDONI¥d 088ST
89°L88'9% LHAIM/DYAH/JOLVIANTD G290 dWIFYA ANDSHY TOA UIYMAA dONI¥d 088ST
Apusbutjuop L08S
000€60
xx €8°I¥9°¢€ TYLOL JOLVIN
+ €8 TI¥9°€ TYLOL INNODDY
-09°C€0’1T SNI dWOD SYINIOM AJASH LTO¥TT dJdODVYA TTHTIE
0S°CE0'T SNI dWOD SAUIIIOM QIASH LTOPTIT dIODVA TZHTE
0S°2€0'T SNI dWOD SUIMIOM dnd d4SH LTO¥TT dJdODVA TIZHTE
% T20'T ANIFY da3d X¥1L 2/T ANTHY LLNDXINOH ILddaa F¥Id XANCAS-NAQIWYH 80ZLT
6%°GL SHOIAYAS SSHTHIIM $ZS0 LAN LS¥Id IdHd HYId AANAAS-NAAAWYH 80ZLT
6%°GL SHDIAYHAS SSHTHIIM SZ%¥0 LEN LS¥Id IdHd J9Id AANCAS-NIAdWYH 80TLT
8% 9L HDIAYES SSTAIIM S2TE0 LAN ILS¥Id IdHd HYId XANCAS-NIAAWYH 80CLT
8%° 9L HDIAYHS SSHTIIIM STTI0 LAN ILS¥Id Iddd HdId XANCAS-NIAdWYH 80ZLT
S0°89T AYALIVE/ LHOITHSY 1A GWIFEY HILS HIIJ IdH3d AIIA XANAAS-NIAIWYH 80TLT
S8°T9T DIYLOETH $2S0 NOINIWOQ IdHId A9Id RANAAS-NIAAWYH 80CLT
LE 6ST DIYLDETH SZ%0 NOINIWOQ IdAd HITA XANCTAS-NIAdWYH 80ZLT
ST 8TT JIYLOHETH SZE€0 NOINIWOQ IdEd HJId XEINJAS-NIAIWNYH 80CLT
80" ¥C TOYLNOD ILSHd PZz1 ¥ALsSnd ongd IdHd HITA XANJAS-NAAINYH 80ZLT
80" ¥C TOYINOD LSHEd ¥zZ60 ¥ALSNd HNd IdEd HJYIA AENAAS-NIAANYH 80ZLT
80" % TOYINOD LSHd $Z2L0 ¥ALsSnd ond IdEd FYIJd AINCTAS-NIAdNYH 80CLT
80" ¥C TOYINOD LsHd $Z90 ¥dLsSnd ond IdAd HITd XEINJAS-NIAINYH 80TLT
80" ¥C TOYLINOD LSHd §ZTS0 ¥ALSNd Snd IdHd HYId AANJAS-NHAdNVYH 80TLT
80° % TOULNOD ISHd SZ¥0 Jdarsnd ond LdEd HYId AEINUTAS-NIAQdWNVYH 80ZLT
80°¥2Z TOYLNOD LSHd SZEO0 ¥ALSNd oOnd IdEd #YId XANJAS-NIAdWYH 80CLT
80" ¥¢C TOYLNOD LSHd §220 ¥dLsnd ond IdHd HIIA AANJAS-NIAdWNYH 80TLT
80°6T TOULNOD LSdd SZT0 ¥YdLSNd oSnd IdHd HJIIA XANJAS-NIAdWNYH 80ZLT
¥9°69 SI100E MIOM TYDILVL 8YY€099 NOZYWY LdHd 314 XANJAS-NIAQdWNYH 80ZLT
€1°G6 LES YOLVINOHY/ONILONL 99%TL6T NOZYWY IdAd FJIA XENTAS-NIAdWVH 80CLT
SL° V6 JLDALOYA /SLO0d /dTILS 6Z8T0ST NOZYWY Iddd JFJIA AINTAS-NIAdWYH 80TLT
91°06 SHITAANS IYDIAHN 0Z%8LLGS DT TYDICIN HAWL ANNOd ZZHTT
€0°STT JIDIOANE MDHAHD HAOD QAASH DIY¥ZS9ST AONADIINE DIINYILY 0S80T
SWE Asupis uspdweH 0TOL
SWH T0EZEO
LNNOWY NOILAI¥DSHA #ANT HINYN AAGWNAN #IODY
JOaANHA JOANHA #IOLVIH
aNnd IDIVLSIA SWH S0Z - # aNndg
ZZ d5v¥d Sg0T/0€/9 -- STOZ/T0/9 ¥OA SHDIOANI A0 ONILSIT S202/0€/9

HSLEdY

150



TS S¥c TYLOL aNQd
*x 1S9°S9PC TYLOL YOLYN
*» TS'S%C IYILOL INQODOY
18°5%¢ YEAMES /IIVM G290 JNVLI dHLVM
LNOONWY NOILATY¥OSHA #ANT
€C HdDVd §20Z/0€/9 -- ST0Z/T0/9 ¥Od SADIOANI A0 ONILSIT

SMOHHD ¥dILAY MAYMTHE HONT¥d

151

HTTIIANIYA 40 NMOL CTEE6T
9DTAISS I23eM 0ETS

SHILIHJOEd TYIANED 002€¥0

TN AIINON #IODOVY
HOANHA JOANTA HIOLVIN
aNnd JILYM  T0S - # aNnd
5202/0€/9
HSLE€dY



152

9L°99 TYLOL aNnd
*x 9L°99 TYLOL JOLYIW
¥ 9L°99 TYLOL INONODDY
9L°99 diNd JEAMIS GZ90 T8ZOOLS¥T¥ VINIDUIA ADYHNT NOINIWOQ 9¥%8T€
me._”\r.va .hm.U..n.HuUU._”m 0TTS
SHILIAdOYd TVIINID 002€¥0
LNNOWY NOILAI¥DSHA H#ANT HANYN AAGNON #ILOOY
JOANIA JOANHA #AOLYIN
aNnd JEMIS 205§ - # aNQJ
vZ HOVd §20Z/0€/9 ~-- S2T0Z/T0/9 ¥Od SHDIOANI 40 ODNILSI'T Sz02/0€/9

SMOHEHD ¥HILAY QIYMad dONT¥d

HSLEdY



G9°62€'8T
TL CT¥6'S
GL T98'T
TIL°T86'T
GZ ¥88°T
00°STZ

8L°S0¢
96768
06°6LT
£€6°S¢E

0S°LLS
0S°LL8

S€°62CS
¢S99
9¢°¥9
9¢°¥9
9¢E° 99
S6°6L
06°¥%6
S6°6L
S6°%T

[N N %4
6% 86
2€°99
TV LY

S6°86L°8
0€°TS0‘¢e
00" ¥%T

0L°029'T
S6°T86'¢

SL°676
TI8°6LT
T8 °6LT
€T°06S

¥£°889
057 ¢6¢
78 16T

96°8CT

S6°80T
00°0¢

LNNOWY

S¢ dd¥d
SADHHD VLAY

TYLOL
TYLOL

I¥LOL

TV.LOL

TYLOL

TY.LOL

TVY.LOL

TYLOL

TYLOL

TYLOL

JOLYIN
LNNODDOY

LNOODOY

LNQODOY

LNAODDOY

LNNODOY

LNOODOY

LNOQODOY

LNOODOY

LNNODDOY

TESHIA SNOILDETION
TISHIA SNOILDHATIOD
THSHIA SNOILODHTION

THSHIA

TVHN DLW TIIAANYT
TYEN DLW TITIJAANYT
SDIN dLS ANOD SMOUNS

HOIAYHES ATHLNOW

LIS ANOD OS¥IA

LIS ANOD WYHSJOM
dLIS ANOD HIDDAL
HLIS ANOD AVE NHAID
HLIS SLOH NOLONITYVA
dLIS ANOD HOIY

LIS ANOD ILOEdS0dd
dLIS SLDH NOLONITIVA

HLIS ANOD HOIY
YHLNHD HIDADHY
HLIS SLOH NOLODNITYYQ

DNITOADHE DINOIILOATH
ONITOADHYT

DNITOADHEY HYIL

SC0C AV DNITOADHY

NOILOHTIOO HSYAL
NOILDHTIOD HSVIL
NOILDHTIOD HSVIL

MOV AVAD TIVAHT
(9T) THS"Z J4dqANTI

sg1nd IHOIT/IAOTO
TINI JIVdAY IVTd

NOILAI¥OSHA

§20Z/0€/9

GCS0 TESHIA
SZ¥0 THSHIA
S2¢0 TESHIA
8L 1LTTOTT

SZ90 NIWQV »SST
9290 NIWAVY ¥SST
¢ STS0 dWIHEY

TI9STT

GT90 6SLETCETL
GZ90 498C6E00TE
GZS0 9¥%8ST960¢€
GZS0 T8T08%60¢
5088500-90S¢
2088500-90S2
T0885S00-905¢
1828500-90482

GZ9COECTYTS000TE
G290 €006LEPTT
G290 TOO06LEPTT

¥8T00SC
9202 AVIW
Se0edM-dVvLd
929%

T059659000-%L60
005659000-%L60
66765959000-%L60

€99LC
8%¥866C S008Z

d8440d94d

LTLES

#ANT

QI¥MAHE IONI¥d

HOS DTIgd 0D CU¥¥MAE HONINd Z8LST
HOS 271dd 0D QUYMdHE HONIVYd Z28LSZ
HOS DI9d 0D Q¥VYMdA HONIVA 28LST
HOIANES ADYENHT NOIONITIH 00L¥T

4 dinbg psiesmod 3 STOTUSA 8009
JMNYE ALINAWWOD MIYWHONHI 0SZTT
JINVE ALINOWWOD MIVIWHONAD 0GZTT
TYLSAND dENVE 080TT

O R IDUIJSTSANS - TL|ARIL QgsSsS
ONI O O A4ILS 6988C

Tejusy 39TTOL °Igelrod 0v¥s
NOZI¥HAA LEETE
gdadSIHOI¥E 6T1€1C
QaadSLHDINE 61€1T
QIEdSIHOTEE 6TIETICT
NOILATOS ONIMIOMLAN XANIM %060
NOILOTOS ONINJOMLAN XANIM %060T
NOIINTOS ONIMIOMLAN XANIM %0602
NOIIATOS SNINYOMLAN XANIM %0602

wGO..numU._uG.DEEOUOHO.H 0€ECS
VINIDYIA ADMENA NOINIWOQ S¥8TE
dooD DI¥LDATE HAISHLNOS 07982
dOOD DIVLDITE HAISHINOS 0%98%C

S9OTAISS TeOoTIAIDOTH O0TTS
DT ONITDADHY ADYANAS 6206
DNI 'SddlLsS 9988¢C
d¥ INIWIOYNYW HIIL TANNYWH €2LPT
DT ONITDADEY HIITA PLSVT

09Y¥ - 8DTAIXSS JO sseyudand TI¥8¢€
PL6# SIDIANAS DITINAHY $SZOT
pL6# STEDIAYEAS DITANdAA ¥SCTOT
pL6# SHOIA¥AS DITdNdHd $SZOT

S0d - TITIpue] 3IDeIJUOD o¥8¢
"ONI ‘°0D ENIHDUW S.HJOOW £0SZC
ATddAS OLOAY ITIIASMMVID TTE€ZT

bg 3 oany-juten 3 satedsy TIEE
DTT SHIIYAIZOHE SISW S688¢C
OTT AJAYLS ® QO¥ OLLLT

ooueuajuten/satedey 0TEE

SNOIIDATIOD  00€EZHO
HINYN JAAGNON #LODOY
JOANIA JYOANHA HIOOTH

-- GZ0Z/T0/9 ¥O4d SHDIOANI 40 HNILSIT

0ZS - # aNn4g
Gz0Z/0€/9
HSL€dY

153



154

€T°LY TYLNIZY WI0AINN 0SLZHETETT PTS# NOILVIOJYAOD SYINID 2Z6LT
axeddy ButraesM 3 SwWIOITUN TT09
89°0L9°€E TYLOL INNODDY
66°66¢€ dWNd ENIODNH S¥D AdL86VdY DT SHTIVAIEDHY SISW S688C
L% €T dWNd/LES JAYA/SMOOH d4.,86YdY DT SHTIVAIEDHY SISW $688¢
L8 8¥%9 SHITA4ANS INIVIN TI96T9ISd JALYIOdIOONI AVYHWOW €ZSZT
16°S¥ FOAIVLIYD NNI N1 8¥SL6S STV AT1ddns dFDIAJ0 AEM 0090¢
8T 80T (€) ¥ATVES 06866Z S008T ATddNs OLNV HTIIASMIVID TTECT
$€°00¢ I¥Vd ¥IVdd¥ 0T-%0L 9T%09 SONILLIA 3 HSOH ¥AITVAVD T8ZTT
S6°¢L8'T D€96 SIMVA ¥IVAdA £¥988T9 ONI OD AYENIHDVW dALAVD 0ZZZTT
00°6TE YHINIYd IdIdDHEY ANPO-0¥X0-AdvT SEDIAYES TYLIAYD NOZYWY 6ST0T
66°L HTIZZON JHSM TANSSHAJ ANTO-0¥X0-Adv T SHDIAYES TVLIAVD NOZVWY 6STO0T
6682 dWNd I¥D-LIN TIYES ANTO-0dX0-adbT SHDIAYES TYLIAYD NOZYWY 6SZ0T
66 %1 SdIL YHHSYM HINSSHAd ANTO-0dXL-adv T SHDIAYES TYLIdYD NOZYWY 6GC0T
s dtnbg paasmog ® STOTUSA 6009
8E°¥TI6 TYIOL INAODDY
06°6€T TESEIA TIIAANYT SZH0 THESHIA HOS D7Idd 0D QIVMdd HONI¥d Z8LST
8% ¥L9 THASHIA TIIAANYT SZ€0 THESAIA HDS DTdd 0D QIVMAdA HONI¥d Z8LST
°ng 8009
88°69T TYLIOL LNANODDY
06°99 MNI/9HdYd AdOD LLSL6S ST¥ X1ddns E0Id4d0 AT 0090
86°€0T YHdVd A¥Hd TAANT 0Z¥L6S STF A1ddAS FDIJAA0 AHEM 0090C
TTpuel - sTTAdns =2TII0 1009
9€°G98¢2 TYIOL INAODDY
9% 06T TIIAANY'T §2S0 $9L9Z€60¢€ aaIdSIHOINE 6TETT
06" %6 TIIAANY'T €088500-90S¢C NOILNTOS ONINIOMIAN XANIM ¥060T
SUOTILDTUNUWODITI,L ogzZs
L9 SPE’'T TYLOL INNODDY
9% LST TIO/IIN ddd/IMSD %2662 ATddNS OLNV ILHOIY¥M 926Z¢€
00°S¥% SET00T HAWIT JHLVIAAH 1858621 *ONI 'EAILVYHJOOD SYEWNYA 96S8C
66°TT Hd4 dSNI/HWIT LATTIHEd LLS86ZT "ONI ‘HEATILVIAJ00D SUHAWIYA 96G8T
G6 €59 (T¥DSS) 0§ 0§ QH SZIS6C €00T OLLVWOddV) SL¥Vd OLNVY Vd¥N 9%2¢€T
SV 6% TIO ¥HHSYM HINSSHId SZ90 dWIHY TNYd SIOTONVT L6TTT
SL IC YHIYM (€) TAANT %€0€8%S¢E ONI HWIL MDUNS S.II Z988T
0S5 L TYINEY TAANT TE6Z8%SE ONI HWIL MDUNS S.LI Z988T
S6° € HTANVH Hd0¥ ¥#S00€ S0082 AIddNS OLAY HTIIASMYYID TTECT
98°S¥% MOOTWYD WATY w€ S¥H09 SONILLIA ® HSOH ¥HAITVYAYD 28221
81°GLZ SONILLIJI/ISOH QTAH STH09 SONILLIA 3 HSOH ¥HITVAVD T82CT
68 89T SHINYIHAL /ONTIAD /ASOH 18€09 SONILLIA ® dSOH YAITUYAYD Z82TT
69°%T YHLAYAY JHLITANOD ANFO-0¥XL-AdvT SEDIAYES TVLIAYD NOZVWY 6S20T
quten » sitedsy juswdinbm TTEE
ST #%2’'9T TYLOL LNNODDY
ST $%2'9T SOAS MINNY ANA ST DdEd 8¥LTHTT 8L999T *D°d d 'SEILVYIDOSSY VITHEYT SOTTT
SS9DTAISS TeUOCTSSaJ0Id 09T¢
¥6°96€'% TYIOL INNODDY
S8 €EV0’C YIZH# 3 /€#I00A Z8606TZ0T-AL NOILYYOd¥0D HNOLS MDNT 0€8TIZT
60°€S€’C THAVED €#(T) /LS#(€) YL8Z8TZOT-AI NOILVIOJIOD ENOLS MDNT 0€8TZ
SpeOy IO SOURUSJIUTEN TTIO0E
SNOILVYAJdO TIIAQNY'L 00%2%0
LNOOWY NOILAIUDSHA HANI HNYN YTIWON #IDDY
HOANHA JOANIA #AOCLYN
0ZS - # aNna
9z HEDYd SZ0Z/0€/9 -- STOZT/TO/9 ¥WOA SIADIOANI A0 DNILSIT §z0Z/0€/9

SADHEHD ¥HLAY qIYMAd HONI¥d HSLEdY



Z6°V0S'LY

00°SL8'T
00°SL8'T
00°SLB'T

LE"00E'LT
T€ €LT

9% 0L
65°89
€T°LY
LNOOWY

LT dAbvd
SMOHHD ¥dLAY

TYLOL aNnd

TYLOL JOLVN
TYLOL LNOODDY

TYLOL YOLYNW
TY.LOL LNAODDY

HLIS ANOD WVHSIYOM

T#PPC9 SLETLE

dno¥o SNOWKWIL 08C6¢
usweasoxdwr 93TS Joadedwod 0100

000%60

TYINHY WIOJINN 89LCTLSEETY yZa# NOLLVYOdd0D SWINID CZ6LT
TYINTE WSO INN L80¢TC8CECY ¥ZS# NOILVIOJdIOD SYINID CCT6LT
TYLNII WIOAINN 9L7ST0CETY PZS# NOILVIOdIOD SVINID TT6LT
NOIILAI¥OSHA #ANT HNVN AHGWNON #ILDOY
JOANHA JOANHIA H#IOLVIN
0cs - # aQun4g
§202/0€/9 ~-- §20Z/T0/9 ¥OA SHDIOANI 40 ONILSIT §Z0Z/0€/9

Y¥Mdd HONT¥d

HSLed¥

155



*x S T129'L

00°LS
-00° LS
00°LS

*» 8% €L
8% €L

+ SS°9%¢
Y TvLT
€T 2L

¥ 0S°LST'T
-00°S969
00°569
007969
08°29S

¥+ 00°09¢€
00°09¢

+ 86°T9
86°T9
-86°T9
8619

LNOOWY

82 HDVd
SADHHD ¥HLAY

IVLOL JOLVNW
IYLOL INNODDY

TYLOL LNNODDY

TYLOL LNOODOY

TYLOL INNODOY

TYLOL LNNODOY

TYLOL LNOODOY

YHAYd /dY0S/SdND/SNEd
JdIdVd/dv0s/sdnd/sNad
dAdvd/d¥0s/sdnd /SNad
LIVE/ST1dLS/sda1a/4dsn
2dv¥d/STdLs/s49a1d/49sn
#dv¥d/STdLs/sda1d/dsn
SWNRINW/SHIIA/FdVL/MNT
HOAIVLIAVD HLITH
SONIY M00d/MNI

HALYId HWYN

ADAIULAYD JTLNIAL
HOATYLAVD JAINTII
SONIY MO0d/MNI

SONIY Y00d/MNI

ALVId HAWYN

ALYId AWNYN

HII4 ONH/LYN/MNI
SIYW YIVHD
HDLOH/YZNIQTID /sda
HION/SdTD ¥AAVd/SATO
S4dITD ¥yAAYd

SAYVYD SSANISnNd

SAQIYD SSANISNd

SQUVYD SSENISNdg

sod

sod
Sdd

S20Z AVYW d¥ MDOT1g
9¢0Z AYW Q¥ D019

SA¥ MDoT1d
S20¢ AVW a¥ 2AD0Td

LOVIINOD HONVYNALNIVA

SNOILLYWIIANOD €9Vl

dnNa z8LyeEv vy
C8LYEYYY
Z8LYEVTY

dna Le0e6Tev¥
L606TETY
L606TETY
§9T0eTvy

dNd TS8L6S
dNd 8s9L6S
dna Ts9L6S

1598L6S
198L6S
899L6S
859L6S
TS9L6S
TS9L6S
9€SL6S
SESL6S
SCEL6S
L6CL6S
96CL6S

0%
0%
0%
T0¥%
10%
0%
0¥
10%
0%
0%
T0%

dNd TS9T6¢202
19T6220C
19T6220¢

€.28S00-90S¢

S¢S0 €CeTEIBICL
9250 60&eZ96VCEY

LTLLB6T 0S9¢ccC
LTLLB6T 0S592cC
dna 0s9zze
90611

69TVTOANI

dNd LeTOTP1

NOIIVIOd¥0D TTIIND
NOILVIOdd0D TIIND
NOTIIVIOdI0D TIIND
NOILYIOdI0oD T1IND
NOIIVYOd¥0D TTIIND
NOIIVIO4¥0oD T1INd
NOILYIOdI0oD T1IND
ATddNS dDTAJ0 AHM
A1ddAs dDId40 AEI
A1ddns d0Id40 AHM
ATddNS dADTAJ0 AEM
A1ddNS dDIA40 AEM
A71ddns dDIAJ0 AMM
AT1ddNsS dDIA40 AHEM
AIddNs dDIA40 AHM
A1ddAS HDIAJ0 XEM
A1ddNS FDIAA0 AHM
A1ddNS dDIAA0 AEA
A1ddNS dDIAA0 XEM
ATddNS dDIAA0 AEI
ATddNS "EDIAA0 AHEM

‘ONI ‘SHDVWI LHODIN¥d

"ONI ‘SHOVWI IHOIY¥d

"ONI ‘SHOVWI IHDI¥E
soTTddns 90TIJ0

NOIINTOS ONINYOMIAN XHNIM
SUOTIEeD TUNWWODITIL

YINIDIIA ADYENT NOINIWOQ

VINIDITIA ADYENH NOINIWOd
90TAISS TEOTIIDSTH

VIQANSMAN HATITIANIVA
YITHNSMEN HTTIAWNIVA
VICHWSMEN HTIIANIVA
JOLINOW NILATING VITHWY
BUTST1I9APY

dIId00 NIYHFHILNOS
oourusjutel pue saTtedsy

ONI A¥HS ADOTODIXOL FHdTY

ONI A¥HS ADOTODIXOL HUdATVY

ONI A¥HS ADOTODIXOL HIHTY
- S9DTAISS JO oseydIndg

SHOIAYES IdN0D LNOWIHIJ

HINYN
AOANHA

S2992
§¢S99¢
§299¢
S¢S59¢
§c99¢e
S299¢
S259¢
0090¢
0090¢
00902
00%0¢
00902
0090¢
0090¢
0090¢
00902
0090¢
0090¢
00902
0090¢
0090¢
6CSTT
6CSTT
6CSTT

¥060¢

9¥%8T¢E
9%8T¢

0vest
0¥%CST
0%CsT
T9¢0T

L8S8BC

S608¢
S608¢
S608¢

AHIWON
AOANIA

T009

0ges

0TTS

009¢€

0T€EE

661¢

00%TZ0
#LDOY
#AOLYIN

aNNd SHOTAYHES IL3N0D INOWAEIA THL - # aNN4

SNOILVWIIANOD 9v1 LETOTHT
SNOILVWIIANOD €Y' LETOTHT
30
NOILdI¥DSHA #ANT
SZ0Z/0€/9 -- S2T0ZT/T0/9 W04 SHDIOANI 40 ONILSIT

IvYMad HONI™Ed

§z0zZ/0€/9
HSLEAY

156



157

7S 666 7L TYIOL aNNA
*¥ 00°8LE TYLOL YOOV
x 00°8LE TYIOL INNODOY
00°8LE HDIAYHES JLLTIJITINI G250 LENdYIINI AIOJSNNT W AJIAL 6096T
DOTAIBS ._HMEO._”mmw.u_.OH& - 8Hhd 091¢
SHINLIANAdXH SHEId NOISIA¥YIANS SDd T00L60
INNOWY NOILAI¥DSHEA #ANT HNYN AIINNN #IODVY
JOANIA JOANFA #JOLYI
aNnd SEDIA¥AS I¥N0D INOWJHEId TvL - # ANN4A
6C HDVd SZ0Z/0€/9 -- STO0T/T0/9 WO SHDIOANI A0 DNILSIT SZ02/0€/9

SMOHEHD ¥dLAY aQyv¥Mdd dJONI¥d

HSLEdY



80 TZE'0ES L
7L 058,08 ¢

¥L°058'L08 €
€€°TE9°€€ES
0% 6%€ 809
€6°T8C'SC

Iv-6IZ '¥LZ'E
TS €26 'S6
6S°TSL'Z86'T
0E€ " ¥¥S'S6T

LNNOOWY

0g dIdud
SYMDHHD ¥HILAY

H0d TYLOL
TYLOL aNNA

TYLOL JOLVNH
TYLOL LNOODDY

TYLOL LNNODDY

o3eq 9T3TL
@3edq STI3TL
a3eq STATL
paubts
uo Jo butissu e paaoxaddy
NOIIVLIOdSNVIL 10Z STHO SNVIL DT NOILVILIOdSNVYIL NOALGY 90TO0T
NOILVIIOdSNVIL Z-STE0 SNVYL DT NOILVIMOdSNVIL NOAEY 90T0T
GMHEIﬁO\mQ@ 03 s20UrIJTWSY 8900
Sz/0€/%-T/% ONISNOH Z-ST¥0 ONISNOH DT NOAEV ¥0TIOT
Sz/0€/%-T/% DNISNOH SZ¥0 DNISNOH DTT NOAEGY %0TOT
SZ/T€/€-0€/€ ONISNOH Z-S2€0 DNISNOH DT NOALY #0T0T
SNOH-NOAGY ©3 SaduejjTway L3900
000960
NOILAIYDSHA $ANT ANYN AHTNON #IDDOY
YOANITA JOANHA H#AOLYIN
S¥L - # aNn4
§z02/0€/9 -- S20ZT/T10/9 WOA SHDIOANI A0 ONILSIT Sz0Z/0€/9

qav¥Mad HONI¥d

HSLEdY

158



Board of Supervisors
Agenda Summary

Meeting Date: July 8, 2025
Item #: 17-c
Department: County Administration
Staff Contact: Cheryl Stimpson
Agenda Item: Salaries

SUMMARY:

The County Administrator reported that checks have been issued pursuant to the order of the Board
of Supervisors as to salaries, etc., the amount of which salaries have been heretofore approved.

COST:
ATTACHMENTS: None.

RECOMMENDATION: None.

SAMPLE MOTION:
Motion Cooper-Jones Gilliam Pride
Second Emert Jenkins Townsend

Jones Watson

159



[This pageintentionally left blank]

160



Board of Supervisors

Agenda Summary
Meeting Date: July 8, 2025
Item #: 18
Department: County Administration
Staff Contact: Douglas P. Stanley / Sarah Elam Puckett
Agenda Item: Monthly Reports
SUMMARY:
Please see attachments.
COST:
ATTACHMENTS:
a. Building Office
b. Cannery
c. Tourism & Visitor Center
RECOMMENDATION: None.
SAMPLE MOTION:
Motion Cooper-Jones Gilliam Pride
Second Emert Jenkins Townsend
Jones Watson

161



Building Inspection Department
Types & Fees Collected for June 2025

Permits Fees Collected
Residential - New Structures 2
Single Family 1
Manufactured - Single & Doublewide 1
Modular
Trade permits 32
Electrical 17
Plumbing 4
Mechanical 5
Mechanical/Gas 6
Garage 1
Remodel 3
Solar - Residential 2
Deck 1
Addition 1
Commercial 8
Remodel 1
Electrical 2
Plumbing 2
Mechanical 3
Total permit issued 50
E & S permits 5 $125.00
Total Funds collected $34,495.12
2% State Levy $675.91
Total Estimated Value of Projects $20,380,454.30

162



JUNE 2025
Cannery Report

The Cannery Report is as follows:

A total of 399 cans were sold

The breakdown

269 quarts @$1.05 =$282.45

118 quarts @$1.37=$161.66
12 pints ©$0.78=$9.36

Usage fee @$1.00=$10.00

Applied to 10 customers

For the month of June items of produce canned included string beans, florida broad leaf
greens, creasy greens, flat beans, chili, squash, cabbage, pinto beans and applesauce.
The total revenue for the month totaled $463.47. We began the month with a slow start,
but a big boost at the end.

163



Report to Board
of Supervisors:

o Staff applied for a VA Humcanities Grant
to assist with the marketing and
promotion of the VA250 Mobile
Museum, which will be hosted at the
Moton Museum.

A regular PECTC meeting was held on
6/18. The council supported moving
forward with the Letterpress contract
for the website expansion to become
ExplorePrinceEdward.com/weddings,
ExplorePrinceEdward.com/OutdoorRec
reation,
ExplorePrinceEdward.com/staying, etc.
PECTC is also in support of the Fishing
University contract, which entails an
Qutdoor Channel fishing show shoot in
PEC, production of a 60-second tourism
video which will showcase attractions,
lodging, and dining, and b-roll footage.
They will also speak to at the high
school to students about outdoor
recreation jobs.

Both contracts are partially funded by a
$10,000 VTC grant.

Know of an event coming up that would be
great for tourism social media? Fill out the
form below!
https://tinyurl.com/yc2kvér7

PRINCLE EDWARD CCUNTY
VIRGINIA

PEC Tourism & Visitor Center
Monthly Report for June 2025

HEARTLAND REGIONAL VISITOR CENTER ATTENDANCE

Virginia Other Other Total Average Visitors
Guests States Countries Guests per Month:
June
2025 106 25 ] 159 48

PHONE INQUIRIES

June May % vear Prior
2025 2025 Differences YTD asr o Diffecences
YTD
39 29 34% 135 225 -40%
@ Webpage Stats
Users by Location
Total Users 44 US
1 60 5 Ireland
2 Sweden
Sessions by
Total Sessions Traffic Source
o 46Direct
a1 131 &8,

8 Organic Social
_IJ‘I]'B'I]‘ 5 Referral

8 Organic Search
N

r'd
“N- Engagem_ent Route Key Tak ays &
\|:,>V|ze((::I ‘s’}?g §'§‘3/0 43% Recommendations

Target Richmond,

. NOVA, Roanoke areas in
VAVv::;':geSI;ﬂem'n 49sec Sl
edding Site: i ; .
PEC Site: 35 seconds * Target Raleigh and DC
out of state.

164



Social Media Stats
Facebook Followers 1 / 686

@ Men Women
Top Post 20
=3 - Women
69.1%
-+ AN .
8 27 Followers /R 319 Visits
Social Media Stats 207
Instagram Followers
@ Men Wwomen
25
Women
20 69.6%
15 Farmyile
10 R
N I | B | -
1824 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65+ 0 5 10 5 20 25
i A% ..
[tb 7 New Page Likes /R 26 Visits

GOOGLE MY BUSINESS

Phone Calls Directions Website Visits

13 204 41

109




[This pageintentionally left blank]

166



	MISSION STATEMENT
	2025 07 08 AS 1 2 3  Order Invocation Pledge
	2025 07 08 AS 4 COIA
	2025 07 08 AS 5 Recognitions
	2025 07 08 AS 6 Public Participation
	2025 07 08 AS 7 Board Comments
	2025 07 08 AS 8a Approval of Minutes
	2025 07 08 AS 9 Community Partner Updates (Chip Jones)
	2025 07 08 AS 10 Highway Matters
	2025 07 08 AS 11 Industrial Access Funding - Enterprise Lane
	2025 07 08 AS 12 Solid Waste-Landfill Engineering Services Contract
	2025 07 08 AS 13a FY25 School Appropriation (State Funds)
	2025 07 08 AS 13b FY25 School Appropriation - CARES Act
	2025 07 08 AS 13c National Opioid Settlement Funds
	2025 07 08 AS 13d FY26 Appropriation - ATL Funds to Fire Departments
	2025 07 08 AS 14 Properties Committee Report
	2025 07 08 AS 15 County Administrator's Report
	2025 07 08 AS 16 Date of November Board Meeting
	2025 07 08 AS 17a Treasurer's Report
	2025 07 08 AS 17b Accounts & Claims
	2025 07 08 AS 17c Salaries
	2025 07 08 AS 18 Monthly Reports



